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As at 29 March 2021, the date of this annual report, the
biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, age 74, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
worked as a professor at Peking University thereafter. Prior to joining
the Group in 2001, Mr. Cheung was a chairman of a company
listed in the PRC, namely Founder Technology Group Corporation,
and a director of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), namely Founder Holdings
Limited, and has work experience in international trade, finance,
asset management and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was
honoured with many awards, including being selected as the young
entrepreneur with outstanding contribution to China, and won the
first prize of national golden award for enterprise initiators in the 4th
National Technology Industrialist Award.

KUI MAN CHUN Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, age 55, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from Peking University
in the PRC with a master’s degree in international relations and
has over 29 years of experience in the information technology
industry and investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman,
chief executive officer and a director of Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”), the
Company’s substantial shareholder. Prior to joining HSL in 2000,
Mr. Kui was the president of an enterprise in the PRC. He joined the
Group in 2000.

XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, age 52, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the Dalian University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in computer science and engineering. Mr. Xu
is also a director of HSL. Prior to joining the Group in 2003,
Mr. Xu was the president of a system integration company and
has extensive experience in computer systems integration of the
financial industry.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, age 57, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s
degree in law. He has over 29 years of experience in investment
and administrative affairs. Mr. Li is also a director of HSL. Prior to
joining HSL in 1999, he had worked for several companies in the
PRC and Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Li has also
been appointed as an executive director of PAX Global Technology
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company and a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 24 February
2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

XU CHANGJUN

Mr. Xu, age 54, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree
in international economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr.
Xu had worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.
He has over 29 years of experience in corporate management of
enterprises in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, age 58, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over 29
years” experience in auditing, corporate advisory services as well as
financial management and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently
an executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a
major red chip company) and an independent non-executive
director of KWG Property Holding Limited, both of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, age 64, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a
postgraduate certificate in laws from the University of Hong Kong.
He also obtained a Juris Doctor degree from the University of
Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong since 1984 and is now a partner of the law firm,
Messrs Foo, Leung & Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in
England and Wales and as a barrister, solicitor and notary public
in Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has extensive working experience
in law both in Hong Kong and in Canada. He served as a member
of the Inland Revenue Board of Review from 1997 to 2005 and
has been appointed as a China-appointed Attesting Officer since
January 2003. Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Flavors and Fragrances Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

CHANG KAI-TZUNG, RICHARD

Mr. Chang, age 66, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the University of Texas
at Austin, United States of America with a bachelor’s degree in
Statistics and Operations Research. Mr. Chang possesses more than
27 years of experience in electronic payments industry in Southeast
Asia, Japan and the Great China. Mr. Chang was the Senior
Vice President, Global Clients APCEMEA of VISA Inc. (“VISA”)
in Singapore. He was previously VISA’s Greater China General
Manager, Japan General Manager, and senior country manager for
Singapore, Thailand, the Philippines and Indochina. He joined the
Group in 2009 as a Non- Executive Director and was re-designated
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 26 February 2016.

o R e AR P

HEE

TR > 5458 BARBRITES - WEHENPEIIL
RAS FAREREBBRLT SR - N T —F0
AEEEF] > RAEBEBTERMZE AT B
PAEMMEERZ CEXEENERA_ TAFEEE

A
%nn o
AR

BIUFRTES

SEIRNE

BAEL 585 RMARBBIUIFRITESR REBERN
BEEIRS BEEHENEE T B BEER
BEEEMRAEEERFGFER DTS BN
ZE - REEBRBURMBEERERTE T BB
T NEEER - RAERBIRERARAE (—[
RAEZRE) 2HATEFRESHSHEZERARA
BIZBYIFNITES  ZME QB AR B P ER
LN T TMFEMALER -

RER

RELE 645% ) RERBBILFFRITEE REBERN
BEBRE WS ERELTRURERMELERE K
TREENMERALZ AR IS ERE LS
B—NN\HERR REESEBRER BLHE
RIGRMITZEBA R BERE BT8R
BERMERZABEE 2 KR RENRATA 2
TEDHEEBNMEAEEEE FRTFER-
—NNEEFEZTTAFRE WARB LHEES
ME TH_TZT=F-AEEZERTHEZEAR
A REERSTEERENERABD ZEILIF
HITES R ARRBIAFT L o I — T MEM
AREE-

KIEZ

RICE  665%  BANTBIIFRITE R RILER
ENERERERAZBETOR  FERRE
EZES B RILENTERME AAKRATEZE
FERMTERR — +CELR - RAES BEFHM
IVISA Inc. (TVISA ) FPAPCEMEAZ 2 IRE 2 S 4K E!
LA o 9 B HAEVISATS R TR EE R H AR 2 484538 5 UK.
VISAFAFI NI ~ 2260 SERB RENEX Iz S 4k &1,
BIB oW — T HEMASEREEIERITESE
TR _E—RNE_B _+ABREABILIENTE
go



HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Directors and Senior Management

e AR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Li Huimin, Mr. Liao Lizhi,
Mr. Liang Jing Jing, Mr. Liu Xiao Zhen, Mr. Zhao Yue Hui, Mr. Li Li
and Ms. Hui Lok Yan were the Company’s senior management.

LI HUIMIN

Mr. Li, age 41, is the president of BETTISZ(IBERAF (“VBIll
OPCQ”"). He graduated from Hubei University of Technology with
a bachelor’s degree in Electrical Technology. He joined the Group
in 2008. He has over 14 years of experience in third-party payment
industry management.

LIAO LIZHI

Mr. Liao, age 48, is the general manager of Hunan Hisun Mobile
Pay IT Ltd. He graduated from Renmin University of China with
a bachelor’s degree in Corporate Management and received a
master’s degree in Business Management from Sichuan University.
He joined the Group in 2005. He has over 14 years of experience
in the communication industry.

LIANG JING JING

Mr. Liang, age 39, is the president of Shenzhen Hi Sun FinTech
Global Limited. He graduated from Central South University
with a bachelor’s degree in Telecommunications Engineering and
received a master’s degree in Engineering Project Management from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University and a master’s degree in business
administration from China Europe International Business School. He
joined the Group in 2003. He has over 17 years of experience in
the information technology industry.

LIU XIAOZHEN

Mr. Liu, aged 38, is the president of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions Information Technology Limited. He graduated
from Shenzhen University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.
He joined the Group in 2004. He has over 16 years of experience
in the financial technology industry.

ZHAO YUE HUI

Mr. Zhao, age 56, is the chief executive officer of Hangzhou
PAX Electronic Technology Limited. He graduated from Zhejiang
University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, and received a
master’s degree in engineering from Tongji University. He has over
19 years of experience in corporate management. He joined the
Group in 2000.
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Mr. Li, age 45, is the president of Megahunt Technologies Inc.. He
graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering and a master’s degree in engineering. He also received
a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from China
Europe International Business School. He joined the Group in 2010.
He has over 23 years of experience in the integrated circuit design
industry.

HUI LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, age 42, is the Group Financial Controller and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. She graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration. Ms. Hui is currently a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in 2007, she was a manager
of an international public accountancy firm.
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Letter from the Board
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | would like to present to our
shareholders the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The world faced unprecedented challenges during Year 2020 as a
result of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Group has
adopted various prevention and control measures in accordance
with the relevant national and local regulations on epidemic
prevention and control in compliance with the national epidemic
prevention policies. At present, the COVID-19 control measures in
China have achieved substantial success and managed to effectively
quell the spread of the virus in the country. While Mainland China’s
economy has stabilized in many areas, with the COVID-19 vaccine
roll-out underway, we are cautiously optimistic about the direction
and scope of the country’s full recovery.

During Year 2020, consolidated revenue amounted to HK$4,143.4
million, as compared to HK$5,576.0 million in Year 2019. Such
decline was mainly contributed by a decrease in transaction
volume of the payment processing solutions segment as a result of a
shrinkage in offline consumer consumption of goods and services.
Operating profit totaled HK$653.1 million, 13% up compared to
Year 2019. Increase in operating profit of the Group for Year 2020
was primarily due to a significant increase in fair value gains on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the Convertible
Series C Preference Shares and Convertible Series D Preference
Shares of Cloopen Group Holding Limited (“Cloopen”) held by the
Group for Year 2020. The Board is pleased to announce that trading
in the ADSs of Cloopen on NYSE commenced on 9 February 2021
(New York time). Immediately upon completion of the offering of the
ADSs, the shareholding of the Company in Cloopen was diluted and
reduced to 17.10%.
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The Group’s share of results from an associated company, PAX
Global in Year 2020, increased by 45% as compared to Year
2019. Profit for the year totaled HK$779.1 million as compared to
HK$683.0 million in Year 2019. With regards to our balance sheet,
the total assets as at 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$9,717.1
million, as compared to HK$8,149.1 million as at 31 December
2019.

Combined with our strong financial position, management will
remain focused on financial and operation disciplines and take hold
of various opportunities for the Group in Year 2021. On behalf of
the Board, we would like to take this opportunity to express our
utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers, business
associates and most valued shareholders for their continuous trust
and support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND BUSINESS
OUTLOOK

Review of business performance of the Group during the reporting
year and the Group's business outlook are disclosed in the section
headed “Business Review” in the Report of the Directors.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group reported total assets of
HK$9,717.1 million (2019: HK$8,149.1 million), which were
financed by total liabilities of HK$3,349.6 million (2019:
HK$2,870.6 million) and total equity of HK$6,367.5 million (2019:
HK$5,278.5 million). The net asset value was HK$6,367.5 million
(2019: HK$5,278.5 million). Net assets per share amounted to
HK$2.293 as compared to HK$1.901 per share as at 31 December
2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and bank balances
of HK$4,628.0 million (2019: HK$4,384.1 million) and no short-
term borrowing (2019: HK$5.6 million). The net cash position was
HK$4,628.0 million as compared to HK$4,378.5 million as at 31
December 2019. The gearing ratio is calculated as total debt divided
by total capital, while total debt includes borrowing, lease liabilities
and written put option liability of the Group. The gearing ratio was
12.2% (2019: 12.4%). The gearing ratio is considered healthy and
suitable for the continuing growth of the Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no bank borrowing (2019:
HK$5.6 million) and banking facilities of approximately HK$25.9
million (2019: HK$17.8 million). The bank borrowing carried an
interest rate of 4.57% per annum as at 31 December 2019. As at
31 December 2020, the banking facilities were secured by the
leasehold land and buildings of a subsidiary of the Company, with a
net carrying amount of HK$2.8 million (2019: HK$2.7 million) and
HK$5.8 million (2019: HK$6.4 million), respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Approximately HK$3,251.7 million, HK$305.7 million, HK$998.2
million, HK$69.7 million, HK$2.5 million and HK$0.2 million of
the Group’s cash balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong
Kong Dollar, US Dollar, Japanese Yen, Macanese Pataca (“MOP”)
and Euro respectively as at 31 December 2020.

Approximately HK$3,002.7 million, HK$265.6 million, HK$997.0
million, HK$116.2 million and HK$2.6 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, US
Dollar, Japanese Yen and MOP respectively as at 31 December
2019.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Overall Financial Results
and Position” in the Report of Directors on page 33 and note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had no significant
investment held as at 31 December 2020.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2020.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and incurs
expenses denominated mainly in US Dollars, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollars. Currently, the Group has not entered into any
agreements or purchased any instruments to hedge the Group's
exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates
of Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi or Japanese Yen may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(A) Performance Guarantee Agreement with a customer

(B)

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with
a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance
of a service project by a subsidiary of the Company with a
surety of not more than HK$60,000,000 and to indemnify the
customer against any third-party claim of intellectual property
right infringement resulting from the acts of the said subsidiary.
The Performance Guarantee Agreement remained in full force
and effect during the year of 2020. As at 31 December 2020,
the Company did not recognise any liability in relation to the
Performance Guarantee Agreement as the Directors considered
the possibility of reimbursement not probable.

Guarantee Agreement with subsidiaries of the Company
(i) In 2019, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement

(the “2019 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement”) with

3 subsidiaries of the Company, in respect of the said

subsidiaries” payment obligations against a named
manufacturer. Pursuant to the 2019 Manufacturer
Guarantee Agreement, the Company shall guarantee to
repay the due and unsettled debts of the said subsidiaries
individually and/or collectively of up to US$10,000,000
incurred in relation to such manufacturing orders placed
against the named manufacturer by the said subsidiaries,
should any of them individually and/or collectively cease

or fail to honour its payment obligations.

(i) In 2020, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
(the “2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement”) with a subsidiary
of the Company and an independent manufacturer
(“OEM”), in respect of the said subsidiary’s payment
obligations against the OEM. Pursuant to the 2020 OEM
Guarantee Agreement, the Company shall guarantee to
repay the said subsidiary’s due and unsettled debts of up
to US$10,000,000 owed to the OEM which are incurred in
relation to such manufacturing orders the said subsidiary
placed against the OEM should it cease or fail to honour its
payment obligations.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2020 was 2,475. The breakdown of employees by division is as

"B B Z o YL 5 B

=]

ERR _EBE_ZE+_A=+t—HZREEEHA
2,475 N\ o B EZEFIM DU T -

follows:
Payment processing solutions SN BBRIERSE 818
Information security chips and solutions SRR KRS E 119
Platform operation solutions TREEMRAE 670
Financial solutions TRURR T E 582
Electronic power meters and solutions BAEStBEMMBIRT 234
Others H 12
Corporate office AR ER 40
2,475

The Group ensures that its employees’ remuneration packages
are comprehensive and competitive. Employees are remunerated
with fixed monthly income plus annual performance related
bonuses. The Group also operates certain share option schemes
for the purpose of attracting, retaining, motivating and rewarding
the employees. The Group also sponsors selected employees to
attend external training courses that suit the needs of the Group's
businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group's
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly
permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as
an alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating
performance of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from
operating activities as a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP
measures is provided solely to enhance the overall understanding
of the Group’s current financial performance. Additionally, as
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to
investors, the Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures
provides consistency in our financial reporting.
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The Directors hereby present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL
OPERATIONS

ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are provision of payment
processing solutions, sales of information security chips and
solutions, provision of platform operation solutions, provision
of financial solutions and sales of electronic power meters and
solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 108.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year (2019: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in notes 29 and 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented
employees for the future developments and expansion of the Group.
Eligible participants (the “Participants”) of the Scheme include any
full-time employees, directors of the Company, any subsidiary or
associated company. The Scheme became effective on 29 April
2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
valid and effective for a period of 10 years therefrom until 29 April
2021.

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme, and any other share option schemes of the Company, shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the relevant class of securities of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme unless
the Company obtains a fresh approval from the Shareholders.

The maximum number of Shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of all exercised and outstanding options granted to each
Participant shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the relevant class
of securities of the Company in issue in any 12-month period. Any
further grant of options in excess of the aforesaid 1% limit shall be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders with such Participant
and his/her associates abstaining from voting.

As at the date of this annual report, 267,342,983 Shares are
available for issue under the Scheme, representing approximately
9.63% of the total number of Shares in issue.

The exercise period of the options granted is determined at the
discretion of the Board and in any event shall commence on the
date of the offer of the options (the “Offer Date”) and expire within
10 years therefrom.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and no performance target must be
achieved by the grantee before the option can be exercised.

A share option shall take effect when duly accepted by the grantee
and the Company having received HK$1 from the grantee as
consideration for the grant within 21 days after the offer.
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The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the Offer Date, which must be a day on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in securities (“Trading
Day”); (ii) a price being the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five Trading Days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and up to the date
of this annual report, there was no outstanding share option of
the Company granted under the Scheme. No share option of the
Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Further details of the Scheme can be found in the circular of the
Company dated 28 March 2011.

Share Option Scheme of Vbill (Cayman)

VBill Limited (“VBill (Cayman)”) adopted a share option scheme
(the “VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme”),which complies
with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, on 16 October 2020, which
became effective on 18 November 2020.

The purpose of the VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme is to
enable VBill (Cayman) to grant options (the “VBill (Cayman)
Option(s)”) to selected participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the VBill (Cayman)
and its subsidiaries (“VBill (Cayman) Group”). Eligible participants
(the “VBill (Cayman) Participant(s)”) include any director, senior
management and employee of the Company and the VBill (Cayman)
Group.

Unless otherwise amended or terminated, the VBill (Cayman) Share
Option Scheme will be effective for a period of 10 years from 18
November 2020 until 18 November 2030.

The principal terms of the VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

The total number of shares of VBill (Cayman) (the “VBill (Cayman)
Shares”) which may be allotted and issued to the grantees upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the VBill (Cayman) Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of VBill
(Cayman) shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the VBill (Cayman)
Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the VBill (Cayman) Share
Option Scheme, unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from
the Shareholders.
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The total number of VBill (Cayman) Shares issued and which may
fall to be issued to each VBill (Cayman) Participant upon exercise
of the options granted under the VBill (Cayman) Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the VBill (Cayman)
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the number of VBill (Cayman)
Shares in issue, unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders
with such VBill (Cayman) Participant and his close associates (or
his associates if such participant is a connected person) abstaining
from voting. For VBill (Cayman) Options granted or to be granted
to any substantial Shareholder, independent non-executive Director
or their respective associates, the said limit shall be reduced to
0.1% of the number of VBill (Cayman) Shares in issue. Any further
grant of VBill (Cayman) Options in excess of such limit is subject
to Shareholders’ approval at general meeting, with the relevant
participant concerned, his associates and all core connected
persons of the Company abstaining from voting.

As at the date of this annual report, 930.8 VBill (Cayman) Shares
were available for issue under the VBill (Cayman) Share Option
Scheme, representing 10% of the total number of VBill (Cayman)
Shares in issue.

The exercise period of a VBill (Cayman) Option is to be determined
by the board of directors of VBill (Cayman), which shall not be
beyond 10 years from the date of grant.

There is no minimum period for which a VBill (Cayman) Option
must be held nor any performance targets must be achieved by a
grantee before a VBill (Cayman) Option can be exercised, subject
to VBill (Cayman)’s board of directors” discretion, on a case-by-case
basis or generally, to impose such conditions, such as minimum
performance targets and other terms as they consider appropriate.

Upon acceptance of the grant of a VBill (Cayman) Option, the
grantee shall, within 7 days after the grant, pay HK$1.00 to VABill
(Cayman) as nominal consideration for the grant.

The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be a price to
be determined by the board of directors of VBill (Cayman) in its
absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the relevant VBill
(Cayman) Option, with reference to factors which may include
the business performance, value of VBill (Cayman) Group and
individual performance of the relevant grantee, but in any event, the
subscription price shall not be less than the net asset value of the
interests of VBill (Cayman) subject to the relevant option calculated
from the latest audited accounts of VBill (Cayman).
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, no VBill (Cayman)
Option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme. As at 1 January 2020, 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report, there was
no outstanding share option granted under the VBill (Cayman) Share
Option Scheme.

Further details of VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme can be
found in the circular of the Company dated 28 October 2020.

Share Option Scheme of VBill OPCO

VBill OPCO adopted a share option scheme (“VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme”), which complies with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules, on 15 January 2018 which became effective on 5 February
2018.

The purpose of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme is to enable
VBill OPCO to grant options of equity interest of VBill OPCO (“VBill
OPCO Options”) to selected participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to VBill OPCO and its
subsidiaries (“VBill OPCO Group”). Eligible participants of the VABill
OPCO Share Option Scheme include any directors, supervisors,
general managers and other employees of any member of VBill
OPCO Group.

Unless otherwise amended or terminated, the VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme will be effective for a period of 6 years from 5
February 2018 until 5 February 2024.

The principal terms of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

The total registered capital of VBill OPCO (“VBill OPCO Registered
Capital”) which may be contributed by grantees upon the exercise
of all options to be granted under the VBill OPCO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of VBill OPCO shall
not in aggregate exceed RMB19,990,000, being 10% of the VBill
OPCO Registered Capital as at the date of approval of the VBill
OPCO Share Option Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from the Shareholders. On 5 February 2018, ordinary
resolutions were passed by the Shareholders which allowed VBill
OPCO to grant VBill OPCO Options to certain grantees. The
exercise of such options in full will render VBill OPCO Registered
Capital to be increased by RMB27,259,000, representing 13.64%
and 12% of the VBill OPCO Registered Capital as at 5 February
2018 and as enlarged by the exercise of VBill OPCO Options in full.
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The maximum VBill OPCO Registered Capital contributed and to
be contributed upon exercise of the VBill OPCO Options granted
to each participant of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding VBill OPCO Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the VBill OPCO
Registered Capital, unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders
with such participant and his close associates (or his associates if
such participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting. For
VBill OPCO Options granted or to be granted to any substantial
Shareholder, independent non-executive Director, or their respective
associates, the said limit shall be reduced to 0.1% of the VBill
OPCO Registered Capital. Any further grant of VBill OPCO Options
in excess of such limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval at
general meeting, with the relevant participant(s) concerned and all
core connected persons of the Company abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of VBill OPCO Share Options shall be
determined by VBill OPCO'’s board of directors at the time of the
grant, which initially shall not be beyond 5 years from the date of
grant. The Shareholders approved certain amendments with respect
to the exercise period of the VBill OPCO Options at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 18 November 2020,
pursuant to which the exercise period of (i) VBill OPCO Options
to be granted under the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme is
extended from not beyond 5 years to not beyond 6 years from the
date of grant; and (ii) the VBill OPCO Options previously granted is
extended from 3 years to 6 years from the date of grant.

There is no minimum period for which a VBill OPCO Option
must be held nor any performance targets must be achieved by
a grantee before a VBill OPCO Option can be exercised, subject
to VBill OPCO'’s board of directors’ discretion, on a case-by-case
basis or generally, to impose such conditions, such as minimum
performance targets and other terms as they consider appropriate.

Each grantee shall, within 7 days after the grant, pay RMB1 to VBill
OPCO upon acceptance of the VBill OPCO Options granted.

The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be determined
by the board of directors of VBill OPCO in its absolute discretion
at the time of the grant of the VBill OPCO Option, with reference
to factors which may include the business performance, value of
VBill OPCO Group and the grantee’s individual performance, but in
any event, shall not be less than the net asset value of the relevant
equity interests of VBill OPCO subject to the VBill OPCO Option
calculated based on the latest audited accounts of VBill OPCO.
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The subscription price of VBill OPCO Options granted after the
Company would have resolved to seek a separate listing of VBill
OPCO on the Main Board or Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange or an overseas stock exchange and up to the listing
date of VBill OPCO must be not lower than the new issue price
(if any). In particular, any VBill OPCO Options that would have
been granted during the period commencing six months before the
lodgement of Form A1 (or its equivalent for listing on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange or the overseas stock
exchange) up to the listing date of VBill OPCO would be subject to
this requirement.

The following table sets out the movements of the VBill OPCO
Options during the year ended 31 December 2020:

KRB RS REET AT B P EARUGEMEL &
INEFRBRARIT EHBREERTN ETEER Fr
RHPIBEITBREZDEENSENIETE W
B) - LHRE > FIERZAIRE S B3 FRGEMEL S5
BHERX S LB AI7NE R RBEERET
i BB AR R 2 E AT AR AR T
ZIRTE

TRJIBE_T_FE+_A=+—HILFER
TR 28 -

Amount of VBill OPCO Registered Capital subject to the VBill OPCO Options

REETIRRERRNOBETIHRREESE

Exercise
price
(for every
RMB1.00 in the Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
VBill OPCO as at Granted Exercised cancelled as at
Registered 1 January during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Capital) 2020 the year the year the year 2020
T1EfE
(EfTfism RZFZEE RZE_FF
RERE —A—-H ER%Y/ +ZA=+—H
ERA R A AE#1.007T) RETR FREH FRETE i RETE
RMB RMB RMB
N AR N
Mr. Shen Zheng (“Mr. Shen”) 5 February 2018 12.51 13,629,500 = = = 13,629,500
BEsEE (TRkL) “Z-)\#”ZRxH
Mr. Li Huimin (“Mr. Li") 5 February 2018 12.51 6,814,750 - - - 6,814,750
REEsE ((RE%E) —2—/\#ZAIA
Mr. Guo Yi (“Mr. Guo”) 5 February 2018 12.51 6,814,750 - - - 6,814,750
PEKE (TR “E-)\¥”"H1H
Total: 27,259,000 - - - 27,259,000
At




Mr. Shen is a director and the chairman of the board of VBill OPCO
and a director of certain members of the VBill OPCO Group. Mr.
Li is the chief executive officer of VBill OPCO and the supervisor
of a member of the VBill OPCO Group. Mr. Guo is the senior vice
president of VBill OPCO.

As at the date of this annual report, no more VBill OPCO Options
are available for issue unless Shareholders” approval is obtained.

Further details of VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme can be found
in the circulars of the Company dated 19 January 2018 and 28
October 2020.

Share Option Scheme of Megahunt

Megahunt Technologies Inc. (“Megahunt”), adopted a share option
scheme (“Megahunt Share Option Scheme”), which complies with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, on 4 July 2018 which became
effective on 10 August 2018. Certain terms of the Megahunt Share
Options Scheme were amended by the Shareholders at general
meeting held on 27 June 2019, details of which are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 6 June 2019.

The purpose of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme (as amended) is
to enable Megahunt to grant options of equity interest of Megahunt
(“Megahunt Options”) to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to Megahunt
and to provide the selected participants with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in Megahunt and to encourage them to
work towards enhancing the value of equity interests in Megahunt
for the benefit of Megahunt and its shareholder(s) as a whole.
Eligible participants of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme include
the directors or senior management of the Company, Megahunt or
its subsidiaries.

Unless otherwise amended or terminated, the Megahunt Share
Option Scheme will be effective for a period of 5 years from 10
August 2018 until 10 August 2023.

The total registered capital of Megahunt (“Megahunt Registered
Capital”) which may be contributed by the grantees upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Megahunt Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of Megahunt shall
not exceed HK$1,500,000, being 10% of the Megahunt Registered
Capital as at the date of approval of the Megahunt Share Option
Scheme, unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from the
Shareholders.
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The maximum Megahunt Registered Capital contributed and to
be contributed upon exercise of the Megahunt Options granted
to each participant of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding Megahunt Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Megahunt
Registered Capital, unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders
with such participant and his close associates (or his associates
if such participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.
For options granted or to be granted to a substantial Shareholder,
an independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates, the said limit is reduced to 0.1% of the Megahunt
Registered Capital. Any further grant of options in excess of such
limit is subject to Shareholders” approval at general meeting, with
the participant concerned and all core connected persons of the
Company abstain from voting.

The exercise period of the Megahunt Options shall be determined
by the board of directors of Megahunt at the time of making the
offer of the Megahunt Options and in any event shall not be beyond
10 years from the relevant date of grant.

Although there is no general requirement for any minimum period
for which any Megahunt Option must be held or any performance
targets which must be achieved before any Megahunt Option
granted can be exercised, the board of directors of Megahunt has
discretion on a case-by-case basis or generally to impose such
conditions, including (i) minimum periods for which the Megahunt
Option must be held; and/or (i) minimum performance targets that
must be reached before the Megahunt Options can be exercised
in whole or in part; and/or (iii) such other terms on the Megahunt
Options where appropriate. At the special general meeting of the
Company held on 30 December 2019, the Shareholders approved
amendments to terms of the Megahunt Options granted on 3 June
2019, pursuant to which such previously granted Megahunt Options
became vested and exercisable with immediate effect from 30
December 2019.

Each grantee shall, within 7 days of the grant, pay HK$1 to
Megahunt upon acceptance of the Megahunt Options granted.

The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be a price
to be determined by the board of directors of Megahunt in its
absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the relevant Megahunt
Options with reference to factors which may include the business
performance, value of Megahunt and performance of the individual
grantee.
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The subscription price of Megahunt Options granted after the
Company would have resolved to seek a separate listing of
Megahunt on the Main Board or Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange or an overseas stock exchange and up to the listing
date of Megahunt must be not lower than the new issue price (if
any). In particular, any Megahunt Options that would have been
granted during the period commencing six months before the
lodgement of Form A1l (or its equivalent for listing on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange or the overseas stock
exchange) up to the listing date of Megahunt would be subject to
this requirement.

As at the date of this annual report, no further Megahunt Options
remained outstanding and no further registered capital of Megahunt
was available for issue under the Megahunt Share Option Scheme.

As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, there was no outstanding share option granted under
the Megahunt Share Option Scheme. No Megahunt Option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Megahunt Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Further details of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme can be found
in the circulars of the Company dated 11 July 2018, 6 June 2019
and 10 December 2019.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as calculated under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to HK$13,728,000
(2019: deficit of HK$11,207,000). The Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$1,290,857,000 (2019:
HK$1,290,857,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 246.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any Shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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BUSINESS REVIEW X0
CONDENSED SEGMENT RESULTS ANALYSIS RABR Y EREE DR
Turnover EBITDA?
e EBITDA’
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIEF  E-NE ZEIEE  CTE-NE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[z TAERT TER TET TR
Payment processing solutions TARBRERARE 1 3,266,207 4,672,640 822,248 1,160,533
Information security chips and solutions ERREDAMRAAZR 2 298,753 290,010 8,695 29,639
Platform operation solutions TREERAFE 3 176,873 196,302 3,864 (11,672)
Financial solutions SRRARZR 4 271,487 302,223 (33,494) (6,081)
Electronic power meters and solutions BRI EERKEARE 5 138,289 116,277 5,595 (12,232)
Segmental results NEEEE 4,151,609 5,577,452 806,908 1,160,187
Less: Inter-segment turnover BN EREER (8,238) (1,471) - -
Total At 4,143,371 5,575,981 806,908 1,160,187
Depreciation e (248,705) (383,595)
Amortisation i (1,925) (112)
Write off of property, plant and equipment s BRE KRR E (26,156) (94,701)
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value ~ BATEFABHZ EMEEZ
through profit or loss AT ERR B 245,866 22,215
Employees’ incentive programmes of a subsidiary —fIfBAE 2 RERENEHE C (40,191) (30,303)
Segmental operating profit PNEEEER 735,797 673,691
Unallocated other income KOBEEMUA 6,798 8,624
Unallocated corporate expenses FPEEERR (89,545) (104,142)
Operating profit KaE 653,050 578,173
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT  fBRAR S UREE R
2020 2019
it Sl 23 “ENE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THT FHT
Revenue ON A 4,143,371 5,575,981
Cost of sales HEME C (3,037,741) (4,254,553)
Gross profit EF 1,105,630 1,321,428
Other income HtA B 153,759 116,842
Other gains, net Hitta 328 B 245,300 22,040
Selling expenses HERY C (92,654) (82,266)
Administrative expenses THER C (651,618) (720,768)
Employees’ incentive programmes of a subsidiary —BNE AT 2 EEREEE C (40,191) (30,303)
Credit impairment loss, net EEREGESE C (67,176) (48,800)
Operating profit ESpeyll 653,050 578,173
Finance costs BEMK 0 (63,722) (10,245)
Share of results of investments accounted for using BB ENRZREZ £ D
the equity method 301,512 208,695
Loss on deemed acquisition and dilution of an investment RFEREE BN EARZ
accounted for using the equity method REMEEE (1,044) -
Profit before income tax BRETSI AT RN 889,796 776,623
Income tax expense FrimEx (110,655) (93,656)
Profit for the year FEREH 779,141 682,967
Profit attributable to: A RA:
— Owners of the Company VNS 2PN 656,685 569,111
— Non-controlling interests —JFERER 122,456 113,856
799,141 682,967
Earnings per share for profit attributable to . YNGIE £ PN HKS per share HKS per share
the owners of the Company: Bz SRER shiEn BkER
Basic YN 0.236 0.205
Diluted e 0.206 0.190

EARFFIS T W RIE I E R ET] (§518) > kT
BIEMIEYE BB AR E  BATESFABEZSRE
EZATERGER—ENBARZ ES2EE8l-

: Represents earnings/(losses) before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation #
and amortisation, and excludes write off of property, plant and equipment,
fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
employees’ incentive programmes of a subsidiary.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GRS EERER
As at 31 December
®+=ZB=+—~H
2020 2019
ZZCEE -y K5
Note HKS/000 HK$000
Mk TAT TAT
ASSETS BE
Investment properties and property, plant and equipment BRENERNE -BERRE E 388,537 385,834
Right-of-use assets FHES F 81,655 88,501
Intangible assets BREE 11,231 2,065
Deferred income tax assets FLFREREE 17 119
Investments accounted for using the equity method DCEIN P2 (@ 2,404,813 2,106,737
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATESABRZ SMEE H 543,040 289,918
Inventories et | 121,445 95,651
Trade and bills receivables BICE S RN E R J 273,894 212,174
Other financial assets at amortised cost and other current assets Tﬁﬁiﬁﬁizﬁﬁrgzﬁf’ﬂ%nﬂﬁé& J
fméﬂ S E 183,240 168,715
Loan receivables WEZ K 1,043,079 385,128
Amounts due from investments accounted for using the equity method J@ﬂﬂ&m&?\gﬁzﬁ BZHE L 19,957 19,970
Current income tax recoverable o] Wl B EAFR S 1 11,990 10,007
Bank deposits fE TER M 6,181 147
Restricted bank balances and cash and cash equivalents E%Jﬁﬁ?ﬂ FURRERREEEY M 4,628,020 4,384,102
Total assets BELE 9,717,099 8,149,068
EQUITY fEa
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company ZK’RTﬁﬁAFETE BExRf#fE
Share capital PRz 6,942 6,942
Reserves it 5,535,124 4,680,106
h 5,542,066 4,687,048
Non-controlling interests JFERER 825,438 591,464
Total equity e 6,367,504 5,278,512
LIABILITIES g
Written Jaut option liabilities B EER 0 831,207 683,908
Deferred income tax liabilities RILFEREE 371 522
Trade and bills payables ERRRENEE N 526,804 439,287
Payables for payment processing solutions business TARFEERAL REBZ EATIEB N 828,619 599,389
Other payables and accruals ﬁiﬂﬂﬁé@fﬂ%@ﬁﬁ&?@gﬁfﬂ B N 1,013,991 1,029,432
Amounts due to investments accounted for using the equity method BT LUER E AR Z R E 2 28 L 43,936 21,226
Current income tax liabilities MBS Ras 51,189 31,905
Lease liabilities HEaR F 53,478 59,310
Borrowing & S 5,577
Total liabilities afERsE 3,349,595 2,870,556
Total equity and liabilities Rk aREE 9,717,099 8,149,068
HKS$ per share HKS per share
AT SRET
Net assets per share SREEFE 2293 1.901
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT RS SIRERER

For the _rear ended 31 December

B=1+—HLEE

2020 2019

-2 3 ZZ-NF

HKS'000 HKS'000

TERT TER

Net cash generated from operating activities LEEDMEHERR 100,932 1,254,462
Netcashused in imvesting actvities REEMFARERE . G770 N (805,586) _
Net cash generated from financing activities | MAEBAERERR 0204 640466

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents EEE&EEEQE{EW (: ) /HmEE (126,488) 1,089,342

Cash and cash equivalents at be; gmnmg of the year FNzReRREERE 3,712,567 2,681,475

Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and cash equivalents Iﬁ%&lﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ZERuﬂlm/ (E518) 161,389 (58,250)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ERZAERREEEY 3,747,468 3,712,567




FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2020 (“YEAR 2020”), the
consolidated turnover of the Group amounted to HK$4,143.4
million, representing a decrease of 26% when compared with the
year ended 31 December 2019 (“YEAR 2019”). Profit for the year
totaled HK$779.1 million as compared to HK$683.0 million in
YEAR 2019, representing an increase of 14%.

With regard to the balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$9,717.1 million, when compared with
HK$8,149.1 million as at 31 December 2019. As at 31 December
2020, net current assets amounted to HK$3,778.5 million, when
compared with HK$3,120.1 million as at 31 December 2019.

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW

(1) Payment processing solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* =EZEY
EBITDA? EBITDA?
— Including credit impairment loss —— &% 15 & (B8
Employees’ incentive programme ~ — &I B AR Z BB
of a subsidiary 2Rt

Write off of property, WIS ZE ~ BB Rt
plant and equipment
Operating profit gEE

* Turnover from external customers

Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, excludes write off of property, plant and equipment and
employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary
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FAF5[olRE

REEZZF+_A=1+—HIEFE(ZZZ
TEE))  AEBZIREEEEEAS,143,400,0008
TTREEZE-NEFE+ZA=+—HIEFE(ZZE
—HEE)) B26% FpmF]&+H%779,100,000
B M — N FER]%683,000,0007E 7T 10
14%o©

WEEAGRMs N _Z-_ZF+_A=+—081"
BEMER9,717,100,0008 T M _E—NE
+ B =+—HE8%8,149,100,000/8c N T &
F+A=1+—H > REEFER3,778,500,000
Br MR _E—AE+_B=+—HEA
3,120,100,000% 7T
SRR
(1) EARGREBRAFTE
BXIIEIE
2020 2019 Change
—EBEHf T— N4 EE)
HK$’000 HK$’000 +(-)
FET TFET
3,266,207 4,672,640 -30%
822,248 1,160,533 -29%
67,026 44,124 +52%
40,191 = N/A 78 FB
26,156 94,701 -72%
524,894 696,466 -25%

* RBEIBIERZEXE

EREFI B M RIE T EREHER R F81E
WEEME BERRFER—ENB AR EEER
st
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Segmental turnover amounted to HK$3,266.2 million, as
compared to HK$4,672.6 million in YEAR 2019. By end
of YEAR 2020, there were over 3,300,000 active domestic
merchant and the monthly transaction volume in December
2020 was approximately RMB130 billion. Segmental operating
profit amounted to HK$524.9 million, 25% down as compared
to YEAR 2019. The decrease in segmental operating profit is
primarily attributable to the material decline in segmental
turnover. Transaction volume being processed through this
segment dropped significantly as a result of a decline in offline
consumer consumption of goods and services due to the
effects of the COVID-19 outbreak and epidemic prevention
and control measures. Increase in credit impairment loss was
mainly due to additional impairment loss provision on long
aged loan receivables under the micro-leading business.

Share option expenses were attributable to the extension of
the exercise period of share options granted by a subsidiary of
the Company under the payment processing solution segment
in February 2018. Please refer to the circular of the Company
dated 28 October 2020 and the announcement of the
Company dated 16 October 2020 for further details.

—NEE%A4,672,600,0008 L R _E =
TEEXRHERARF #GEIE3,300,000
PR _E_EFE+_BREXRZHE
HNBANREL300B T D EAKERNA
524,900,000t B _E—NFERD
25% o DB E B FR /LD EERRER 48
EEEAERD - BEZOERENRZE
FCOVID-19% 1518 5 K B 15 M 18 i R 52
BENE T HEERMRFEHER LM
Kigglb o EEREBBEMEEZEHINN
EERER I REREERKERT R EESE
BRI o

BRERXDEEARETRADXNRZBRE
BABESERT—BRBATNR _-F
—N\EZARENBRENTERLER A
BE—FFF FR2RARATNEAA TS
ZE+RA-+N\BHNBRAREILTBHRS
S o R VAN S YN G



(2) Information security chips and solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* EEZEY

EBITDA? EBITDA?

Employees’ incentive programme ~ —RiMfiB AT =~
of a subsidiary EELEENETE

Operating profit/(loss) rgEEd, (518

& Turnover from external customers

id Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, and excludes employees’ incentive programme of a
subsidiary

During the year, segmental turnover amounted to HK$298.8
million as compared to HK$290.0 million in YEAR 2019.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$2.1 million, as
compared to segmental operating loss HK$3.1 million in YEAR
2019. Increase in segmental operating profit was mainly due to
the fact that no share option expense was recognised in YEAR
2020 while partially net-off by the increase in staff cost.

2
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EREEBTRRBRSGE

FEXIFIEEZ

2020 2019 Change
_ECEHE —E—hEF =)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

FHET FET
298,753 290,010 +3%
8,695 29,639 71%
- 30,303 N/A 78 B
2,074 (3,098) N/A 73 FB

* RBEINDERZEEE

o ERSHREE MIEMTEREHERI R KT e
E—ENE AR EERE S

FER DFEE2EEE4298,800,000/870 M _&
— HEE %290,000,0007 7T ° D EBAZEH R A
2,100,000 0 M2 — N FEADFELKE
&5183,100,00078 70 DB E R AL N EE
HRZESFEURERNEREMS B
W E T ARG ANFT g8 o
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(3) Platform operation solutions

Key performance indicators

Turnover* EEEh

EBITDA? EBITDA?

Fair value gains on AT EFABT@Z
financial assets at fair value ETMEEZAFE
through profit or loss g

Operating profit S =yl

& Turnover from external customers

: Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, and excludes fair value gains on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

In YEAR 2020, we continued to provide high-quality and
efficient supporting services, such as product development,
business operation and system maintenance, to China Mobile
Fintech, the IVR Base of China Mobile and the Animation
Base of China Mobile. During the year, segmental turnover
amounted to HK$168.6 million as compared to HK$194.8
million in YEAR 2019. Segmental operating profit amounted
to HK$244.7 million as compared to HK$5.1 million in YEAR
2019, which is mainly due to a significant increase in fair value
gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for
the Convertible Series C Preference Shares and Convertible
Series D Preference Shares of Cloopen Group Holding Limited
held by the Group for YEAR 2020.

Q) FREEMREE

FTEXRLTIEIE

2020 2019 Change
—s-3F —T-nE )
HK$'000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FET TET
168,635 194,831 -13%
3,864 (11,672) N/A T3
245,866 22,215 +1,007%
244,711 5,130 +4.670%

* RBINEIERZEXE

EARETFI BRI T E KB ERN RS
BRATESARZZ EMEEZ AT ERT

A ZECEEE RMBEATEER R
BIVREM K AR e B E MR HEE MW
SRS ERMBE EBEERRMEE-
FR DIEEEEEA168,600,0008T M2
—NEERI%A194,800,00078 77 c DB E
F)7%5244,700,0008 70 M_Z— N EELB
5,100,000 70 LA EFEHRMAERR S
ZEFERTRFACloopen Group Holding Limited
ZCRI AR RIB IR MDA Y el A B i i%
REEFABG EMEEZ A TFERGEE
I INPTER °



4)

(5)

Financial solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* =E$0h
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating loss FES ) SEi

* Turnover from external customers

During the year, segmental turnover amounted to HK$271.5
million, as compared to HK$302.2 million in YEAR 2019.
Segmental operating loss totaled HK$38.5 million, as
compared to HK$9.6 million in YEAR 2019. The decrease in
segmental turnover and the increase in segmental operating
loss were mainly due to the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak
as the nationwide interruption of normal business operation
caused by the epidemic prevention and control measures had
hindered the Group's ability to deliver its on-site services to its
customers.

Electronic power meters and solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* I=EZEl
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit/(loss) rERF, (B8

& Turnover from external customers

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$138.3 million, as
compared to HK$116.3 million in YEAR 2019. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$2.7 million, as compared to
a segmental operating loss of HK$15.2 million in YEAR 2019,
due to the implementation of various measures to stream line
the cost and improve operating efficiency.

(5)
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@) ERBRAER

FEXIGIEE
2020 2019 Change
_ECEH “E2—hF gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 +(-)

FHT TET

271,487 302,223 -10%
(33,494) (6,081) N/A & B
(38,533) (9,606) N/A & B

* RBEIBERZEXE

FERN DFEEEREA271,500,000870 M _&
—NEERA302,200,00078 70 o D EELALE F518
£3£7338,500,00087° M_E—NEERA
9,600,00078 7T © D FEE ERE R/ R D FEACE RS
BN EBHPCOVID-198 15183 g 2
B FRRB B EEIE < 2B P —ik
B WEBAEEBE A IMRBREN
AEJJe

Bt EEMMBRSG R

FERTIERFE

2020 2019 Change
—ZTE2f “E-hEF by
HK$’000 HK$'000 +(-)

FHET FHE7T
138,289 116,277 +19%
5,595 (12,232) N/A & B
2,651 (15,201) N/A & B

* REINDERZEEE

FEEA116,300,0008 50 DELE H A
2,700,000870 M2 — N FEADFELE
E54815,200,00078 7T > LETH RIS BT 2 A8 HE HE L
TER R AS Ko iR S A T 3R o

31



32

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Report of the Directors

HPEFWS

OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

(A)

(B)

©

Revenue

The consolidated turnover amounted to HK$4,143.4 million,
representing a decrease of 26% over YEAR 2019. Such
decrease was mainly contributed by a decline in segmental
turnover of our payment processing solutions segment. Please
also refer to Notes (1) to (5) above on segmental performance.

Other income and other gains, net

Increase in other income was due to an increase in interest
income during the year. Increase in other gains, net mainly
resulted from significant increase in fair values gains on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the
Convertible Series C Preference Shares and Convertible Series
D Preference Shares of Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(“Cloopen”) held by the Group for YEAR 2020. Please also refer
to Note (H) for further details.

Cost of sales and operating expenses

Decrease in cost of sales was primarily due to decrease in
commission paid to merchant recruitment agents in relation to
our payment processing solutions segment, which was in line
with the decline in segmental turnover.

Increase in selling expenses was attributable to the fact that
additional selling effort was placed for business recovery,
especially in the second half of YEAR 2020, while the
COVID-19 control measures in Mainland China is successful
to a substantial extent, managing to sufficiently suppress the
spread of the virus in the country.

Decrease in administrative expenses during YEAR 2020 was
mainly due to declines in staff cost and staff related expenses.
Share option expenses of approximately HK$40.2 million in
YEAR 2020 was attributable to the share option expenses under
the payment processing solutions segment given the extension
of the exercise period of share options granted by a subsidiary.

Credit impairment loss was primarily due to provision for
impairment loss on loan receivables of HK$67.0 million under
the micro-lending business of payment processing solutions
segment.

(A)

(B)

©

Eg j%ﬁz%n,\&ﬂklﬁ

KA

4B EERE A4 143,400,000 70 IR E—HE
ERI26%  BRIRLD EBRPEZAR %Eﬁﬁﬁ;@
R E ﬁ@Zﬁ*EM%%E/UZ"\FEﬂZC’UTE%@E@
EXHEMZEGZ PEERE

H A A R H thi o 7B 88

HAth i A LGN 75 B H E R F) B W ALE N -
iR B EE N EE EEﬁA?'/tZliﬁﬁﬁ\_v_
ZFEEFTRFACloopen Group Holding Limited
(TCloopen 1) Z CRF| I ME I KD Z 5 7]
BMREARBRATESF ARG EREEZ A
Fadkm ﬁﬁ%i‘ﬂﬂﬁﬁx& ERE—DFIE 775
2RI EEH

HEMAREERX
SHE AR D TEHN MR EIERRT
ENEABER R AES IR EEREL  thE
DI —E

THERZIEILBRENINAHEE DEUIREZE
B LHER S _ZEET¥E ERFTH
jtF*EUCOVlDwBJﬁ%’E? TR AREE _ LEIEAY
I /ORDBEIREEERNEIL

TECEEE - THEBRARLBEIERNRET
AR ETHBERSZ VAR -RIEIEE
FE R BE AR HERE = 49 7540,200,00078 7T » THER AR
—RNEAREHNERETEHREIER
FENRGEERRASEDEBE TNELBRE
Bz o

EEREBENDTERNSINARSERERRS
ZNEB NN NEERER ZENETRES
18 567,000,00078 T2



(D) Share of results of investments accounted for using the

(E)

(F)

(G

~

equity method

Amount mainly represented share of the results of PAX
Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), an associated
company of the Company, the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. PAX Global is principally engaged in
the development and sales of E-payment Terminal products
and provision of maintenance and installation services. As
an ordinary shareholder of Cloopen, an associated company
of the Group, the Group’s share of loss exceeded its interest
in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, and there was no overall
financial impact on the consolidated income statement from
the investment for the year.

Investment properties and property, plant and
equipment

Balance mainly represented fixed assets of payment processing
solutions and electronic power meter and solutions segments.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Balance represented leases which are recognised as a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Balance mainly represented the Group’s interests in PAX
Global. As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the Group's
approximately 33.3% effective interest in PAX Global was
approximately HK$2,467.9 million, representing approximately
25.4% of the total assets of the Company as at 31 December
2020. An impairment test was performed to determine the
recoverable amount of the investment. The recoverable amount,
which was assessed by an independent valuer on a value-in-
use basis using the discounted cash flow model, exceeds the
carrying value as at 31 December 2020.

The Group's effective interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen,
calculated based on all issued and outstanding ordinary shares
of Cloopen which are held by the Group, was 46.8%. As at
31 December 2020, the Group’s share of loss of Cloopen
exceeded its interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, and
there was no overall financial impact on the consolidated
income statement from the investment for the year. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in the ordinary shares of Cloopen was zero and the fair value
of the Group’s interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen was
approximately HK$1,900.5 million.

The Group is optimistic about the future prospects of these
companies and will continue to demonstrate prudence
and resilience in assessing its investment strategy towards
the enhancement of Shareholders’ value. Details of these
investments are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
information.

(D)

(B)

(F)

(®)
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FEAE B REARZIREZ EE

ERERIBENEARDZHEATBER
KR ARAR (EEEEK » BB R BAT
E) 2 EE - BERKTIENEHERHEER
FI AR IR E &R » DUBAR AR ;e ZER AR TS - 1F
#Cloopen (BAEEZMENT) 2B BRR
R AEEBGBERBBEANCloopenEBRZ
B MBERBEN T FER GG @RI
EEMBEE-

REMERME -BERRE

ERIBIER NS RIERRAT B KRB
BERBRBADEDBZEEEE-

ERAEEEREEGRE
HRENTREEERHAERERZ BHIRER
SERREERMEEaENEE

UERZEARZEE
ERTFEIEAEEN BRI ESE RN _T
TEF+ A=+ AEEREBRIKY
33.3%ERER 2 AT EHNA2,467,900,0007%8
T NERATR _E_EF+_H=+—H
BEAEN25 4% ETREAREEETHRE
ZAWEIRE R E_BFE+_A=+—H>
BE S hERM IR R EEEET G IR AR
RERBEEFE 2 AW CIE EBEREE

AR EEFTFCloopen2® B BT R B TIEIMNE
EIRETE ) NEE P Cloopeny LBR B R
7346.8% M _E_TE+"_H=+—H &%
E FE {LCloopenf518iBi1B H A CloopenZ B 2
e MEZIER B R A FEHE S N R &
BEGSEE - N R EFE+ A =+—H"
REE K CloopenB B 2 #HEEERZ M
KREEP Cloopenz @R 2 A AT ENS
1,900,500,0007 7T ©

AEBHZENTNRKFSIFEBREE T
i 4 2R B R B R ST LR B RS LURF
REBE BRZSERENFEBFINGEAMS
ERIpg5E22 0
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(H) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

U]

The balance represented (i) the fair value of the Group’s interest
in the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares of Cloopen of
HK$314.7 million; (ii) the fair value of the Group’s interest
in the Convertible Series D Preferred Shares of Cloopen of
HK$103.8 million; (iii) the fair value of trading securities
listed in Hong Kong of HK$1.0 million; and (iv) the fair
value of interest in a venture capital fund of HK$123.5
million. Significant increase in balance was primarily due to
a significant increase in fair value gains on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss for the Convertible Series C
Preference Shares and Convertible Series D Preference Shares
of Cloopen held by the Group during YEAR 2020.

Inventories

The amount mainly represented inventories of electronic power
meters and solutions segment and information security chips
and solutions segment.

H) BATFEFABESZEMEE

U]

4ERRIR() A EE R Cloopen CZRFRJIARIEST
ZHEREAFE314,700,00078 7T ; (i) A EE R
Cloopen D#JIATHARG B SiG 2 B w BATF(E
103,800,000/ 7T ; (i BB LMEEZFHA
F{E1,000,000587T ; K(ivVIRBIEEE 2 Y
AF1{E123,500,00078 7T o A& R AMRIE N EEH
R AEERR ZZ2 ZEFEPFFACloopenZC
RO AR B DR T AT B S iR ie A
FEABRZESMEEZ A TFEKREEE
NOFrEg

=78
TRTBIEBESEEMKBERDESEUK
ERZETRMBRDEDENFE-



(J) Trade and bills receivables, other financial assets at

amortised cost and other current assets

()
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FEWERRR B BN R IE - I At E
HtteMEEREMABHEE

2020 2019
“BIERF “E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Trade receivables (Note (i)(a)) FEURBRFR (B72#()(a)) 236,974 210,103
Bills receivables (Note (i)(b)) FEW SR (Wt at(i)b) 51,291 16,922
Less: provision for impairment of i EWGRIE R E R
receivables (14,371) (14,851)
273,894 212,174
Other receivables, prepayments and HEWRIA s R RUIEREE
deposits (Note (ii) (B3#i) 183,240 168,715
Total &5t 457,134 380,889
Note (i): =0k
(@) The Group's credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180 @ AEE-RETESEFAZEEHHOEISOET

days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on

the relevant invoice dates is as follows:

T

%o TRIRBAARIE R B 2 FEUCBRRERE: D0

2020 2019

—ECEE “E—hEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAERT FET

Current to 90 days BPEAZE90H 194,298 166,857
91 to 180 days 91E180H 7,955 11,831
181 to 365 days 181Z365H 11,185 4,910
Over 365 days 365HLL E 23,536 26,505
236,974 210,103

Increase in balances aged from current to 90 days was mainly due to

increase in account receivable balances under electronic power meters

and solutions segment.

(b)  Bills receivables mainly belonged to the information security chips and

solutions segment.

Note (ii):

The increase in balance was mainly due to other receivables for special

dividend receivable from PAX Global.

BREC FRVAEI0H Z MERRIE I = 2 AN BAESTE
EmREREDEET 2 FEWAR TR AE BR G0 Fr

e

BERBEIERBENERZEERRBRARED

e

BEGi):

BERIENTEHNAMERE SRR AR EZH M
FEUGRIRFREL °

35



36

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Report of the Directors

HPEFWS

(K) Loan receivables (K)
Loan receivables are amounts due from customers under the
payment processing solutions segment in the ordinary course of
business, unsecured and primarily denominated in RMB.

The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the payment
due date is as follows:

BWERSIN AEEBBEPIIRZ RIER
RABEDERTEEERIR BRERIER
BIRRETEMAREE

RIBFHRI B Z B ETERE DTN

2020 2019

2T —E—hE

HK$'000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Current BPEA 1,038,283 369,971

1 to 3 months past due BE—F==1EAH 10,658 24,659

Over 3 months past due A=A L 39,078 33,738

Loan receivables, gross FEURERRAEER 1,088,019 428,368
Less: provision for impairment of B EWERZ RERE R

loan receivables (44,940) (43,240)

Loan receivables, net RN ER F58 1,043,079 385,128

Non current JEBNER 54 =

Current BPEA 1,043,025 385,128

1,043,079 385,128

(L) Amounts due from/to investments accounted for using L) FEUWFEUERS EARZIEE Z 1A

the equity method

The amounts due from/to investments accounted for using the
equity method mainly represent receivables from/payables
to PAX Global and Cloopen and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2020. Amounts due from/to investments accounted
for using the equity method are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

FEUS,FE(ST RS A AR Z I E 2 FIEF B15
RE_ZE+_A=+—HEK ELHE=E
IBIRIUA KeCloopen & E B2 B 2 7118 o FEUL,
FEMUBRZARZREZ IBARIER %
BRIEEREE



(M) Restricted bank balances and cash and cash equivalents
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M) ZRERITEFURFERREEEY

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

ATEZRE RIZE—hE
tZA=+—HB +=-A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Bank deposits BITHER 6,105 =
Current assets TENEE
Bank deposits RITHEM 76 147
Restricted bank balance (Note) SIRHIRIT&E 5 (WaE) 880,552 671,535
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRIREEEY 3,747,468 3,712,567
Restricted bank balances and cash and SIRGIIRITAE R USIRE K
cash equivalents REEEY 4,628,020 4,384,102
Note: V oz

In accordance with the notice issued by the Payment and Settlement
Department of the People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC”), all customer
reserve accounts held by the third-party payment institutions were to be
cancelled and the customer reserves were to be deposited in a dedicated
deposit account maintained centrally by a designated agency. The customer
reserve account is non-interest bearing and denominated in RMB. Transfers
of funds under this bank account are governed under certain measures
implemented by the PBOC and hence these customer reserves are restricted
in nature.

BEFEARET (FEARRT)) INEEE
BN E=AXNRBHANMAERER#ES
IREBRE  BRREABTRETFRINEER
BNEREFERRAT - TREFESRE RS 1
MAREESHE - ZRITRAPHETHEREPEA
RIBFTEENETHRESEE ALZFEA#ES
RE ERRH -
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(N) EARMREMRE AR B EEERS
REBZBAREUREMELRIERE

(N) Trade and bills payables, payables for payment
processing solutions business and other payables and

accruals

FHRIR

2020 2019
it et 2 “E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Trade payables (Note (i)(a)) FEATRRRR (HfaE())) 512,622 438,993
Bills payables (Note (i)(b)) FE(S 4% (B &L()b)) 14,182 294
Payables for payment processing SXNUNRFEIEBRDRERZ
solutions business (Note (ii)) FEAS RIE (B 22(ii) 828,619 599,389
Other payables and accruals (Note (iii) ~— EMEFRIE & ESTRIE
(Bt 24 ii)) 1,013,991 1,029,432
Total = 2,369,414 2,068,108
Note (i): Bitata):

(@) The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.

The ageing analysis of the trade payables primarily based on invoice

date was as follows:

@ REHEEHETZEEHHRIEI0ETE  TBIRE
RO ENIRTEREC T

2020 2019
—E_EF “B-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Current to 90 days BPEAZE90H 462,757 402,025
91 to 180 days 91E180H 30,489 1,859
181 to 365 days 181E365H 9,898 24,544
Over 365 days 365H L E 9,478 10,565
512,622 438,993
—  Changes in trade payables aged between current to 90 days, —  BRECTFENEAZE90H ~91E180H K 181E365H
91 to 180 days and 181 to 365 days were mainly due to the ZEIRRAEES T BN B B ER KRR
outstanding balances under the electronic power meters and HEDERE N AREBEGRFTE

solutions segment.

b ENRERBNEEABERKBRALTRIE

(b) Bills payables belonged to the electronic power meters and solutions
segment.



Note (ii):

This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment processing
solutions business. The amounts are generally due for settlement with these
customers within 30 days.
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Biati:

ERERIEM XN R P REBRS ZREFROHAZR
HoBREE—MIB0ANIIEEZE R R EITESE

Note (iif): BaGii):
2020 2019
—EIEE “B-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations* FEST B TR A IR RS HE 302,642 287,402
Deposits BwE 50,373 62,250
Receipt in advance from customers** FESCUWELE B 2 R 27,932 73,389
Advance from merchant recruitment agents*** REBIEE P IR B R 415,261 370,337
Others**** E fiteoeex 217,783 236,054
1,013,991 1,029,432

*  Balance represented accrued staff costs, pension obligations and year-
end bonus.

**  The decline in receipt in advance from customers was primarily

attributable to recognition of revenue from the contract liabilities

during the year.

*#* The increase in advance from merchant recruitment agents was mainly
due to increase in advances and guarantees received from merchant
recruitment agents under the payment processing solutions segment.

**** Balance mainly represented accrued subcontracting costs and other
accrued handling fees payable under the payment processing solution
segment.

(O) Written put option liability (0)

Balance represents written put options liabilities on written put
options granted by Vbill Limited (“VBill Cayman”) and Mega
Hunt Microelectronics Limited (“Megahunt HK").

The increase in balance during YEAR 2020 was mainly due to
(i) written put options liabilities of HK$78.8 million recognised
for exit options granted to certain investors in Megahunt
Technologies Inc. (“Megahunt”) in March 2020; and (ii) finance
cost in relation to the put option liabilities amounted to
HK$61.0 million. Further details are set out in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial information.

* AEERIEREET B IAA RS B EMURFAATEAL

* FRSWERE R ZRERD T ERANERES SN
BEEA-

o REBEHAAENRIEMEZEHNBEXTRS
BRIZRRR T Z2 0 E0E N RYIR IR P IR U 2 B
R fREEEIGINFIER

o (EERT BISEST DB ARSI N R FRER AT R
ﬁ%ﬁ%‘F%ﬁﬁﬂﬂfﬁﬁ%\;§°

HEHRLHAERR
MBRERBITNERABRAR (TVBIll
Cayman ) BIKAMEBFARAE (TJKAE
BHRHE HEE AN E L h
iR

CECTEEERENDEERPOMRN
ETEFE=-ARTIHMEBEERNERHDBR
NE)(DEAIBENE TR EENER HEERE
B R h A &1578,800,0008 7T 5 M
(i EHAE B EEERMBE K 461,000,000
B o E—THBHNGRETHFER M
330
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KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(A) Deemed disposal in Megahunt

(B)

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 4 December 2019 and 30 March 2020 in relation to an
investment agreement (the “Investment Agreement”) entered
into by Megahunt, Megahunt HK, the Company, certain
management team members of the Group and three investors
(the “Investors”), pursuant to which the said Investors agreed
to invest an aggregate amount of RMB80 million in Megahunt
(the “Investment”) for approximately in aggregate 14.55% of
the enlarged registered capital of Megahunt. Pursuant to the
Investment Agreement, each of the said Investors shall have
the right to exercise an exit option to require Megahunt HK to
repurchase shares of Megahunt from the relevant Investor under
certain circumstances. Completion of the Investment took place
on 30 March 2020 and immediately after which Megahunt is
owned as to approximately 65.73% by the Group.

Purchase of E-payment terminal products from Tianyu
Information

In connection with the business of provision of payment
processing solutions, the Group from time-to-time purchases
E-payment Terminal products from Wuhan Tianyu Information
Industry Co., Ltd. (“Tianyu Information”). During the 12-month
period from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2020 (“Relevant
Period”), the Group purchased from Tianyu Information
E-payment Terminal products in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$133.5 million (inclusive of tax payable
by the Group). The Group provides the E-payment Terminal
products to its merchant customers and in return, the Group
imposes a fee. The E-payment Terminal products the Group
purchased from Tianyu Information during the Relevant
Period have been recorded as fixed assets while the relevant
depreciation charges have been recorded as cost of sales in
the financial statements of the Group. The prices payable for
the E-payment Terminal products were agreed between the
Group and Tianyu Information by reference to the prevailing
market prices of products with similar specifications at the
relevant time. The Group generally settles the purchase cost
with Tianyu Information within 90 days after receipt of VAT
invoice and confirmation of the same. Reference is made to
the announcements of the Company dated 5 October 2020 in
relation to the purchases.

FEREREMEEH

(A) RIEHEIRHIEE

(B)

RIRMAANT A S—NE+_ANAK
TETEE=FA=+HWAM ABRBRIKA
BENKAEB - RAEAEEETEEER
BB UR=2%EE ((KEE) FTII—MmE
Btk (REWE) Kb i EEBER
JKERIEZ R B 4228 A R 180,000,000t (M523%
&) o LIREUJLIBZ LB AT MR A& H4
14.55%  RIFERE MR LS REEBETE
BRHEERE LERIIAEERETEBERTE
BT EEBLIKRIEERD ZRER S
“EF-RA=+tHEMAEBEHERE JLAIBE
A S B A £965.73% am ©

MXEESBEEFZIRIKER

MIEEEI AR EEBRA I EZEREMS
AREBARRARERRESEERNBRAR
FREEE]) BEETFZNRIBER - REZ
E—HE+A—HEZZE-ZEFAB=1+HI2
ER AR (AR » AEEAXEEEEE
BT SZ (AR IR E 5 0 422 884943133,500,00078 7T
(BIEAEEZENRIE - AEEREBRE
FRFEEFZIRIHER MASERRUERE
BEARIR - AEBERBRPBRXREEEX
B ETZNRBERUBEECEEAR M8
RAITERI S AU AN E B 2 MRS IR R MUBH E A A
AR -MEBEF LRI EREN ZEBRBEARE
B EREE B2 E R ERRERBELUREN
ERZRITHMERBE AEE RN UEIE
EREZTRILFHERBIOKRABKREER
EEHBEEE LRIAAAFDRABRAE_ZF
+AABNERABEN A



(C) Possible investment in Fintech business

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 9 October 2020 and 7 January 2021. On 9 October
2020, (i) VBill HK Limited (“VBill HK”, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company), (ii) the target company
which is incorporated in Hong Kong (the “Target Company”),
(iii) all existing shareholders of the Target Company (the
“Existing Shareholders”) and (iv) the beneficial owners of
the Existing Shareholders entered into a memorandum (the
“Memorandum”) in relation to the proposed subscription of
new shares in the Target Company and proposed acquisition
of certain shares of the Target Company held by the Existing
Shareholders by VBill HK (the “Possible Investment”). If
the Possible Investment materializes, VBill HK will hold
approximately 52.4% of the Target Company immediately
upon completion of the Possible Investment and will have
control over the board of directors of the Target Company. The
Target Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
regulated financial technology service business and payment
service business.
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INFORMATION ON THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has been operating certain businesses which adopted
contract based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual
Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the Group, as a foreign
investor, to control and benefit from the PRC operating companies
(“OPCQ”) in the foreign restricted businesses in the PRC.

Set out below are the details of the Contractual Arrangements which
are material to the Group.

1. Contractual Arrangement in respect of Chongqing JIM
and its subsidiary VBill OPCO
1.1 Particulars of OPCO and its registered owners
Chongging JIM is a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 4 June 2002.

From 28 May 2010 to 24 October 2019, contractual
agreements (“Existing JIM Control Documents”) were
entered into between Chongqging JIM, its registered
shareholders, namely Mr. Zhou Jianhong (60%) and Mr. Na
Wei (40%), (“Chongging JIM Shareholders”) and 451715 2
£t (£78) BRAE (“Shanghai JIM”), pursuant to whlch
Shanghai JIM was allowed to exercise control of and enjoy
economic benefits generated from Chongging JIM.

Shanghai JIM is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

On 24 October 2019, (i) Chongging JIM, (ii) Chongging
JIM Shareholders and (iii) New WFOE, a wholly-foreign
owned enterprise incorporated under the laws of the
PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of VBill
(Cayman), entered into a new set of contractual agreements
which allows New WFOE to exercise control of and enjoy
economic benefits generated from Chongging JIM (“New
JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap)”). The Existing JIM
Control Documents were terminated on the same date.
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1.2 Description of OPCO’s business and their significance to

1.3

the Group

Chongqing JIM and its subsidiaries (collectively “JIM
Group”) are principally engaged in the value-added
telecommunication business (1 &E 5% 7%) with major
focus on payment related solutions and services, the
provision of payment processing solution in the PRC.
Key financial indicators of the JIM Group are set out in
paragraph 1.4 below.

Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of
the Contractual Arrangements

JIM Master Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE and Chongging JIM entered into the JIM
Master Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant
to which (i) Chongging JIM has appointed and designated
New WFOE as its exclusive service provider to provide
the technical and business support services and (i) New
WFOE has agreed to provide financial support in the
form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC laws, to
Chongging JIM by separate agreements to be executed
and performed by the parties. The service fee payable for
the said services shall be equal to 100% of the audited
consolidated net profits of Chongging JIM; notwithstanding
the foregoing New WFOE may adjust the service fee at its
sole discretion and in accordance with the requirements
of relevant governmental authorities, with reference to the
working capital requirements of Chongging JIM.

JIM Business Cooperation Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongging JIM, and the Chongging JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Business Cooperation
Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which each of the
Chongging JIM Shareholders and Chongging JIM have
jointly and severally agreed and covenanted that, without
obtaining New WFOE's prior written consent, neither
Chongging JIM nor the Chongging JIM Shareholders shall
cause Chongging JIM to, engage in any transaction which
may materially affect Chongging JIM’s asset, obligations,
rights or operation.
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JIM Exclusive Option Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongging JIM and the Chongging JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Exclusive Option
Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i) New WFOE
shall have the exclusive right to require Chongging
JIM Shareholders to transfer any and all of their equity
interests of Chongging JIM (the “JIM Equity Interests”) to
New WFOE and/or its designated third party, subject to
New WFOE's specific requirements; and (i) New WFOE
shall have the exclusive right to require Chongging JIM
to transfer any and all of the assets owned by Chongqing
JIM (the “JIM Assets”) to New WFOE and/or its designee,
subject to New WFOFE's specific requirements. The total
transfer price for the JIM Equity Interests and/or the
JIM Assets shall be the lowest price allowed under the
applicable PRC laws and administrative regulations at the
time of transfer. Where there is no lowest price prescribed
under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations, the transfer price shall be determined by New
WFOE.

JIM Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney (Pre-Swap)
New WFOE, Chongqging JIM, and the Chongqing JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Proxy Agreement and
Power of Attorney (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i)
each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has nominated
and appointed New WFOE (as well as its successors,
including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-in-fact to
exercise such rights as a shareholder of Chongging JIM on
his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant laws and
regulations and the articles of association of Chongging
JIM; and (ii) each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has
covenanted with and undertaken to New WFOE that, if he
receives any dividends, interest, any other forms of capital
distributions, residual assets upon liquidation, or proceeds
or consideration from the transfer as a result of, or in
connection with, his JIM Equity Interests, he shall, to the
extent permitted by applicable laws, remit all such monies
or assets to New WFOE or its designated entity without
any compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.
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JIM Equity Interest Pledge Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongqing JIM and the Chongqing
JIM Shareholders entered into the JIM Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which each
of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has agreed to,
unconditionally and irrevocably, pledge all of their JIM
Equity Interests, including any interest or dividend paid for
such equity interests, to New WFOE as a security for the
performance of any and all obligations of Chongging JIM
Shareholders and Chongging JIM under the contractual
documents (other than JIM Equity Interest Pledge
Agreement (Pre-Swap)) at the amount of RMB50,000,000
which is estimated value of the obligations of Chongging
JIM Shareholders and Chongging JIM under the contractual
documents for initial registration purpose.

JIM Confirmation and Guarantee Letter (Pre-Swap)

Each of Chongging JIM Shareholders has signed the JIM
Confirmation and Guarantee Letter (Pre-Swap), pursuant
to which each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has
confirmed and guaranteed that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in the equity interests of Chongging JIM held
by him upon his death, incapacity, bankruptcy, divorce
or any circumstances that may affect his ability to
exercise his shareholder’s rights in Chongging JIM,
will not carry out any act that may affect or hinder
the fulfillment of his obligations under each of the
contractual documents;

2. he will unwind the contractual documents and transfer
all of the equity interests of Chongging JIM held by
him to New WFOE or any party designated by New
WEFOE as soon as the applicable PRC laws allow New
WFOE to operate the business operated by Chongging
JIM by way of directly holding equity interests, and
that subject to applicable PRC laws, he must donate
immediately without compensation to New WFOE or
its designated entity any consideration he has received
from New WFOE during its acquisition of JIM Equity
Interests; and
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3. he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the business of Chongging JIM or its affiliated
companies or to have any interest in such business;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise to
conflict of interest between himself and New WFOE
(including but not limited to the shareholders of New
WFOE); in the event of any such conflict, he will take
any action as instructed by New WFOE to eliminate
such conflict provided such action is compliant with
PRC laws.

JIM Spousal Consent (Pre-Swap)

Ms. Liu Dan (“Ms. Liu”), the spouse of Mr. Na Wei has
covenanted, among other things, not to take any action
with the intent to interfere with the arrangements under
and performance of the contractual documents, including
making any claim that such equity interests in Chongging
JIM constitute property or community property between
herself and Mr. Na Wei and waives all her rights or
entitlements to such equity interests that may be granted to
her according to any applicable laws.

Disputes resolutions

The contractual documents all contain a disputes
resolution clause which stipulates that any dispute or
claim shall be resolved by the parties in good faith through
negotiations. If no resolution can be reached, the dispute
shall be submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission
for arbitration in Beijing in accordance with its rules of
arbitration in effect at the time of application. The arbitral
tribunal or the arbitrators shall have the authority to
award any remedy or relief in accordance with the terms
of the contractual documents and applicable PRC laws,
including provisional and permanent injunctive relief (such
as injunctive relief with respect to the conduct of business
or to compel the transfer of assets), specific performance
of any obligation created thereunder, remedies over the
equity interests or land assets of Chongging JIM and
winding up orders against Chonggqing JIM. The arbitral
award shall be final and binding upon all parties. In
addition, to the extent permitted under applicable PRC
laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, PRC and the places where the principal
assets of Chongging JIM are located, shall all be deemed to
have jurisdiction.
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1.4

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements

The consolidated total revenue of the JIM Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was HK$3,279.2 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the JIM
Group as at 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$4,411.5
million and HK$2,224,6 million respectively.

Contractual Arrangements in respect of il % ZE fl
EEFEMTAER AT (“Hunan Yunrong”, unofficial
English translation being Hunan Yunrong Information
Technology Co., Ltd.)

2.1

2.2

Particulars of Hunan Yunrong and its registered owners
Hunan Yunrong is a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 15 August 2014. Hunan Yunrong was
wholly-owned by Chongging JIM before 21 May 2019.
Hunan Yunrong and Chongging JIM were accounted for as
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company contractually
controlled by the Group through the Existing JIM Control
Documents.

On 21 May 2019, the Group implemented a restructuring
involving the Hunan Yunrong and its subsidiaries (“Yurong
Group”) as detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 May 2019. Upon completion of the restructuring,
Mr. Zhang Yonggang (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Wei Mingliang
(“Mr. Wei”) became the registered shareholders of Hunan
Yunrong (“Hunan Yunrong Shareholders”), holding 70%
and 30% equity interests of Hunan Yunrong (“Yunrong
Equity Interests”), respectively. Control documents
(“Yunrong Control Documents”) were entered into between
Hunan Yunrong, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei and It REHEE
BEESXMAERAR
English translation being Beijing Hi Sunsray Information
Technology Limited) to allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to
contractually control 100% equity interests and the
management of Hunan Yunrong.

(“Beijing Hi Sunsray”, unofficial

Description of OPCO'’s business and their significance to
the Group

Yunrong Group is principally engaged in platform
operation solutions business in the PRC. Key financial
indicators of the Yunrong Group are set out in paragraph
2.4 below.
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the Contractual Arrangements

Yunrong Master Exclusive Service Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray and Hunan Yunrong entered into the
Yunrong Master Exclusive Service Agreement, pursuant to
which (i) Hunan Yunrong has appointed and designated
the Beijing Hi Sunsray as its exclusive service provider
to provide the technical and business support services
and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray has agreed to (to the extent
permissible under PRC law) provide financial support
in the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC
laws, to Hunan Yunrong by separate agreements to be
executed and performed by the parties. The service
fee payable for the said services shall be equal to
100% of the audited consolidated net profits of Hunan
Yunrong; notwithstanding the foregoing the Beijing Hi
Sunsray may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion
and in accordance with the requirements of relevant
governmental authorities, with reference to the working
capital requirements of Hunan Yunrong.

Yunrong Business Cooperation Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Business
Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to which each of
the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong
have jointly and severally agreed and covenanted that,
without obtaining the Beijing Hi Sunsray’s prior written
consent, neither Hunan Yunrong nor the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders shall cause Hunan Yunrong to, engage in any
transaction which may materially affect Hunan Yunrong's
asset, obligations, rights or operation.
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Yunrong Exclusive Option Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Exclusive
Option Agreement, pursuant to which (i) Beijing Hi
Sunsray shall have the exclusive right to require Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders to transfer any and all of their
Yunrong Equity Interests to Beijing Hi Sunsray and/or its
designated third party designated, subject to Beijing Hi
Sunsray’s specific requirements; and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray
shall have the exclusive right to require Hunan Yunrong
to transfer any and all of the assets owned by Hunan
Yunrong (the “Yunrong Assets”) to the Beijing Hi Sunsray
and/or its designee, subject to Beijing Hi Sunsray’s specific
requirements. The total transfer price for the Yunrong Equity
Interests and/or the Yunrong Assets shall be the lowest price
allowed under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations at the time of transfer. Where there is no
lowest price prescribed under the applicable PRC laws
and administrative regulations, the transfer price shall be
determined by the Beijing Hi Sunsray.

Yunrong Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Proxy Agreement
and Power of Attorney, pursuant to which (i) each of
the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders has nominated and
appointed Beijing Hi Sunsray (as well as its successors,
including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-in-fact to
exercise such rights as a shareholder of Hunan Yunrong
on his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant laws
and regulations and the articles of association of Hunan
Yunrong; and (ii) each of the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders
has covenanted with and undertaken to Beijing Hi
Sunsray that, if he receives any dividends, interest, any
other forms of capital distributions, residual assets upon
liquidation, or proceeds or consideration from the transfer
of equity interests as a result of, or in connection with, his
Yunrong Equity Interests, he shall, to the extent permitted
by applicable laws, remit all such monies or assets to
Beijing Hi Sunsray or its designated entity without any
compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.
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Yunrong Equity Interest Pledge Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which each of the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders has agreed to, unconditionally
and irrevocably, pledge all of their Yunrong Equity
Interests, including any interest or dividend paid for such
equity interests, to Beijing Hi Sunsray as a security for
the performance of any and all obligations of Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong under the
contractual documents (other than Yunrong Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement) at the amount of RMB10,000,000,
the estimated value of the obligations of Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong under the contractual
documents for initial registration purpose.

Yunrong Confirmation and Guarantee Letter

Each of Hunan Yunrong Shareholders signed the Yunrong
Confirmation and Guarantee Letter, pursuant to which each
of the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders has confirmed and
guaranteed that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in the equity interests of Hunan Yunrong held
by him upon his death, incapacity, bankruptcy, divorce
or any circumstances that may affect his ability to
exercise his shareholder’s rights in Hunan Yunrong,
will not carry out any act that may affect or hinder
the fulfillment of his obligations under each of the
contractual documents;
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2. he will unwind the contractual documents and
transfer his entire Yunrong Equity Interests to Beijing
Hi Sunsray or its designated party as soon as the
applicable PRC laws allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to
operate the business operated by Hunan Yunrong
by way of directly holding equity interests, and that
subject to applicable PRC laws, he must donate
immediately without compensation to Beijing Hi
Sunsray or its designated party any consideration
he has received from Beijing Hi Sunsray during its
acquisition of the Yunrong Equity Interests; and

3. he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the business of Hunan Yunrong or its affiliated
companies or to have any interest in such business;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise to
conflict of interest between himself and Beijing Hi
Sunsray (including but not limited to the shareholders
of Beijing Hi Sunsray); in the event of any such
conflict, he will take any action as instructed by
Beijing Hi Sunsray to eliminate such conflict provided
such action is compliant with PRC laws.

Yunrong Spousal Consent

Ms. Li Qi (“Ms. Li"), the spouse of Mr. Zhang, has
covenanted, among other things, not to take any action
with the intent to interfere with the arrangements under
and performance of the contractual documents, including
making any claim that such Yunrong Equity Interests
constitute property or community property between herself
and Mr. Zhang and waives all their rights or entitlements to
such equity interests that may be granted to her according
to any applicable laws.
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2.4

Disputes resolutions

The contractual documents all contain disputes resolution
clause which stipulates that any dispute or claim shall be
resolved by the parties in good faith through negotiations.
If no resolution can be reached, the dispute shall be
submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission for
arbitration in Beijing in accordance with its rules of
arbitration in effect at the time of application. The arbitral
tribunal or the arbitrators shall have the authority to
award any remedy or relief in accordance with the terms
of the contractual documents and applicable PRC laws,
including provisional and permanent injunctive relief (such
as injunctive relief with respect to the conduct of business
or to compel the transfer of assets), specific performance
of any obligation created thereunder, remedies over the
equity interests or land assets of Hunan Yunrong and
winding up orders against Hunan Yunrong. The arbitral
award shall be final and binding upon all parties. In
addition, to the extent permitted under applicable PRC
laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, PRC and the places where the principal
assets of Hunan Yunrong are located, shall all be deemed
to have jurisdiction.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements

The consolidated total revenue of the Yunrong Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was HK$164.3 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the Yunrong
Group as at 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$197.4
million and HK$12.7 million respectively.
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Laws and regulations relating to the provision of value-
added telecommunications services in the PRC and
reasons for adopting the Contractual Arrangements
Under the Telecommunications Regulations of the
People’s Republic of China (FZEARIEFMBEE KA,
telecommunications service providers are required to obtain
operating licenses prior to their commencement of operations.

Under the Administrative Measures on Internet Information
Services (B Ht#B(5 BARFE EIEIIE) (“Measures”), profitable
internet information service providers must obtain the ICP
License from the relevant authorities before engaging in the
profitable internet information service business in the PRC.

According to the Regulations on the Administration of Foreign-
invested Telecommunication Enterprises (2016 Amended) ( §h
BIREEEEEBEERE (20165F185])) (“FITE Regulations”),
(i) the ratio of investment by a foreign investor in a company
providing value-added telecommunications services shall not
exceed 50%, and (ii) a foreign investor who invests in a value-
added telecommunications services company shall have a
good track record and operational experience in providing
value-added telecommunications business (the “Qualification
Requirement”) in the PRC.

The purpose for the Group to adopt the contractual
arrangements is to enable the Group to engage in the value-
added telecommunications business indirectly through
Chongging JIM and Hunan Yunrong which hold the ICP
License. Each of Chongging JIM and Hunan Yunrong is engaged
in value-added telecommunications business and holds the
ICP License. Due to the foreign ownership restrictions under
the PRC laws as outlined above and based on the consultation
with the officer of the relevant governmental authority, since
the Group has not previously engaged in telecommunications
business outside the PRC nor has it previously acquired
any equity interest in a PRC enterprise engaged in
telecommunications business, the Group would not be
considered to satisfy the Qualification Requirement. As such,
the Group would not be able to engage in the value-added
telecommunications business in the PRC directly, regardless of
the percentage shareholding interest (being less than 50% or
otherwise) it holds in the operating entity, without first adopting
a VIE structure.

3.
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4. Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements

The Group is exposed to certain risks under the Contractual
Arrangements, which are summarised below.

e There is no assurance that the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents could
comply with future changes in the regulatory requirements
in the PRC and the PRC government may determine that
the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents do not comply with applicable
regulations.

e Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the
enactment timetable, interpretation and implementation of
the Draft Foreign Investment Law ({(SME & E A E 2 )) and
how it may impact the viability of the current corporate
structure, corporate governance and business operations
under the Contractual Arrangements.

e Uncertainties exist with the future laws, administrative
regulations or provision prescribed by the State Council
especially relating to the Foreign Business Investment Law
(9MEEIEETE) may regard the Contractual Arrangements
as a form of foreign investment and how the Contractual
Arrangements will be handled.

e the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents may not be as effective as direct
ownership in providing control over Hunan Yunrong or
Chongging JIM.

e The registered shareholders of Chongging JIM or Hunan
Yunrong may potentially have a conflict of interests with
the Group.

e The Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny
by the PRC tax authorities and transfer pricing adjustments
and additional tax may be imposed.

e Certain terms of the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents may not
be enforceable under PRC laws, such as the disputes
resolution clauses stipulated above.

e A substantial amount of costs and time may be involved in
transferring the ownership of OPCOs to the Group under
the JIM Exclusive Option Agreement (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Exclusive Option Agreement.
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e The Group may bear economic risk which may arise from
difficulties in the operation of OPCOs.

e The Company does not have any insurance which covers
the risks relating to the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.

e There is a lack of clear guidance or interpretation on
the qualification requirement under the Internet Content
Provider License, which may cast uncertainty to the Group
when the foreign ownership restriction in value-added
telecommunications is relaxed.

Internal control measures implemented by the Group to
mitigate the risks

The New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents contain certain provisions to exercise
effective control over and to safeguard the assets of OPCOs. In
addition to such provisions, the Company has adopted certain
measures which may include but not limited to management
control, financial control and legal review as follows:

e the Group has delegated representatives (“Representatives”)
to OPCOs, mainly responsible for exercising management
control of OPCOs; the Representatives will conduct
reviews on the operations of OPCOs;

e the Board and the Representatives shall identify major
issues arising from the implementation of and compliance
with the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Control Documents;

e any regulatory enquiries from government authorities will
be submitted to the Board, if necessary, for review and
discussion on an occurrence basis;

e the Representatives or other delegates of the Board shall
meet with the registered shareholders or directors of the
OPCOs to investigate and report any suspicious matters to
the Board;

e the Board shall collect the management accounts and
major operational data of OPCOs regularly for review
which will be no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;
the financial team of the Company will seek explanations
from the senior management of the OPCOs on any
material fluctuations;
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e the Board will consult the Company’s PRC legal
advisers from time to time to check if there are any legal
developments in the PRC affecting the arrangement
contemplated under the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents (such as
the development of the draft Foreign Investment Law (9h
Bl E/AE2)), and the Board will determine if any
modification or amendment are required to be made;

® major issues arising from implementation and performance
of the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Control Documents, if any, will be reviewed by
the Board on a regular basis; the Board will determine, as
part of its periodic review process, whether legal advisers
and/or other professionals will need to be retained to assist
the Group to deal with specific issues arising from the New
JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control
Documents;

e the Board will disclose the overall performance and
compliance with the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents in its annual
report to update the Shareholders and potential investors;
and

e the Company shall comply with the conditions prescribed
under the waiver granted by the Stock Exchange in
connection with the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Yunrong Control Documents and
the New JIM Control Documents.

6. Material change
There was no material change of the Contractual Arrangements
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

7. Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements
As at the date of this annual report, there is no unwinding
of any of the Contractual Arrangements or failure to unwind
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements are removed.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The economic outlook and operating environment are anticipated
to remain challenging in year 2021. In view of the outbreak of
the novel coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) (the “epidemic”)
in China since January 2020, the Group has adopted various
prevention and control measures in accordance with the relevant
national and local regulations on epidemic prevention and control
in compliance with the national epidemic prevention policies. At
present, the COVID-19 control measures in China are successful
to a substantial extent, managing to sufficiently quell the spread of
the virus within the nation. Nonetheless, given the uncertainties
as to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak, it is difficult to
predict how long these conditions will last and the extent to which
the business of the Group may be affected for the Year 2021. The
Group will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the operation and financial
position and results of the Group.

Payment processing solutions

In 2020, due to impact of the global epidemic, the transaction
volume of payment business fell by 17% to approximately
RMBT1,460 billion. During the epidemic, we strengthened our efforts
in supporting small and micro merchants, launched various Saa$S
products, and introduced more than 1,000 Saa$ service providers
to help small and micro merchants increase transaction volume
and improve operating efficiency. Therefore, while the transaction
volume declined, the number of transactions increased. The
cumulative number of transactions processed in 2020 increased by
42% as compared to the year before. In 2021, we will continue to
focus on small and micro merchants, and work with Saa$S service
providers to provide a full range of digital business services for small
and micro merchants. We will start from payment and build into a
first-class digital economic infrastructure service provider.

In addition, our supply chain financial technology sector has made
great progress in 2020. We introduced several core enterprises
and banks, provided supply chain financial services to more than
1,000 small and medium-sized enterprises, and accumulatively
addressed financing needs exceeding RMB5 billion. Our supply
chain financial technology sector will be committed to solving the
financing problems of small and medium-sized enterprises by using
blockchain technology to realize the split and transfer of credit and
empower the credit of core enterprises to many small and medium-
sized enterprises along the supply chain.
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Information security chips and solutions

Due to the impact of the epidemic in 2020, the growth of
information security chip business tended to be slow and
competition became more intense. However, through our concerted
efforts from top to bottom to adjust strategies in response to the
market, sales for the whole year of 2020 increased slightly as
compared to the year before. The market is expected to develop
steadily in 2021, nonetheless it is subject to change due to the
impact of the central bank’s policies targeting the payment market.
Other research and development projects are progressing smoothly
and cost reduction initiatives of various products are also rolling out
in an orderly manner.

Platform operation solutions

In 2020, due to the impact of the COVID-19, revenue from platform
operation solutions declined slightly year-on-year. We continued
to provide stable technical services and support for our major
customer — China Mobile. We have successfully completed the
relevant support work for various technical operation cooperation
contracts for China Mobile Financial Technology Co., Ltd., the IVR
Base and Animation Base of China Mobile, which was recognized
by customers. In addition, we also worked hard to expand technical
service opportunities outside the operator system. Looking to the
future, we will continue to firmly support and cooperate with China
Mobile’s various businesses, and will also expand our markets
outside of mobile operators. Moreover, we will continue to expand
and innovate at the business level, focus on the short video field,
and develop our own mobile e-commerce business.

Financial solutions

In mainland China, the processes in respect of the downshift of
business systems are becoming more mature, including code
conversion, demand tracking, comparative testing, microservice
splitting, and governance. In line with the requirements of
information technology application innovation and the general
trend of software localization, we will continue to deepen the
core system downshift and core system cloud business in 2021
to help customers maximise the preservation of application asset
and reduce the risk relating to the upgrade of core business system
technology. In Hong Kong and Macau, we combined virtual
bank licensing, integration of faster payment system (FPS), open
bank (Open Bank) and other businesses, continued to commit to
Internet financial innovation, and rapidly developed new products
such as core business system, payment system, open application
programming interface (Open API) management platform, anti-
money laundering system, and cross-border financial management
based on a distributed architecture, to help customers accelerate the
pace of Internet financial innovation.
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In response to overseas financial IT service opportunities, in
March 2020, the Group specifically established Shenzhen
Hi Sun FinTech Global Limited to focus on overseas business
opportunities and conduct product research and development
based on the characteristics of overseas markets. We researched
and developed related product solutions based on the needs and
business characteristics of overseas markets, including the research
and development of overseas mobile banking, overseas online
banking and other systems. At present, it has signed cooperation
agreements with a number of cooperation channels for overseas
market expansion; and in 2020, it signed a banking business system
construction contract with a Cambodian bank.

Electronic power meters and solutions

In 2021, the total tender volume of electronic power meters
and data collection devices of the State Grid are expected to
approximate to that of 2020. We managed to win the bid in the
State Grid's two unified tenders last year. We are confident that we
will continue to win further bids in 2021. On technical aspects,
the State Grid Power Research Institute is actively advancing the
research and construction of GB standards for IR46 electronic
power meter. We are also actively following up the relevant works.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In view of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease 2019
(COVID-19) in Mainland China since January 2020, the Group has
adopted various prevention and control measures in accordance
with the relevant national and local regulations on epidemic
prevention and control to comply with the national epidemic
prevention policies. As local consumption market and hence the
payment processing industry, as well as the Group’s financial
performance may be materially and adversely affected by the
epidemic, the Group is closely monitoring the market situation and
continuously evaluating the impact of the epidemic on the Group’s
operation and financial performance.

A considerable portion of the Group’s revenue is derived from
a small number of customers in China. Failure to maintain good
relationships with these customers could materially and adversely
affect our financial results.

Our business operates in an industry that is subject to changes
in market conditions, technological advancements, developing
industry standards and changing customers’ needs and preferences
for our new products and/or services. Failure to promptly respond
to changes, continually enhance existing products and launch new
products to the market in a timely manner may adversely affect our
business performance. Also, any unauthorised use of our intellectual
property by third parties could harm our business and competitive
position.

The industries in which we operate in the PRC are subject to
extensive industry standards and government regulations, failing
compliance of which may adversely affect our operation and sales.
Regarding our payment processing solutions business in the PRC,
we are currently operating under three main payment licenses,
namely national bank card acceptance, online payment and mobile
payment licenses, which will expire in June 2022. Failure to renew
these licenses could disrupt our business operations and our sales
may be materially and adversely affected.
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The Group has been operating certain lines of business which adopt
contract-based arrangements and/or structures for the purpose of
enabling the Group, as foreign investor, to control and benefit from
the PRC operating companies in the foreign restricted businesses
in the PRC. However, such arrangements may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership. In addition,
there can be no assurance that the PRC government authority would
continue to regard these Contractual Arrangements as being in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations, or that
the legal requirements or policies that may be adopted in the future
would not affect the Contractual Arrangements and the relevant
business operations. Details of the Contractual Arrangements
are set out in section headed “Information on the Contractual
Arrangements” in the Report of the Directors on page 42.

Also, volatility in the securities market may affect the Company’s
shares investments. The Company is also subject to market risks,
such as currency fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks,
and liquidity risks in the normal course of the Group’s business.
Particulars of financial risk management of the Company are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We uphold
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The followings outline the relevant laws and regulations which had
a significant impact on the Group’s business during the year.

Payment business license

Non-financial institutions acting as intermediaries between payees
and payers to provide online payment, issuance and acceptance
of prepaid cards, bankcard acquiring, and other payment services
determined by the PBOC shall obtain a “payment business license”.

Compliance Measures

Regulatory Relations Department and Compliance Department
of the Group directly communicate with relevant government
departments and review policy changes, and adopt measures to
regularly review and ensure that relevant business licenses are
validly maintained.
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Regulations on online payment and bankcard acquiring
business

Payment institutions, when providing online payment services, shall
apply a real-name management system to register and take effective
measures to verify the real identity information of account holders,
and bankcard acquirers shall implement real-name management of
merchants and follow the “KYC” principle.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control rules and systems
to record customer information and keep transaction records.
In addition, the Group implements the regulations of the PBOC
regarding customer information protection (see “Regulations on the
Protection of Personal Information and Privacy” below for details).

Regulations on the management of customer reserves
Non-bank payment institutions shall (1) deposit the customer
reserves received directly in full with the PBOC or qualified
commercial banks; and (2) pay industry protection funds to make
up for specific losses of customer reserves or for other purposes
specified by the PBOC.

Compliance Measures
The Group has formulated supervision and review measures to
ensure compliance with the corresponding requirements.

Regulations on the administration of testing and
certification of the payment business system

Relevant laws and regulations set out the requirements for the
security management of payment business of third-party payment
institutions in respect of the business system and communication
system.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control systems to ensure
compliance with the relevant management requirements and
regulations of the risk management department.
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Regulations on the standards for the barcode payment
business

Relevant laws and regulations govern the application of barcode
technology by banking financial institutions or non-bank payment
institutions to engage in the monetary capital transfer business.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control systems and regular
review measures to ensure compliance and that relevant business
licenses are maintained.

Regulations on the protection of financial consumers
Non-bank payment institutions shall establish protocols for the
protection of the rights and interests of financial consumers.

Compliance Measures

The Group formulates and improves internal protocols and
measures to disclose information to consumers, and perform fair
customer treatment responsibilities.

Regulations on the micro-lending business
The establishment of a micro-lending company shall be approved
by the competent department of the provincial government.

Neither micro-lending companies established within the
administrative region of Jiangxi Province as a new type of
financial organization that provides micro-lending services for the
development of agriculture, rural areas, farmers, nor online micro-
lending companies that complete the entire business process from
risk review, loan application approval, lending to recovery through
online platform shall accept public deposits.

Compliance Measures

The Group holds an online micro-lending business license, and
has formulated guidelines, approvals and notifications measures to
strengthen supervision and management to ensure strict compliance
with operating conditions.
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Regulations on the factoring business

Such regulations regulate commercial factoring companies’
provision of the businesses such as factoring financing, sales ledger
management, collection of accounts receivable, non-commercial
guarantee against bad debts, investigation and evaluation of
customers’ credits, and other relevant consulting services.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal monitoring and control
measures, and strictly abides by the relevant regulations, including
keeping customer identity information and transaction records.

Regulations on the restriction of foreign investment
Foreign-invested value-added telecommunication enterprises in the
PRC shall be established as sino-foreign equity joint ventures, and
foreign investors’ ultimate investment in the enterprise shall not
exceed 50%. Foreign investors shall also have good performance
and operational experience in relevant business.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal control measures, sought legal
opinions, and paid attention to changes in regulations to ensure
that the contractual arrangements and/or structure adopted to
operate business comply with laws and meet relevant operational
requirements.

Regulations on anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist
financing

Non-financial institutions shall fulfill their anti-money laundering
obligations, including the verification of customer identification,
reporting suspicious large-value transactions and keeping customer
information and transaction records.

Compliance Measures

Our “anti-money laundering department” and “anti-money
laundering system” screen suspicious transactions and enhance the
Group’s capability to identify suspicious transactions. Our large-
value and suspicious transaction monitoring system investigates
large-value suspicious transactions, so as to safeguard legitimate
rights and interests, and ensure information and transaction security.
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Regulations on the protection of personal information and
privacy

Such regulations regulate the collection and use of personal
information in the provision of telecommunications services and
Internet information services in the PRC.

Compliance Measures

The Group has established a comprehensive mechanism of network
operation security and information security protection to maintain
operation and information security and confidentiality, and regularly
conduct data backups to ensure the integrity of information and
transaction security, and use personal information as required.

Value-added telecommunications business license
All telecommunications service providers shall obtain operating
licenses before the commencement of operation in the PRC.

Compliance Measures

The Group holds the relevant business licenses. It also conducts
annual inspections and self-checks, and adopts regular review
measures to ensure the vaild existence of the relevant business
licenses.

During the year, there was no violation or breach of relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related discretionary bonus. Share options may also be granted to
eligible employees of the Group as incentives or rewards.

Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group fully
understands this principle and thus maintains close relationship
with customers to fulfil their immediate and long-term needs. Due
to the nature of business, the Group did not have any major supplier
that has significant influence on its operations.

However, the Group strives to maintain fair and co-operative
relationship with the suppliers.

DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future development to
be an objective. Under the Company’s dividend policy, dividends
may be declared from time to time and be paid to shareholders
provided that the Group is profitable, without affecting the normal
operations of the Group. In summary, the declaration of dividends
and the dividend amount shall be determined at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Board taking into account the following
factors:

e the Group’s financial performance;

o the liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group;
and

e any other factors that the Board may consider appropriate.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:
CHEUNG Yuk Fung
KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, not less than one-third
of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meeting, and every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.

Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin, Executive Directors, and
Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard, Independent Non-Executive
Director, will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company or the
Group was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director (with the meaning as ascribed to it under section
486 of the Companies Ordinance) has or had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during
or at the end of the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 4 to 7.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and
officers of the Group is currently and was in force throughout the
year.

Throughout the year, the Company maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity against
liabilities, including liability in respect of legal actions against the
Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or incurred
arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices,
subject to terms and conditions of the policy.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each
Director and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571) (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
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for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in BB -

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.0025 each in the Company
FARERAR0SET LR

Number of shares held Interests in associated corporation
FROHE PEREEZ R
Approximate
percentage of
Approximate shareholding
percentage of in the registered
shareholding capital of the
Personal Corporate in the Shares Personal associated
interest interest Total  of the Company** interest Total corporation***
RERF S EEAE
RitkiEL AfaskiEs
Director g% AL LefE &y UETER ing Bt ek ETED fing
Kui Man Chun 2EE 28,650,000 (LF 617,083,636 (L) 645,733,636 (L)* 23.25% = = =
(note ()
(i)
Xu Wensheng e 4,566,000 (L - 4,566,000 (L]* 0.16% 1,965,447 (L 1,905,447 (L* 3.29%
(note (i)
(i)
Li Wenjin £y 6,400,000 (L)* - 6,400,000 (L* 0.23% = = =
Xu Changjun BEE 16,563,000 (L) - 16,563,000 (L 06% 1768884 (LF 1,768,884 (L 296%
(note (i)
(et
Note: sz -

(i) Representing shares of the Company held by Mr. Kui Man Chun through (1)
Hi Sun Limited, a company which he holds a 99.16% interest, and (2) Rich
Global Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

(i)  Representing issued share capital of Megahunt Technologies Inc..

*  The Letter “L” denotes a long position.

**  Calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the Company as at
31 December 2020, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary shares.

***  Calculated based on the issued share capital of Megahunt as at 31
December 2020, which was RMB59,800,000.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’
AND SHORT POSITIONS
UNDERLYING SHARES

INTERESTS
IN THE SHARES AND

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
substantial shareholders (other than a Director, or the Chief
Executive) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary share of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

Personal
interest
Name of shareholder
RE4TE/ e N4
Rich Global Limited (“RGL")*** =
Rich Global Limited (TRGL J)***
Hi Sun Limited (“HSL")*** (Note 1) =
Hi Sun Limited (THSL1 )+ (#f5£7)
Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 2) 28,650,000 (L)*

RBEKL Wit2)

Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”) -
Ever Union Capital Limited (T Ever Union )

Mr. Che Fung (Note 3) -
BEKRE (at3)

Notes:

1 Representing HSL's interests in the Company’s share capital by virtue of its
control of 100% shareholding in RGL.

2 Representing Mr. Kui Man Chun’s (i) deemed interests in the Company’s
share capital by virtue of his control of 99.16% shareholding of HSL; and
(ii) personal interests in the Company’s share capital as disclosed in the
preceding section.

3 Representing Mr. Che Fung's interests in the Company’s share capital by
virtue of his control of 100% shareholding in Ever Union, which holds
beneficial interests in 334,314,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

*  The Letter “L” denotes a long position.

**  The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2020, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary
shares.

*#% - Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin were directors of RGL and Mr. Kui
Man Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng are directors of HSL which
are deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Approximate

Corporate Number of percentage of

interest ordinary shares shareholding**
RIEZHA

L EERUE 2B din
617,083,636 (L)* 617,083,636 (L)* 22.22%
617,083,636 (L)* 617,083,636 (L)* 22.22%
617,083,636 (L)* 645,733,636 (L)* 23.25%
334,314,000 (L)* 334,314,000 (L)* 12.04%
334,314,000 (L)* 334,314,000 (L)* 12.04%
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions entered into between the Group and connected
persons under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules subject to disclosure
requirement during the year ended 31 December 2020 are as
follows:

Contractual Arrangement

Yunrong Control Documents

On 21 May 2019, the Group implemented the restructuring
concerning the group of companies comprising Hunan Yunrong and
its subsidiaries (the “Yunrong Group”) where: (i) Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei,
Chongging JIM and Hunan Yunrong entered into an equity transfer
agreement (the “Yunrong Equity Transfer Agreement”) pursuant to
which, Chongging JIM has transferred 70% equity interest in Hunan
Yunrong to Mr. Zhang at the cash consideration of RMB7 million
and the remaining 30% equity interest in Hunan Yunrong to Mr. Wei
at the cash consideration of RMB3 million; (i) Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei
and Beijing Hi Sunsray entered into a loan agreement (the “Yunrong
Loan Agreement”) pursuant to which Beijing Hi Sunsray lent to Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Wei amounts of RMB7 million and RMB3 million for
settlement of the consideration respectively payable by Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Wei to Chongging JIM under the Yunrong Equity Transfer
Agreement; and (iii) the Yunrong Control Documents were entered
into between Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong, Mr. Zhang and
Mr. Wei to allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to contractually control 100%
equity interests and the management of Hunan Yunrong.

Each of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Wei is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company
at subsidiary level. The Yunrong Control Documents shall remain
effective save as otherwise terminated in accordance with their
respective terms and conditions. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Yunrong Control Documents constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company with connected
persons at the subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but are exempt from the circular, independent
financial advice and Shareholders” approval requirements pursuant
to Rule T4A.101 of the Listing Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled
“Information on the contractual arrangements” and the
announcement of the Company dated 21 May 2019.
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Chongqing JIM VIE Restructuring

On 21 May 2019 and 24 October 2019, the Group implemented
the restructuring concerning Chongging JIM, the VBill Group and
VBill (Cayman) (“Chonggqing JIM VIE Restructuring”), where:

(i) On 21 May 2019, Chongging JIM, VBill OPCO, Mr. Zhou,
Mr. Na and each of Mr. Shen Zheng, Mr. Li Huimin, Mr. Xue
Guangyu and Ms. Ge Xiaoxia (collectively the “Management
Shareholders”) entered into a share swap agreement (the “Share
Swap Agreement”) pursuant to which each of the Management
Shareholders agreed to transfer all the equity interests they
respectively hold in VBill OPCO, representing an aggregate
of 19.96% equity interest in VBill OPCO, to Chongging JIM
upon completion of certain conditions. As consideration for
the transfer of VBill OPCO equity interests, Chonggqing JIM will
increase its registered capital in the amount of RMB526,300
(representing an aggregate of approximately 5.00% of its
enlarged registered capital after the capital increase), which
shall be registered under the names of the Management
Shareholders. As at the date of this annual report, the Share
Swap Agreement has not yet completed.

(i) On 21 May 2019, New WFOE, Chongging JIM, Mr. Zhou, Mr.
Na and each of the Management Shareholders entered into
a set of agreements (the “New JIM Control Documents”) for
the purpose of allowing New WFOE to exert 100% control
and enjoy all economic benefits from Chongging JIM after
completion of the Share Swap Agreement. The New JIM Control
will only become effective upon completion of the Share Swap
Agreement. The terms of the New JIM Control Documents are
substantially the same with the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap).

(iii) On 21 May 2019, the Company acquired 80.04% of VBill
(Cayman) from the four companies wholly-owned by the
Management Shareholders respectively (the “Management
Shareholders Holdco”) at nominal consideration of US$8,004.

(iv) On 24 October 2019, New WFOE, Chongging JIM, Mr. Zhou
and Mr. Na executed the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) (to take effect upon signing and cease to be effective on
the completion of the Share Swap Agreement).

(v) Management Shareholders Holdcos surrendered all the issued
shares in VBill (Cayman) held by them to VBill (Cayman) at nil
consideration.
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Each of the Management Shareholders (registered shareholders of
VBill OPCO) and each of the Management Shareholders Holdcos
is a connected person of the Company at subsidiary level. Each of
Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na (registered shareholders of Chongging JIM) is
a director of certain insignificant subsidiaries of the Company. Each
of Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na will cease to be exempted as a connected
person of the Company at subsidiary level if the insignificant
subsidiary exceptions under Rule 14A.09 no longer apply. If
so, the transactions contemplated under the Chongging JIM VIE
Restructuring (except step (iv)) constitute connected transactions
and/or continuing connected transactions at subsidiary level under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements but are exempt
from the circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled
“Information on the contractual arrangements” and the
announcements of the Company dated 21 May 2019 and 24
October 2019.

Grant of waiver

The Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has granted a
waiver pursuant to Rule 14A.102 of the Listing Rules from (i) fixing
the term of the Yunrong Control Documents and New JIM Control
Documents for a period of not exceeding three years pursuant
to Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, and (ii) setting a maximum
aggregate annual cap pursuant to Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules
for (x) the services fees payable by Hunan Yunrong to Beijing Hi
Sunsray and the amount of loans to be made available by Beijing
Hi Sunsray to Hunan Yunrong (as contemplated under the Yunrong
Control Documents), and (y) the services fees payable by Chongging
JIM to the New WFOE and the amount of loans to be made
available by the new WFOE to Chongging JIM (as contemplated
under the New JIM Control Documents). The waiver is subject to the
conditions as set out more particularly in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 May 2019.

Views of directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Yunrong Control Documents and New JIM Control Documents and
confirmed that the transactions carried out during the year ended
31 December 2020 have been entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; and (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the Yunrong
Control Documents and New JIM Control Documents on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2020 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Board confirms that the auditor has issued an unqualified
letter confirming the matters in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing rules in respect of the Group’s continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020 as being in
order. A copy of this letter has been provided to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the applicable requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions as disclosed in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements do not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company confirms that it has complied with the applicable
requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, total purchase of E-Payment terminals from
PAX Global amounted to approximately HK$38.6 million, and
was regarded as capital in nature. As at 31 December 2020, the
Company held approximately 33.3% interest in PAX Global and Mr.
Li Wenijin, currently also serving as an Executive Director of both
the Company and PAX Global, was interested in 13,890,000 shares
of PAX Global, representing approximately 1.27% of the then issued
share capital of PAX Global.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the 5 largest
suppliers of items which are not of capital nature was less than 30%
of the total purchases of the Group for the year.
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The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the Group's
major customers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 3%
— five largest customers combined 9%

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their close associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had interests in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
20 January 2021, 4 February 2021 and 10 February 2021. On 19
January 2021 (New York Time), Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(“Cloopen”), made a public filing of its registration statement
pursuant to the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission in
connection with its proposed listing and offering of its American
depositary shares (“ADSs”) on the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”). The trading in the ADSs on NYSE commenced on 9
February 2021 (New York time). Immediately upon completion of
the offering of the ADSs on 8 March 2021, the shareholding of the
Company in Cloopen was diluted and reduced to 17.10%. The
Group's interest in Cloopen is accounted for as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

Save as disclosed above, no other important event affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of YEAR 2020.

PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate,
and participate as required, in a defined contribution retirement
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) set up in accordance with the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485)
under which employer and employees are each required to make
regular mandatory contributions calculated at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income (“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF Scheme,
subject to the minimum and maximum relevant income levels
as prescribed by law. Employees may also make voluntary
contributions additional to the Mandatory Contributions.
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Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an
employee are fully and immediately vested in the employee once
paid to the trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return
derived from the investment of the Mandatory Contributions is
also fully and immediately vested in the employee. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the accrued benefits derived from the
employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject to other applicable
provisions of law.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC,
the Group is required to contribute to certain retirement benefit
schemes in favour of the employees in the PRC an amount equal
to approximately 7% to 20% of their respective yearly wages. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those workers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business, apart from the
Group's business, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly with the Group's business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Directors confirm that the Company has
maintained at all times the sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three years and will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

This Report of the Directors shall comprise all such cross-references
herein contained to other parts of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company,
transparency and accountability of all operations and that its
business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices
and standards, the Company has applied the Principles and
complied with all applicable Code Provisions for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance or compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and employees’ compliance
manual to ensure that the Group’s operations are conducted in
accordance with the standards of the CG Code and applicable
disclosure requirements. Directors and senior management are
provided with appropriate ongoing training, continuing professional
development for regular updates of the legal and regulatory
requirements relevant to their duties.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a written code regulating directors’ and
senior management’s securities transactions, on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and
the Group’s code throughout the year and up to the date of this
annual report.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves power for decisions concerning all major
matters which include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of Director(s) or substantial
shareholder(s), appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board
papers and relevant information, as well as the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

To assist the Directors in performing their duties, each Director may
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
to assist in the performance of directors duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making a timely request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions
as to the senior management’s powers, the scope of delegations
and relevant arrangements are periodically reviewed to ensure they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs. Reporting to and prior
approval of the Board are necessary before the senior management
enters into any material transactions and assuming significant
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board have a balance of skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of 5 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members upholds the effective exercise of independent judgement.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time and an updated list of all directors
identifying their role and function is maintained on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and subject to re-election
at annual general meeting and the key terms and conditions are set
out in formal letters of appointment.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company. Subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules, the
service contracts shall not exceed 3 years and may otherwise be
terminated in accordance with the terms of the respective service
contracts.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has been
appointed for a fixed contract term of one year, subject to renewal
on a yearly basis and re-election in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and the CG code, and such term shall be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the respective appointment letter.
Further appointment of any Independent Non-Executive Director
having served for more than 9 years should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders.
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Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive induction on the occasion of
his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under applicable laws, rules
and regulations, and the Group’s governance and internal control
policies. The Company also arranges and funds suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings
for the Directors in the form of seminar and provision of training
materials. A summary of training received by the Directors during
the reporting period according to the records provided by the
Directors is as follows:

sE1EI
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RHEAREXM RIBEFREM L EFNKRE
HRER 2T

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and
other relevant topics

EEER EEERK

Name of Directors ERps H A8 FA E —ELE
Executive Directors: WITES:

Cheung Yuk Fung REE {
Kui Man Chun RBE {
Xu Wensheng ®XE {
Li Wenjin ENE |
Xu Changjun HEE 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIFRITESE :

Tam Chun Fai EiREE {
Leung Wai Man, Roger ZER |
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard R 2 \

During the year, each of the joint company secretaries attended
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”), under which the Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors in the
Board members’ selection process, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board members’ appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board is comprised of a solid slate of Directors with
diverse perspectives and varied educational background and
expertise made-up, from extensive knowledge of the information
technology industry and electronic payment industry, experience
in international trade, finance and corporate management, to
professional qualifications in the legal and accounting fields.
Each Director has accumulated experience in his respective field
of expertise for at least 20 years, all of whom share and acquire
the talent and competence to drive the industry so as to bring
sustainable growth to the Company.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Four regular Board meetings were held during the year for, among
others, reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance and respectively the final results for the year ended
31 December 2019, results for the three months ended 31 March
2020, interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020
and results for the nine months ended 30 September 2020, and
considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.
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The attendance of individual Directors at the four regular quarterly
Board meetings (not including other ad hoc meetings of the Board
held from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of
the Board in compliance with the CG Code), committee meetings
and general meetings of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out below:

BREERB&E"ZT_FTF+_A=+—HILFE
HEAATORERFTEEFTE T2 (FEEAMT

REBETZAEREFETRMRBEEEARTRIZ
ERHEMEZERNEGH ZETERMREAE
ZECEREIILT

Att e/Number of meetings*
BHNEBIRY
Risk
Audit Nominati R Management Regular Annual Special
Committee Committee Committee Committee Board General General
Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings* Meeting Meeting Meeting
EREEY RREZEE FHEEE RBEE  EREFE BRR BRR
Name of Directors BEEHL g3 g3 g% ZRgeH g3 BEXE BHAE
Cheung Yuk Fung RELE N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11 11
T~EA T~EA TEA TEA
Kui Man Chun REE N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/4 17 17
TEA T~EA TEA TEA
Xu Wensheng wxXE N/A N/A N/A 212 4/4 11 11
TEA TEA TEA
Li Wenjin EXE N/A 7 7 22 4/4 n n
TEA
Xu Changjun HEE N/A N/A N/A 212 4/4 1”1 1”1
TEA T~EA TEA
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RIEE 212 N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11 11
TEA TEA TEA
Tam Chun Fai B IRIE 2/2 7 7 N/A 4/4 17 17
TEA
Leung Wai Man, Roger RER 22 171 1”1 N/A 4/4 1”1 1”1
TEA
Note: B
& Meetings may be attended in person or by electronic means including ~ * RS HFEEH IARAT 2 A EMA A FFHEES
telephone or video conferencing as allowed under the Company’s Bye- REEREETHHESE-
laws.
* Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Controller, Joint Company  * R LI RAABD 2 EBYBEE - MEAINE

Secretary and member of Risk Management Committee of the Company
attended all meetings of the Risk Management Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Board meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days in advance, and agendas together with accompanying
board papers are disseminated to the Directors within reasonable
time before meetings. Reasonable notice is, as permitted by the
Company’s Bye-laws under relevant circumstances or otherwise
agreed, given for other Board and committee meetings.
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The Company Secretary, as delegated by the Chairman, has been
responsible for preparing the agenda of board meetings, taking
into account any matters the Directors may propose to include,
ensuring that all Directors are given opportunity to include matters
in the agenda and approving the agenda. In order to enable the
Directors to make informed decision, agenda and accompanying
board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
appraised of the latest developments and/or financial position of the
Company. The Board and the individual Directors also have separate
and independent access to the senior management to make further
enquires or when they require further information in addition to
those volunteered by the senior management.

The Company Secretary and senior management attend all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on, among others, business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing and keeping the
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
records sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and any, dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or
Director are dealt with at a duly convened physical Board meeting,
at which independent non-executive Directors having no material
interest in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any
of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) having
material interests in the transactions shall abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving such
transactions.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are clearly defined. The clear division of management of the
Board and day-to-day management of business ensures a balanced
power and authority such that no concentration of power shall
vest in any one individual. During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung
acted as the Chairman, and Mr. Kui Man Chun acted as the Chief
Executive Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice and established corporate
governance procedures. With the support of the Company Secretary
and the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information, which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board'’s affairs, taking the lead to act in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman also promotes a culture
to facilitate effective contributions and encourage the Directors
to express dissenting views and concerns and allow sufficient
discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is
in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations
and is is also responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organisational structure, monitoring control systems
and internal control procedures and processes for the Board's
approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors possess a wide range
of business and financial expertise, experiences and, through
participation in board meetings, offer independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conducts. Through taking the lead
where potential conflicts on interests arise, serving on the Board
committees, examining the Company’s performance in achieving
corporate goals and objectives and monitoring performance
reporting, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have become
an integral part of the healthy growth of the Company.
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During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors also
attended all general meetings of the Company, details of which
are set out in page 82, enabling them to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of Rule
3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board and
with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the three Independent
Non-Executive Directors a written annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
guidelines for assessing independence set out thereunder.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Risk Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference, setting out its authority
and duties, and requiring the Board committees to report back
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations (unless
otherwise restricted by legal or regulatory requirements). To provide
transparency, the terms of reference of the Board committees
are made available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s
websites and hard copies of which are available to Shareholders
upon request.

All Board committees, save as the Risk Management Committee,
consist of a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Chairman and members of each Board committee as at the date of
this annual report are set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard*
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Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)*
Tam Chun Fai*

Li Wenjin®

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*

Li Wenjin®

Risk Management Committee
Xu Changjun (Chairman)”

Xu Wensheng”

Li Wenjin®

Hui Lok Yan*

* Independent Non-Executive Director

Executive Director

*  Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Controller and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable and timely request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-Executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.

During the reporting year, the main duties of the Audit Committee
include the followings:

(@) to review the financial statements, reports, accounting policies
and practices and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the company’s staff, compliance officers, qualified
accountant or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work they performed, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
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(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, audit process, the Group’s financial
control, internal control system, risk management system and
associated procedures; and

(d) to cooperate with Risk Management Committee to ensure Risk
Management Committee has adequate resources and access to
information necessary to fulfil their duties and responsibilities
with respect to risk assessment and risk management.

The written terms of reference which describing the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with
reference to the CG Code, “Principles of Auditor Independence
and the Role of Corporate Governance in Monitoring an Auditor’s
Independence” issued by the Technical Committee of the
International Organization of Securities Commissions and “A Guide
for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2020 to review the half-yearly and annual financial
results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures,
internal control and risk management systems, effectiveness of
internal audit function of the Group, the auditor’s independence
and objectivity. The Audit Committee has also met with the
Company’s auditor twice during the year and recommended the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor
and approved their remuneration and terms of engagement. The
Board confirms that it has taken no different view from the Audit
Committee in relation to its recommendations.

As at the end of 2020 and the date of this annual report, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2020 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, as provided
under the terms of reference adopted in compliance with the
requirements under the CG Code, include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessment of the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals,
business requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. External recruitment agency may also
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
procedure of nominating, appointing and re-appointing a Director.
The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate
include, inter alia, his/her academic background and professional
qualifications, relevant industry experience, character and integrity
and whether he/she can contribute to the diversity of the Board as
detailed in the Board Diversity Policy, which is regularly reviewed
by the Nomination Committee with a view to achieve a diversified
spectrum of Directors to facilitate a balanced development of the
Company. The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director
is based on objective criteria and summarised as follows:—

1. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may nominate
or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director for
consideration;

2. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall evaluate the
personal profile of each of the candidates based on the criteria
as set out under the above section;

3. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of each candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval;

4. (for a Candidate whom may be nominated as an independent
non-executive Director) the Board should assess the candidate’s
independence under Code Provisions A.3.3 and A.4.3 of the
CG Code and Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
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5. (for a candidate whom may be elected as an independent non-
executive Director at a general meeting) the Board should
consider the following pursuant to Code Provision A.5.5 of the
CG Code;

6. (in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors) the
Board shall review the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance, including attendance of committees, board and
general meetings, and level of participation and performance
on the Board, and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration and to the Shareholders for re-election at general
meetings; and

7. the Board will convene a meeting for discussion of
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Kui Man Chun
and Mr. Li Wenjin, Executive Directors, and Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung,
Richard, an Independent Non-Executive Director, will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year and
has recommended the re-appointment of the said retiring Directors
standing for re-election to the Board, following which the Board,
after due consideration, has recommended their re-appointment
for the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Company’s circular dated 13 April 2021 contains detailed
information of the retiring Directors standing for re-election.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives and duties of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in its terms of reference adopted in compliance with
the requirements under the CG Code, which include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
whose remuneration will be determined with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company, market practice
and conditions as well as the Group’s goals and objectives.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the
remuneration policy and structure and make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management and other related matters. The
Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the
Chairman and/or the Board about these recommendations. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2020 to review and recommend the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management, to establish
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy and to assess performance of the Executive Directors and
approve the terms of their respective service contracts.

The remuneration, including employee incentive programmes of
subsidiaries, payable to the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:
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Number of individuals

Remuneration band M 4R B AEL
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7t ZE2,000,0007 7T 5
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 752 4,000,00078 75 1
HK$13,000,001 — HK$14,000,000 13,000,00178 75 214,000,000 75 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 9 and note 39
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises four members, three
being Executive Directors. Main duties of the Risk Management
Committee include the followings:

(@) to review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance
controls) and internal audit function, to ensure that effective
and adequate risk management and internal control systems are
established and maintained and that sufficient resources are in
place for the Group’s internal audit function;

(b) to consider the effectiveness of the Group’s decision making
processes in crisis and emergency situations and to maintain
the Group's risk management standards; and

(c) on an annual basis report to the Board on the effectiveness
of the risk management systems and internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls)
for the Group and adequacy of resources of its internal audit
functions.

The Risk Managements Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company, including (i) to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management; (iii)
to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employee and Directors and their compliance
of the same and (v) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG
Code and relevant disclosure obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.
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The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 97 to 107.

Senior Management

The senior management have provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior
management to all members of the Board to enable proper
discharge of duties by the Board a whole or each member
individually by giving them balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospectus
in sufficient details.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk
assessment and management systems and acknowledges its
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an adequate
and effective risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and the assets of the Group. It evaluates the effectiveness of the
systems at least annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and is kept apprised of significant risks that may impact
the performance of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate
risks, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. We have adopted a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all
business unit levels and across functional areas.
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Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and record identified risks, the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures
to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted to determine
risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high risk) after
evaluation of the risk by likelihood of occurrence and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings determine the level of managements’
attention and risk treatment effort required.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner of
departments and major subsidiaries is required to capture and
identify the key inherent risks that affect the achievement of its
objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated according to the risk
matrix. After taking into consideration the risk response, such as
control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk of
each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Risk Management
Committee. The Risk Management Committee, evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and report to the Board. The highest
category of residual risks is subject to the Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Internal Control Department of the Company (the “Internal
Control Department”) has performed an ongoing review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems throughout the year (during which an external independent
consulting firm was engaged to offer assistance) covering the
Group's material controls in financial, operational and compliance
aspects agreed and approved by the Risk Management Committee
and in compliance with the requirements under Code Provision C.2
of the CG Code.
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The Internal Control Department reported to the Risk Management
Committee and the Risk Management Committee was satisfied
that there had been no major deficiency noted in the areas of the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems, following
the implementation of recommendations against the internal
control defects revealed. The Audit Committee cooperates with
the Risk Management Committee to ensure the Risk Management
Committee has access to information necessary to fulfil their
duties and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment and risk
management. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems to
be effective and have been implemented with adequate resources
during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board has already established a policy for the handling
and dissemination of inside information. The policy stipulates
the obligations of the Group, in respect of the restriction on
disseminating non-public information, handling of rumours,
unintentional selective disclosure, exemption and wavier to the
disclosure of inside information, and also compliance and reporting
procedures. Senior management must take all reasonable measures
to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent any breach of
disclosure requirement from time to time. Employees are required
to promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside
information to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his
delegates, who will notify the Board timely and accordingly for
taking the appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of
this policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate persons
to decide the course of actions for rectifying the problem and
avoiding recurrence.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company
in respect of audit and non-audit services, such as tax consulting
service, for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$4,238,000 and HK$4,387,000 respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS
(a) Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting

(b)

(c)

Shareholder(s)” holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition for a special general meeting, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company may, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary(ies) signed
and deposited in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the Directors
to call a special general meeting for the transaction of business
specified in the requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meeting.

Communication with shareholders and investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between Shareholders and the Board. The
Company held 2 general meetings during the year. Notices
of the general meetings were sent in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, the Company’s Bye-
laws and other applicable laws. At the general meetings,
directors were made available to answer questions, adequate
measures were taken to provide effective communication
with shareholders, separate issues were proposed as separate
resolutions for the shareholders’ approval, shareholders were
familiarised with the detailed procedures for voting by poll
and given sufficient chances to raise questions. The Company’s
external auditor also attended the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 29 May 2020 to answer any questions about
the conduct of audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies applied and their
independence.

BHEH (FE) AIRAF —ETTEEFR

Corporate Governance Report

SIS

RRRIEF RIGE BRI

(@)

(b)

(c)

ERBRARRFIREZER

PR BRREEIAE2FHBRFAEIRE
NERRAREG LITERREZ A RBHRRAE
RO+ 2Z2—2RE AJRBEAATZ AT
HMARBRE-NN—FRFE BEFEY
ARNEREERBZEMEZH EXEFA
R RS RIRE  URIEZ 2FYIFAZEHE-

RIRRAE LREBBZEF

RFAEIRERBRRARE LTERREZAR
BIERERN VIR Z+ 02 —ZREHIF DR
100K AIRBARE—NN—FREE
REBARMEBERLERZZEEMER URN
RERAE FRERH MXHEBTEE

BRRKRIREERE

REAL
FAERRAER/RFREEFERHEERE
BRE-ARANERNBIT2RRRAE K
RAGBEEREBELTRIEARTZAF
AR EMBEREENREEE - RREKX
gL EXOEME KMEDNEHEARR
ETANES REEBZRBFESBEERRE
EMREME BREATUARESALKR
AR LA EREHEHIRREE - &
AERIINEZBEATHER 2 -_2F 1A
“HNABRETHEARTRRBEAGUEE
ERBERERT ZBEMRSNERIERE
Rz G5t BRURRER L 2 AR

95



HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Corporate Governance Report
P
SIS

Other Communications
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary to direct
their written enquires to the Board.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Board regularly reviews the Company’s shareholders
communication policy (which has been made available at
the Company’s website) to ensure that the shareholders and
potential investors at large are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, including its financial performance,
strategic goals and plans, material developments, corporate
governance and risk profile, in order to enable shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow active
shareholders” engagement with the Company.

The Company also maintains a website at www.hisun.com.
hk, where updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, financial information and news can always be
found.
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To The Shareholders of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hi Sun Technology (China)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 108 to 239, which comprise:

¢ the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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B N7 A% SR
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Impairment of loan receivables

e Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
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Key Audit Matter
MEEER
Impairment of loan receivables

FEWRETURE

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(i) (financial risk factors), Note 4(a) (critical
accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 20 (loan
receivables) to the consolidated financial statements for the related
disclosures.

BRAEREBIENEE A2 RS M BIRRITEES. 1 b)) G155
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gross loan receivables
amounted to HK$1,088.0 million, and a provision for impairment of
loan receivables of HK$44.9 million was recognised in the Group's
consolidated balance sheet. The credit impairment losses on loan
receivables in the Group’s consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$67.0 million.
RIZTEF+-A=+—H>  S&EENERKREREBES
1,088,000,00087c° £ BEEEGAEEBBRETNERK
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J§5487%567,000,00078 7T °

The balance of provision for impairment of loan receivables
represents the management’s best estimates at the balance sheet
date of expected credit losses under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9: Financial Instruments expected credit losses models.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HAINEANAREMRESER

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment losses of loan
receivables included:
HAYEREERFLENERAEBRER B2
Fr 8

—  Understood, evaluated and validated the key control

procedures over management’s estimation of expected
credit losses allowance and periodic review on
overdue receivables and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors in association with estimation of expected
credit losses;
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Key Audit Matter
FARE T HIE
Impairment of loan receivables (Continued)

ﬁguy,:r)\/m{ﬁ (I\E)

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and apply a three-stage impairment model to
calculate their expected credit losses. The measurement
models of expected credit losses involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the following:
EEENLRMERZEERBRENT EIEET AR
R =P RERES EHRREEEE - TAH
SEERNEREMIANEREEBHEBNBRRIE
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- Selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default and exposure

at default;
— EERENSTERE wEEAENEES S 6

BAOME BOBRRRRENERAE ;

—  Criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default; and

— FERBRESEZEMIEORNFERE ; K

—  Economic indicator for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and

weightings.
— BARAEMFAENEEER CEBRREEERN
Ao

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the loan
receivables and the significant estimates and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit impairment
losses allowance on the loan receivables.

RPRDE LB R ENRNERNE AR URTEER
WERTRIAE SR ERRRE RS R B A AIFIE -
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Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment losses of loan
receivables included: (Continued)
HPYEREERFLENERAEBRER B2
FaE: (@

— for the historical information, discussed with
management to understand the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit risk,
defaults and credit-impaired loans, corroborated
management’s explanation with supporting evidence;

- %EA?JEE\EH HEEENmIL T REEERER

B BONEEREERBSENOHEG  BEEE

E’Jﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]f&aﬁ&ﬁ?—mﬂ)@

- for forward-looking measurement, we assessed the
reasonableness of economic indicator selection,
economic scenarios and weightings application,
assessed the reasonableness of the estimation by
comparing with industry data; and

- ’%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%’l&%%’?‘21F'ﬁ§$1#“&*?a$EZLHX SEEE
SREENRBNSEN  BBITHEE LB
AN ; &

—  checked major data inputs used in the expected credit
losses models on sample basis to the Group's record.

- BMERERAGEERERELMERNEIEZHE
B EEEMERER

Based on the above, we found that the estimates and
judgement made by management in respect of the
expected credit losses allowance and the collectability
of the loan receivables were supportable by the available
evidence.

ER &R RAEREEEAHRRERTAREER
EREAH KRB Z G5t RFE BRI SIERX R -



Key Audit Matter

Bt EIA

Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

BRAFESFABmZIFEHERMITARFE

Refer to Note 3.3 (fair value estimation), Note 4(b) (critical
accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 19
(financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) to the
consolidated financial statements for related disclosure.
ERERSENKE F2RGEMBREWNE33 (2
FEfED) ~MEE4b) (RRSRE 55 KR F B KRMEE19
HERATEFABEZEREE) °

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held interest in (i)
an unlisted investment fund of HK$123.5 million and (ii)
certain unlisted convertible preference shares of HK$418.5
million; which have been classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.
RIZEZZEHF+TA=+—H> EBE&EBFANOIELT
BREE$123,500,00078 7T K (i) & T IE_ LT AR B 5T
#2418,500,0008 7T ; DERIRATFEFABRTZEME
EEo

These unlisted financial instruments are stated at their
fair values, classified under level three in the fair value
hierarchy.

ZEFIITEMIAEREATEIR BE0BALATE
FHIRBETZ2E=MRe
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HANBEAMARERABRES SRR

Our procedures in relation to management’s determination
of the fair value of these financial instruments included:
BMHEEEEERSEMITAZ AT ERATHNER
BE

For the unlisted investment fund:

FIFLEHREREME

- We tested the accuracy of the net asset value of the
unlisted investment fund by checking to its audited
financial statements; and

— HZfEBREHEEAMBRES AFEFLTRER
TEEFEZERME, &

—  We also involved our internal valuation expert in our
discussion with the management to understand the
rationale for applying the portfolio discount, reviewed
relevant agreements or documents to understand the
key terms of the subject interest and assessed the
appropriateness of portfolio discount by referencing
to relevant research studies and market practices on
various discounts commonly considered in valuations.

— HMTERRMOABTEERLERREESH
BB MEEEETR BRERNGEIX
LT A RMEEVBERRRNES S HENEE
MAKRMETHE-—REZEEHNZETRFTENS
HIER STEREHSTERESRRE -
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Key Audit Matter

RSBt EIA

Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)

BRAFESABmZIFEHEMIARATE @

The fair value of the unlisted investment fund was
determined by applying a portfolio discount to the audited
net asset value of the unlisted investment fund as at 31
December 2020, which had already taken into account
the fair values of the fund’s underlying investments. The
discount rate was determined based upon the relative
shareholding and rights of the Group and the marketability
of the investment.

BEFLHREESZATENESE BHFLHTREES
E?:;ﬁfﬁi"f—*ﬁ =+—H Zm%%ﬁ%*?‘%%f@ﬂﬂﬁiéiﬂ
BITER EREERIESTHEEE AT EHTEX

7 ,\ﬁI*ﬁﬂﬁ’]ﬁﬂ&ﬁ%%'ﬂi&&ﬁﬁ’] BEIHMEMETE

The Group engaged an independent external valuer in determining
the fair value of the unlisted convertible preference shares by using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions used in the
valuation include discount rate, compound annual growth rate and
terminal growth rate.

BEEECERIINEEIUGEN MAFRRERAEEEEF
LEHHAREBERRIATE - HEMAZI2RREERZE
R EEFERERREREIERE
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Our procedures in relation to management’s determination

of the fair value of these financial instruments included:

(Continued)

BB EEEEEZSERMT
8 (@

ZRNFEMBITHER

For the unlisted convertible preference shares:

FLIE LRI ARIBIERME -

—  Understood, evaluated and validated the key control
procedures over management’s estimation of the fair
value of unlisted convertible preference shares and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors in association with
estimation of the fair value of unlisted convertible
preference shares;

— TR FERBREEERMGSIF LT BRRERR
MAFENFERZEWNEFREBE BETHTEE
BEREMFIFETAARERR AT ERRNE

thEA RBEEERKEFHEARERRANES R

i3

- We assessed the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent external valuer by
considering its qualifications, relevant experience and
relationship with the Group;

— BMEBZEEINSBIULGEMNEE  EALRK
2 BEENEF FEEBEED ENRER
1

—  We also involved our internal valuation expert in
our discussion with the external valuer to understand
the rationale, and assess the appropriateness and the
consistency, of the methodologies used and the key
assumptions and estimates applied;

— EATERKMANAMBTEEXRMEERB AR
PR A& FARA SRR AN fh 5t B SMNIS (L (ERTETT ST am » IX
THREREERANER ITEEHRSHRERZ
DETEI&}?KH% )



Key Audit Matter

Bt EIA

Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)

BRAFESFABmZFEHEMIARATE @

We focused on this area because the carrying amounts of these
financial instruments are significant to the consolidated financial
statements and selection of valuation methodologies and
determination of key valuation assumptions requires the use of
significant judgement and estimates.

BRI B RENZEEM T A REENRSMHR
KMEBEX MAEESENEERTIEZMERKNEES
REBRAEAAEMNGST
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HAINEANAREMRESER

Our procedures in relation to management’s determination
of the fair value of these financial instruments included:
(Continued)
RPN EEEEEXSTFEMITAZAFERATHER
B (@

For the unlisted convertible preference shares: (Continued)

FIE LRI REBSLERME © (&)

- We also assessed the reasonableness of the input data
used by evaluating:

— HMATEFETINRERABBESGE

e the discount rate by considering the weighted
average cost of capital and the risk profile of the
investee; and

s ETEMEFHEAMAKRERESZERRK
o ERRESRE, &

e the appropriateness of the compound annual
growth rate and the terminal growth rate based on
market research, historical performance and the
business plan of the investee.

s WREMBMEA ERESZBERFERER

2 IEECFERIABREKIERRESIRE -

—  We also compared the fair value of the unlisted
convertible preference shares with recent transaction
price.

— BFATERIFLHIBRREERAFERIRRS
EfFLEE -

Based on the procedures described, we found the
methodologies used and key assumptions applied in the
valuations to be reasonable and supportable by available
evidence.

RBFT 2R > IR EEPRB A N RER ZRRR
KRB BAARISNERX -
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B N7 A% SR
OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

HthZ2

BERREFAHEMESEE - HtERBEER
WHPFBEER  EFEEGREMBREKRRFIZ
MRS ©

FPHEEUBRRNVERE T REEMES
FITF R ZEHME B ER ATV ERER
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ERBRMAEATHIE NRRMDBAHHMESEEE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

BHEH (FE) AIRAF —ETTEEFR

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

BRHMME S R EMBRRAENTE

@
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LA ENGIEE -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RAILEE

2020 2019
ZEIEHF —E-hF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M FAET FHET
Revenue WA 56 4,143,371 5,575,981
Cost of sales 54 B A 7 (3,037,741) (4,254,553)
Gross profit EF 1,105,630 1,321,428
Other income HAg A 5 153,759 116,842
Other gains, net HuhW s 558 5 245,300 22,040
Selling expenses HERX 7 (92,654) (82,266)
Administrative expenses THER 7 (651,618) (720,768)
Employees’ incentive programmes =Y NSIPA == bed )
of subsidiaries 28 (40,191) (30,303)
Credit impairment loss EERERIE 7 (67,176) (48,800)
Operating profit gEEA 653,050 578,173
Finance costs BLE A 10 (63,722) (10,245)
Share of results of investments accounted ~ FEIEMER ZEARZ
for using the equity method KRB A 22 301,512 208,695
Loss on deemed acquisition and dilution of 3 {FUL SR #E—I18
interest of an investment accounted MHEmEARZEE
for using the equity method, net R PT1S AR/ 2 %8 22 (1,044) =
Profit before income tax PRER1S IR AR 889,796 776,623
Income tax expense PSR~ 11 (110,655) (93,656)
Profit for the year Friaf 779,141 682,967
Profit attributable to: FE{k iz F) -
— Owners of the Company —RRBEHEB A 656,685 569,111
— Non-controlling interests —JEIERE R 122,456 113,856
779,141 682,967
HK$ per HK$ per
share share
SRAET BRAET
Earnings per share for profit attributable ~ Zs2AF) G AL EAZ
to the owners of the Company: sREH
Basic =i 13 0.236 0.205
Diluted e 13 0.206 0.190

F5E239B 2 WEDZEFREMBRER 2 EPEL
consolidated financial statements. o

The notes on pages 115 to 239 are an integral part of these
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e AL T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
k- a2 3 “E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Profit for the year FEREF 779,141 682,967
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax ~ Efth 2z~ (§518)
(R 1E)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to HE G JEE D E T 8m
profit or loss B
Exchange differences arising on translation of MEBINNB AR FHFRE
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EEXCERERE 179,882 (41,393)
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of LU EARZEE Y
investments accounted for HithemEWm (B518)
using the equity method 63,486 (15,961)
Release of reserve upon dilution of interest BENEmAEARZ
in an investment accounted for using —EREELTBRBEZ#E
the equity method (409) =
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1 & E# 7 HEFEm 2 HH
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value ~ ZAFEFFAEMEE KGR Z
through other comprehensive income THEEEEEE - (892)
Share of other comprehensive loss of ML TRIEARZ —BIRE
an investment accounted for ZHME2EEE
using the equity method (2,669) (862)
Total comprehensive income for the year, FA2ENELAEE (NRRIRE)
net of tax 1,019,431 623,859
Attributable to: &AL
— Owners of the Company R VNEIE 2= DN 851,684 516,172
— Non-controlling interests —JFERE D 167,747 107,687
1,019,431 623,859

The notes on pages 115 to 239 are an integral part of these  S115F2398 2 Mz hZ SRS M ERER 2 HH
consolidated financial statements. 70
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n‘T IZI
As at 31 December2020 A TECEF+ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
®+ZA=+—H
2020 2019
ZEIEHF —E—hE
Note HK$/000 HK$'000
i FAET TAT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investment properties LEYE 14 1,219 1,378
Property, plant and equipment Y EN Y& 15 387,318 384,456
Right-of-use assets ERREE 16 81,655 88,501
Intangible assets EmILEE 17 11,231 2,065
Deferred income tax assets FIEPTISMEE 32 17 119
Investments accounted for using DRSS SE ABE 1888
the equity method 22 2,404,813 2,106,737
Financial asset at fair value through BATESFAEHMEE
other comprehensive income Wiz TREE 18 - =
Other financial assets at amortised cost HEIER A2
HthsmEE 25 14,332 2,914
Loan receivables EWRER 20 54 =
Financial assets at fair value through ?‘?{’quﬁ STABmZ
profit or loss THBE 19 542,004 288,206
Bank deposits IRITHENR 27 6,105 =
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 3,448,748 2,874,376
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 23 121,445 95,651
Other current assets HEMREFHEE 26 80,006 67,006
Other financial assets at amortised cost BEIE AT E S
HEmEE 25 88,902 98,795
Amounts due from investments accounted ﬁ%ﬂﬁzuf“*f)\ﬁﬁz
for using the equity method BEZM 37 19,957 19,970
Loan receivables EWRE R 20 1,043,025 385,128
Trade and bills receivables & W BR = R R W ZE 4% 24 273,894 212,174
Financial asset at fair value through AT ESABTRZ
profit or loss TREE 19 1,036 1,712
Current income tax recoverable ﬂ”&@ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁgfﬁ 11,990 10,007
Short-term bank deposits FEHASRIT 17X 27 76 147
Restricted bank balance xﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ? 27 880,552 671,535
Cash and cash equivalents BEAIBEEEEY 27 3,747,468 3,712,567
Total current assets REEEHEE 6,268,351 5,274,692
Total assets BEERE 9,717,099 8,149,068
Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable to TABHEAANBILEERR
owners of the Company B
Share capital N 28 6,942 6,942
Reserves 1 29 5,535,124 4,680,106
5,542,066 4,687,048
Non-controlling interests JEERR 825,438 591,464
Total equity AR 6,367,504 5,278,512
The notes on pages 115 to 239 are an integral part of these  $F115F239B 2 st h2EE M BERER 2 HP SR

consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2020

BHEH (FE) AIRAF

—TTEFR

Consolidated Balance Sheet
n‘T IZI

SHUEARE

St T H +—A

As at 31 December

®W+=ZBA=+—H
2020 2019
ZEIEH ZE-NEF
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
B FAET TAET
Liabilities =i
Non-current liabilities JEREIAERE
Written put option liabilities et =L 33 831,207 683,908
Lease liabilities HEaR 16 28,143 31,494
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFRISINER 32 371 522
Total non-current liabilities JERBaGLasE 859,721 715,924
Current liabilities Bt I B=RE
Trade and bills payables FEAT BR TR B R 4% 30 526,804 439,287
Payables for payment processing SINRFERIEBRT R
solutions business 52 EAIE 30 828,619 599,389
Other payables and accruals HT&WEETTTAIE&B’%E‘l'TAIE 30 1,013,991 1,029,432
Amounts due to investments accounted U REAEZIRE
for using the equity method Z IR 37 43,936 21,226
Current income tax liabilities BIHAFRS R as 51,189 31,905
Borrowing (=57 31 - 5,577
Lease liabilities HEAaR 16 25,335 27,816
Total current liabilities mENBELEEE 2,489,874 2,154,632
Total liabilities BEEE 3,349,595 2,870,556
Total equity and liabilities EankaBiEsE 9,717,099 8,149,068
The financial statements on pages 108 to 239 were approved by  $5108E239BH > MBEHRFRAEEETN T —F=
the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021 and were signed on itt B Z+HhBHERERTREE-
behalf.
XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
®mXE EXE
Director Director
BE BE
The notes on pages 115 to 239 are an integral part of these  F115F2398 ~ {5 H 2L E S M EREA 2 HAEE

consolidated financial statements.
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fort o HUE B2 ) 9%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

LYNSIE PN
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve earnings interests Total

ke REE  REERE  RMHE O ERE  RERN FERER GH
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Balance at 1 January 2020 KIB-DE-A-AZiR 6942 1063153 168434 434108 (1,043 3055454 591464 5278512
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Profit for the year FRiEF - - = S S 656,685 122,456 779,141
Other comprehensive loss Hh2EEH
Exchange differences arising on translation of the ~ E BB AFHBREEEZ

financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EREE - = = = 134,591 = 45,291 179,882
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of BN B ENRZREZ

investments accounted for using Hth2E (58 /ha

the equity method - - - (2,669) 63,486 - - 60,817
Release of reserve upon dilution of interestinan i BLEGZ A NEL —BRE

investment accounted for using the equity method & 2 - - - - (409) - - (409)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (518 /RELE = = 5 (2,669 197,668 656,685 167,747 1,019,431
Share of other reserves of an investment iR E AR R E 2 Hit e

accounted for using the equity method - - - 13,025 - - - 13,025
Deemed disposals of shares of subsidiaries (Note 34) 7% ERBARIRD (1z234) = = = (39,050) 1,697 = 53,698 16,345
Employees’ incentive programme of WEAE 2 ERREHE (HiH28)

a subsidiary (Note 26) - - - 27,662 - - 12,529 40,191
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIBZEF+ZA=+—-HZER 6,942 1,063,153 168,434 433,076 158322 3,712,139 825438 6,367,504

The notes on pages 115 to 239 are an integral part of these S115E239B 2 ZEFHREMBRER 2 EPES
consolidated financial statements. e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

) %

KRFHEE AEL
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve eamings interests Total
ki RGEE  BEER  EtEE  SERGE  REEN HEkRER fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TE FEL THER TEn FE THEL THR ThR
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-hE-B—-B2E&H 6,942 1,063,153 168,434 647,029 6312 2,486,343 193,002 4571275
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Profit for the year ERER - - - - = 569,111 113,856 682,967
Other comprehensive loss Hh2EEH
Exchange differences arising on translation of the ~ BEBIHNIBAFHBRREEZ
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries BRER - - - - (35,224) - (6,169) (41,393)
Share of other comprehensive loss of investments — FEfEMUERZ AR ZREZ
accounted for using the equity method Ht2EfE - - - (862) (15,961) - - (16,823)
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value AT EFAEMEZENREZ
through other comprehensive income THEEEAEEZD - - - (892) - - - (892)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (55 /RELE - - - (1,754 (51185 569,111 107,687 623,859
Share of other reserves of an investment BB ENRZ REZ MBS
accounted for using the equity method - - - 12,797 - - - 12,797
Deemed disposal of shares of subsidiaries RALERBADRG - - - (276,404) 3,830 = 255,328 (17,246)
Employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary  MEAT) 2 EELEE):E = = = 30,303 = = S 30,303
Exercise of employees’ incentive programme of T B/AE 2 EE & B
a subsidiary - - - 22,137 - - 35,387 57,524
Balance at 31 December 2019 RIB-AE+-AS+—BZHEB 694 1063153 168434 434108 (41,043) 3055454 591464 5278512
The notes on pages 115 to 239 are an integral part of these  S115E239B Z W hZEREMFHRER 2 HPES

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—Z

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

For the year ended
31 December

#E+_"_A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
—ETEF B—hIEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g FHET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REERHZRERE
Cash generated from operations Preg =Y =Ri= R 35(a) 199,457 1,370,295
Interest paid BAFR (2,721) (2,831)
Overseas income tax paid EXMEIINTER (95,804) (113,002)
Net cash generated from REEBRRT P
operating activities 100,932 1,254,462
Cash flows from investing activities REBFHZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BE B %)% - = K i 15 (222,401) (219,798)
Purchase of intangible assets BEETEE (11,972) (304)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - -BRERZE
plant and equipment PRISRIA 35(b) 376 157
Proceeds from distribution from a financial & B —IBRAFEE A
asset at fair value through profit or loss BHzeMBEEZ DA
PRSI 19 - 3,202
Acquisition of investments accounted for WL R A ABR
using the equity method ZIRE (7,895) =
Increase in restricted bank balance ZIRHIERITASBRIZ N 27 (154,107) (671,535)
Dividend income received from an BWR—FEBER T Z
associated company iz B 22 47,320 29,120
Interest received BUFHE 70,975 53,572
Net cash used in investing activities KETHMAEREFEE (277,704) (805,586)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEFHZIRERE
Net cash inflow from deemed disposals of R&HEWB AT RDZ
shares of subsidiaries RERAFEE 34 95,169 659,248
Proceeds from the issuance of shares BTRTE—ENERR
in connection with exercise of BRERRANKMNZ
share options of a subsidiary PSR = 12,270
Proceed from bank borrowing SRIT RS RS 35(c) = 5,577
Repayment of bank borrowing BERITER 35(c) (5,623) (10,115)
Principal elements of lease payments HMEMRZ A0 35(c) (39,338) (27,942)
Decrease in short-term bank deposits FEHRIRITEFUR L 76 1,428
Net cash generated from financing activities Fi& & BIPTI1SIR % P 2A 50,284 640,466
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERREEBEYZ
cash equivalents GRZD) /tEhnisEe (126,488) 1,089,342
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRERIRTEEY
of the year 3,712,567 2,681,475
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and fﬁﬁ)ﬁ'ﬁﬁ%#fﬁ"?@z
cash equivalents Rl (B518) 161,389 (58,250)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FE48IR & KIREEEY) 27 3,747,468 3,712,567
The notes on pages 115 to 239 are an integral part of these 11522398 Z SR BIRER ZERE

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZEZ

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), are principally engaged
in the provision of payment processing solutions, sales of
information security chips and solutions, provision of platform
operation solutions, provision of financial solutions and sales of
electronic power meters and solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
otherwise stated.

unless

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), which are
measured at fair values.

1

ok DRI

ERARAR i)l o
—RRE R

SERE (RE) BRAR ((RR8)) REWEA
8 (ES TrEE) TERERMUIARZE
BRRARZ HEERLZE R RBARFLE IR
HEREBEERRAFE RESRBART B RIH
EBETEERMMBRSG -

KABB— B EREFMRIIZERAR
HEFMitE i A Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ©

TRBNEBMERZPIARAR Lo

BRABFEIN  IWEiRE
A7) BEAZY]e

IR ERUT BT (F

EXETBREE

RAUEFREMBRERHGRAZIEGEER
HINT BB AR ZFBERIN 2| Z PR
EFEEMFA

2.1 RBEE

AT ZEES aL SIREIVIRIBEFIAERZ
ERMHREEDN (FEPHHREED))
BEBATER (F622%) 2 REMRER o
ILEEEHBRERELRAE IR LR
B AT ES AR M2 EREG (AT
Bt AEMEEERE) 2SMEBEREA
FEFAEGD BAFESABR) 2%
BB ERIN RN TEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for the annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:

. Definition of Material — amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

. Definition of a Business — amendments to
HKFRS 3

. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

The amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for the reporting period ended
31 December 2020. The Group has not early
adopted these new accounting standards and
interpretations in current reporting period and
is in the process of assessing their impact on
the Group’s future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

2 BEARZEEEREE @®

2.1 RAEE (B
AT EEBVBREER  RRMFRE
RBFHETEEZZ G5 H5t EEETR
AERRAAEESSBRZBRETFELH
i oY RS H E SR AR MR Y
REVBREAREREATENRR KM
BYEERS I M SE 4 IR ER

21.1 BEHEIR R #5 B
(a) EBRMZ ] REBETHE
Ell

rEEENR _ZE-TF—-F—H
I EERSHABETRAT
B ZERRAERT

o  EBEAZEZR-EBGER
BLRREBGSERIENR
CHIES)

o EBIZER-BBUBRS
R F35E (B5TA)

o MREENE -FBYUHR
HERFIE - BBGHE
ABIFREBYHZRE
#ERISE75E (EFTAH)

o REFTHMBIREMSIER

EXFRIMESTH BT AR RS8R0
TRIEEEAZE BRATE
WARMB AR RAEENERY
o

(b) IR TR R 208

ETMIEstEARZREEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

2 BEARIEEREE @®

2.2 IFEEARREZEHERR
(a) WiELE]

MEARRTEREAIEHRZITE
BRE -EXSER2REEZZEEM
BRSNAEREAHR R IS
ERHEEEERESZEIRZE LT
[O%R > & E B LB Fe A 1EHIE o
BRABHENEEREAEERE QL
EHAEAR LRERIRAILEER
EABHEG AR

AEBRBEBIHEREBAHA
fRe

EERABBZRATERSZ EEHRxREK
BRT W T UG REBIREIE
TG T LIRSS BRIFAE R 7 BanFr
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SAHRERBERRE  UWEREALE
E R R E R — T

FENZFEREERNE A Em
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)
(b) Associated companies

(c)

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting (see (c)
below), after initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
the consolidated income statement, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associated
companies are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.11.

2 BEARZEEEREE @®
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHBEREZE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 2.2 BEARKEDGHERR (B
(Continued)
(d) Changes in ownership interests

d) #HEEERZEE)

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income statement. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement
where appropriate.

FEEREIFHERBR RS LTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEXAZ:iHEFEHE @
POLICIES (Continued)

instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
e consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

2.3 Business combinations 2.3 EBEH
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account REBRBWBEHERFIBEBSHA
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity iR > M Ao B 2 T Ao HAth & 2 o Wi hE
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o FIBEBERBAEAELEZERE

o FEEETZRE

o WAREZHELZEFNEERER
ZnFE R

e MRMBRARAEAEFEREZAF
=

BROBBIIMERIN REBEHWREZ A
HMAEEUREEZ ABRIAAREE ]
TRWERRZATEE FEERZE
iR EERD R BER TR IFERE
o AT ERLGHERE R G R U
BRER AR EERERLLAIE &

W AERAR A EE RS2 8 o

MR&IE !

o FREEAE

o WKBBEZERIHEREBmDESE
R

o EMEAINRIIEERE 2 IR ULEE
B#Z A Y E

HBEFT R M EEFEATEZEE
M Ey iR - M ZEERMNPTEER
AHpBEEFEZATE AHEEERE
RiFEWmRAEE S REBA -



BHEH (FE) AIRAF

—TTEFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W 5 R BT i

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses
arising from such remeasurement are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

2 BEARIEEREE @®

2.3

2.4

EHEH (@
HEEEAE RN EERLE BIH%
EURBEEREAMHANRE-FIA
AEIRE A BRNIEEEMAZE (NiZaE
LB AR AT BB I R E 5 ERR AR
LUERFI R - AN B D E AR EN R
BE-DESEMEBEZSREREAT
BEEME MATELBANGEENRT
RAFEEE

MEFHGH D EERET B ZRIER
BHEHSREAREREER ZREE R
BHEATEENAE -ENAEELEN
EAEEBEAE R PR -

B MBwRER
RHBARZRERMAENRRES
fRe A BEERBGRERE HBEAT
ZEBDATABRERKRERREEE
N

HREBHNBAR SRR EME Z2H
W48 % BV BRERPREZIR
HEBHGEMBREATRENREE
FE (BEBE) ZREE AAREEZE
RERBER HZFWBLABDZREET
BERIE

121



122

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Gk o W B Rk sk

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within
‘administrative expenses’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at FVPL are recognised in the profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial asset at FVOCI are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEARIEEREE @®

2.6 JMNEME (8
() FEEETAA

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in the consolidated income statement. For
all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associated companies
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to the consolidated income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEARIEEREE @®

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 ME - -BERHE

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 5-10%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over lease terms,

whichever is shorter
Office furniture and equipment 18%-33%
Plant and equipment 10%-33%
Motor vehicles 18%-25%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group, is classified as investment property. The cost of
an investment property comprises its purchase price and
any costs directly attributable to bringing the property
to its intended use. After initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost of the investment property over its estimated
useful lives, as follows:
Buildings 5%
Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land (included in right-of-use assets)
Leasehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
upfront prepayments made for the rights to use the land
for periods varying from 40 to 50 years. Amortisation of
leasehold land is expensed in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

Brand name, customer list and contracts, patents

and capitalised software development costs and in-
progress technology

Separately acquired brand name, customer list
and contracts, patents and capitalised software
development costs and in-progress technology are
shown at historical cost. Brand name, customer
list and contracts, patent and capitalised software
development costs and in-progress technology
acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair values at the date of acquisition. They have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of them over
their estimated useful lives (1.5-5 years).

Software

Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). Costs associated
with developing or maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEXAZ:iHEFEHE @
POLICIES (Continued)

211 FFERMBEEZRE

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and is tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Assets that are subjected to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

— those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

HEGARHETEEFETRENR X
RAEFEHHIERAE T RELREER
BREMEITHENS - HESHER
B R IR E B P] AE B A IR [BI By o S AR Y
A BERRERR - REBEZE
ERE(EBBE IO AR Z D
I Bl A A E A N TE R E AR fE
BEE UREERE) TEAER &
ERABYIHRERANREKRFTD
BoHMMEAMRERARER BINE
thEENEEAFNRERA (REELE
i) fHIFEREE FERIN HREE.
AlgRNEREH RS S ERIRE

212 RERAMEMEE

(a) 74
AEENTREED AU TEI248ER)

— BRRATESE GTAEMEE

WEmslEt AR < SREE K

REIERAFT B SMEE -

NERTEREESMEE EBE
ARREREZ BHFRRIME °



BHEH (FE) AIRAF

—TTEFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZEZ

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in the consolidated income
statement or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(i) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income, except for interest income generated from
loan receivables which is included in revenue,
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

(i) _Fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Impairment expenses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
(iii) Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
the consolidated income statement following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated income statement as ‘other gains,
net’" when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses (“ECL”) associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“HKFRS 9”), which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEXAZ:iHEFEHE @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.131KEERTE

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

132

No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar arrangements as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour cost and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.15 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against ‘credit impairment loss” in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.18 Written put option liabilities

The Group has a written put option over the equity of a
subsidiary which permit the holder to put their shares in
the subsidiary back to the Group at an agreed price on
specified dates over a three year period. The amount that
may become payable under the option on exercise is
initially recognised at the present value of the redemption
amount within ‘written put option liabilities’ with a
corresponding charge directly to equity within ‘other
reserves’.

The liability is subsequently accreted through finance
charges up to the redemption amount that is payable at
the date at which the option becomes exercisable. In the
event that the option expires unexercised, the liability is
derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.19 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
consolidated income statement as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value, depending
on which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

(c)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2 BERGHHREE @

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees” basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for
the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

(c)

The Group companies in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by relevant
government authorities for its employees in the
PRC and contribute to these plans based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the employees on a
monthly basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary
amount, as stipulated by the relevant government
authorities. The government authorities undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of these
employees under these plans. Contributions to these
retirement benefits schemes are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.23 Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Subsidiaries of the Group operate equity-settled share-

based compensation plans, under which the entity receives

services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be

expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

including any market performance conditions;

excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for example,
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHHEHEE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (Continued) 2.23 UM AERNTRR (@)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the subsidiaries issue
new shares. The difference between the proceeds received
and the change in non-controlling interest is recognised in
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

When the options are cancelled during the vesting
period, the Group recognises immediately the amount
that otherwise would have been recognised for services
received over the remainder of the vesting period.

When the options are modified, the Group will include the
incremental fair value granted in the measurement of the
amount recognised for services received as consideration
for the equity instruments granted. The incremental fair
value granted is the difference between the fair value of
the modified equity instrument and that of the original
equity instrument, both estimated as at the date of the
modification. If the modification occurs during the vesting
period, the incremental fair value granted is included in
the measurement of the amount recognised for services
received over the period from the modification date until
the date when the modified equity instruments vest, in
addition to the amount based on the grant date fair value
of the original equity instruments, which is recognised
over the remainder of the original vesting period. If the
modification occurs after vesting date, the incremental fair
value granted is recognised immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHHEHME @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 #15

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

(a) Sales of goods

The Group engaged in sales of information
security chips and electronic power meters. Sales
are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers, the customer has accepted the
products, the collection of the related consideration
is probable and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHHEHEE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 WA FESR (48)
(b) IERARFE

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(b) Provision of services

The Group recognises revenue from its payment
processing solutions business when services are
rendered which coincide with the verification of the
underlying transactions of the merchants (customers
of the Group) by the relevant banks and financial
institutions. Revenue from early settlement services
is recognised when the services are rendered, which
generally coincide when the settlement has been
completed.

The Group engaged in provision of platform operation
solutions services and financial solutions services.
Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based
on the actual service provided using the percentage
of completion method, because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously.

If circumstances arise that may change the original
estimates of revenues or costs, estimates are revised.
These revisions may result in increases or decreases
in estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become
known by management.

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such
as the provision of financial solutions and related
maintenance services. The related maintenance
services are accounted for as a separate performance
obligation. Where the contracts include multiple
performance obligations, the transaction price will be
allocated to each performance obligation based on
the stand-alone selling prices. If contracts include the
maintenance services, revenue for the maintenance
services is recognised based on the actual service
provided, using the straight-line basis over the terms of
contracts, because the customer receives and uses the
benefit simultaneously.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Provision of services (Continued)

If the contract includes a monthly fee, revenue is
recognised in the amount to which the Group has a
right to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a monthly
basis and consideration is payable when invoiced.

Interest revenue

The Group is also engaged in a micro-lending and
factoring business. Interest income is recognised and
accrued using the effective interest method. When a
loan receivable is credit impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on credit impaired loan receivables
are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Contract liabilities — receipt in advances

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in
the consolidated balance sheet.

2.26 Other income
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost,
except loan receivables from micro-lending and factoring
business, calculated using the effective interest method is

recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of

other income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHHEHEE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Dividend income 2.27 BREURA

Dividends are received from financial asset at FVPL and
financial asset at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as
‘other gains, net’ in the consolidated income statement
when the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits,
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of an investment. In this case, the dividend is
recognised in other comprehensive income if it relates
to an investment measured at FVOCI. However, the
investment may need to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.

2.28 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed lease payments.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHHEHME @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued) 2.28 A (1B)

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of lease liability and any
initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
the consolidated income statement. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 14). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not
need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets
held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all the attached conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEHHEHEE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Research and development 2.30 Ff g%

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised
as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will
be a success considering its commercial and technological
feasibility, costs can be measured reliably, there is an
intention to complete and use it, there is an ability to use
it, there will be a probable future economic benefits inflow
and there are adequate resources to complete and use it.
Other development expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

2.31 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERKER

3.1 BMERAMEZR

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.
The directors identified and evaluated financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units of the Group.

FEBZEHEHSEVHRER HHA
B (BEEEER 2 TENXER RE
MEMNXEREERER) EERRARM
HETRAR FEEEERREEE
FEMBHHRBEURAZ SN TERER
EHM BRI BETNZE -



BHEH (FE) AIRAF

—TTEFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

0]

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$,
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and US dollars (“US$”). The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB, HK$, JPY and US$, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
which are denominated in a currency other than
HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the
Group. The Group currently does not hedge its
foreign currency exposure.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes
that the exchange rate risk for translations
between HK$ and US$ do not have material
impact to the Group. The exchange rate of RMB
to HK$ is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates.

For companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$2,461,000
higher/lower (2019: HK$623,000) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of RMB denominated

current accounts with group companies.

As at 31 December 2020, if JPY had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$697,000
(2019: HK$1,162,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of JPY denominated cash and cash
equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2020, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$4,816,000 (2019: HK$4,983,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$ denominated
current accounts with group companies.

At 31 December 2020, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$180,000 (2019: HK$203,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of US$ denominated
cash and cash equivalents as well as the current
accounts with group companies.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Financial instruments at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Financial instruments at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s
interest rate risk arises mainly from bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. Other financial
assets and financial liabilities are non-interest-

bearing and are measured at amortised cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE— v—vﬂz—'— B=1+—HLHFE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHBRAKERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BMERBEZER @)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THIGEfE (#3)
(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) IWERB RN FEF XA
(Continued) #B)

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates on
interest-bearing bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year of the Group would have
been approximately HK$37,536,000 (2019:
HK$37,126,000) higher/lower due to interest

income earned on market interest rate.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from other financial assets at
amortised cost, loan receivables, financial assets at
FVPL, amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method, trade and bills receivables,
bank deposits, restricted bank balance and cash and
cash equivalents.

The carrying amounts of other financial assets at
amortised cost, loan receivables, financial assets at
FVPL, amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method, trade and bills receivables,
bank deposits, restricted bank balance and cash and
cash equivalents represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

(i) Risk management
To manage this risk, deposits of the Group
are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to reputable and creditworthy customers with
an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and appropriate percentage of down payments.
It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue

debts.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure the
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

For its micro-lending and factoring business,
the Group leverages on its proprietary credit
risk management and fraud prevention system
while it also has established a comprehensive
credit risk management process which include
credit origination, credit review, credit approval,
disbursement, post-disbursement monitoring, and
collection.

Management considers the credit risk for amounts
due from investments accounted for using the
equity method to be minimal after considering the
financial condition of the entities. Management
has performed assessment over the recoverability
of the balances and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
entities.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales
of goods and services to the largest customer
accounted for 3% (2019: 4%) for the total
revenue, and top five customers constituted 9%
(2019: 9%) of the Group’s turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2020. They accounted for
approximately 55% (2019: 29%) of the gross
trade receivable balances as at 31 December
2020. Collections of outstanding receivable
balances are closely monitored on an ongoing
basis to minimise such credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBREEIE ®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BERREZR @)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b) EEERE (&
(i) Impairment of financial assets (il ERMBERE
Trade receivables and amounts due from KEBHE S RURIREARTST

investments accounted for using the equity
method for sales of goods of the Group and from
the provision of services and loan receivables
are subject to the ECL model. While cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balance,
bank deposits and other financial assets at
amortised cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables and amounts due from
investments accounted for using the equity
method

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables
and amounts due from investments accounted
for using the equity method. The Group measures
the ECL on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. The
Group also estimates the provision for ECL on a
collective basis by grouping the trade receivables
and amounts due from investments accounted
for using the equity method based on shared
credit loss risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery, and applying
ECL rates to respective gross carrying amounts of
the receivables. The ECL rates are based on the
external credit ratings of individual customers
with reference to credit rating agencies or
historical credit losses experienced up to 3 years
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward
looking information on factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
Credit ratings are periodically monitored. As at
31 December 2020, the ECL of these collectively
assessed receivable balances was HK$9,160,000
(2019: HK$14,851,000) based on expected loss
rates up to 44.1% (2019: 53.4%) applied on
different groupings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MERAKER @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HERAKER (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b) FEREE (&
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (iiy =REERE @)

Trade receivables and amounts due from
investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables and
amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method are presented as ‘credit
impairment loss” in the consolidated income
statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account for
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
same line item.

Loan receivables

The Group estimates the ECL under HKFRS 9
ECL models. The Group assesses whether the
credit risk of loan receivables have increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and
apply a three-stage impairment model to calculate
their ECL, the management assesses impairment
loss using the risk parameter modelling approach
that incorporates key measurement parameters,
including probability of default, loss given default
and exposure at default, with the consideration of
forward-looking information.

Loan receivables are categorised into the
following stages by the Group:

Stage 1
Loan receivables have not experienced a

significant increase in credit risk since origination
and impairment is recognised on the basis of 12
months ECL (12-month ECLs).

Stage 2
Loan receivables to customers have experienced a

significant increase in credit risk since origination
and impairment is recognised on the basis of
lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECLs non credit-impaired).

Stage 3
Loan receivables that are in default and

considered credit impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit
impaired).
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MBREKRERE @

3.1 MERREZER @)
b) EEERE #)
(i) SMEBENE (@

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk of a loan
receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of

default occurring on the loan receivables assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is past
due for more than 90 days. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a loan receivable’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group; and

— the financial asset is past due.

As at 31 December 2020, the provision
for impairment of loan receivables was
HK$44,940,000 (2019: HK$43,240,000) based
on expected loss rates up to 100% applied to
different stages. The impairment policy of loan
receivables was disclosed in Note 2.12.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balance, financial assets at FVPL, bills receivables
bank deposits and other financial assets at
amortised cost

Note 2.12 described the impairment policy
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balance, bank deposits, financial assets at FVPL,
bills receivables and other financial assets at
amortised cost. There is no loss allowance for
these assets at amortised cost as at 31 December
2020 (2019: same).

(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowing. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents of
HK$3,747,468,000 (2019: HK$3,712,567,000) that is
expected to be readily available and sufficient to meet
the cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence
management considers that the Group’s exposure to
liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total available
and unutilised banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$25,944,000. As at 31 December
2019, the Group’s total available banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$17,847,000 of which
HK$5,577,000 has been utilised.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%

@

The table below analyses the Group’s financial

liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on

their contractual maturities for:

(a) all non-derivative financial liabilities, and

(b) a derivative financial instrument for which

the contractual maturities are essential for an

understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of

discounting is not significant.

o W B A B ek

—EoEft+_A=t+—HLEE

MBEBEIE ®

mé@ﬁfﬂ (%)
TEREEEREESNIBAZS
i BrERzZEMBEIRERE
HiEAER

@ FREFTTESHMEE &
(b) | HATL IR AR IR £ T 2 B RF S
EM\TTDE’JME%&IEO

ZRFIRBEZERAGHORBRRER
BomNMRZFEAK BWI12(88
MBI ASRRE . AR E AL AR

Between  Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
LRR—F —EZHF ZEILEF #ast
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET FHET F#T
At 31 December 2020 e
+-B=+—H
Trade and bills payables FE AT BR AR e FE A BB 4% 526,804 = - 526,804
Payables for payment SRR BRIBRRRT B
processing solutions EBZEARIE
business 828,619 - - 828,619
Other payables and accruals ~ E B RRIE K
fESTRIB 954,066 = — 954,066
Amounts due to investments  FE{TLAERIE AR
accounted for using the B 2 IR
equity method 43,936 - - 43,936
Lease liabilities HEa® 26,459 20,999 8,381 55,839
Written put option liabilites ~ BHEAHAIEER
(Note 33) (%12£33) = - 976,566 976,566
Total =511 2,379,884 20,999 984,947 3,385,830
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBRKEER@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERREZR @)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) TENELERE ()
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
DR —F —EZF ERF fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET TFHET FHET
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—hE
+ZA=+—H
Trade and bills payables FEATBR U FE 1 TR 439,287 - — 439,287
Payables for payment SINRPERIBHIRF 2
processing solutions W2 EATIE
business 599,389 = - 599,389
Other payables and accruals ~ E &I TRIE K
FE ST 903,508 = - 903,508
Amounts due to investments BT LR EARZ
accounted for using the S B2 MIA
equity method 21,226 - - 21,226
Borrowing EEA 5,832 - - 5,832
Lease liabilities HEAaR 29,046 21,640 11,254 61,940
Written put option liabilites ~ B AIAESE
(Note 33) (H75333) - - 852,188 852,188
Total =5l 1,998,288 21,640 863,442 2,883,370

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total
capital. Total debt includes borrowing, lease liabilities and
written put option liabilities of the Group. Total capital is
calculated as ‘equity” as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet plus total debt.

3.2 BEXRMERE

FEBEEEAZ BNARESERRE
e DA RRIBHORUA KRB EMA w
HRAE SR G LR RESREBU
BUEE A

RER AR ENER AEERREER
IRRX MR EEEE  ARFREREIR A 2
TR S E B ELUR ETR

FEBUEFERIEREAREEERZE
o ZILRGBRBEFUBELHE &
BEELEFEEZER - HEAERE
PRLERE R BEARGAEERR
RFFREE I I B EEEESt E
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the gearing ratio was

as follows:

=]
7—755'5—1— ﬂ

MBERREERE @

3.2 BEXRARER @)

A 05 e e Bl

—HIEFE

RIETEFER_E-NEFE+_B=1+—

B EXafLExmT :

As at 31 December

R+-A=+—H
2020 2019
- k223 —LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TATT
Borrowing (Note 31) EIT)\ (Htz231) - 5,577
Lease liabilities (Note 16) BE&1& Watie) 53,478 59,310
Written put option liabilities (Note 33) Etﬂ soom A B & (W/a233) 831,207 683,908
Total debt =REFEE 884,685 748,795
Total equity e 4R %A 6,367,504 5,278,512
Total capital HEE A 7,252,189 6,027,307
Gearing ratio BEARBMELEX 12.2% 12.4%

3.3 Fair value estimation
(a) Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair values. Such inputs

are categorised into three levels within a fair value

hierarchy as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

3.3 X2FEHEt
(a) L FEER

TREEE ’\quézfﬁféﬁzmﬁﬁﬁﬁiau
ANBBEZES DEEER"ZZ

BEERZE-NETZ

B=+—H#&

AFEIERZEMIBE -ABRBAR
BRIV T XD iEEm AR FER

BAZ=ERE4R& :

o ERBENEENEETSZRE
CRACHEE) B—AR) ©

e BREENRE—RZBEIBE
HEBEZFIHREEE BMER) 5
Bz BNREERE) BARE B

TR e

o WIFRBABRETHZHEMEE

ZEEHBEZH

AEE ENARH

BREZ2OASE E=H -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHBRAKERE @
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 XFEHT @
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (@) L FEER )
The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREFAEBMBER_Z-ZF+Z
were measured at fair values at 31 December 2020. B=+—HBATEHEZEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE—R B4R B4R st

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT TFTAExT TFTER TER

Assets BE
Financial assets at FVPL BANTFESAERZ
SRIEE
— Unlisted investment fund —JELmREESE = - 123,480 123,480
— Unlisted convertible —IE L AT
preference shares B = - 418,524 418,524
— Listed trading securities —HEE&RS 1,036 = = 1,036
Total =11 1,036 - 542,004 543,040
The following table presents the Group’s assets that TRENAEBEN _E—NEFE+Z
were measured at fair values at 31 December 2019. B=+—BAT@EsEZEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R ] F=R #est
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TFAET TFAET
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVPL BAFESTARBTRZ
TREE
— Unlisted investment fund —JELTREES - - 122,093 122,093
— Unlisted convertible —JE LR
preference shares B = - 166,113 166,113
— Listed trading securities —EHE&ES 1,712 = = 1,712
Total =X 1,712 - 288,206 289,918
There were no significant transfers of financial assets FRRFEERDEBLESRE
between the fair value hierarchy classifications during EBEREE (CZ—NE HE) -

the year (2019: same).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives,
and trading and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity security, unlisted investment fund and
unlisted convertible preference shares.

=]

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZEZ

A 05 e e Bl

ERARAR i)l o

3 MBEAKREIRE ®

3.3 AFEMEF @)

(a)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

AFEEAE @)

F—RzemIA

EEMSEEZ ST A B
PREBTEIEREERRE
BH ZATE BREGEAZS
GREAE -AEEMFERE
EZTHEHREAREREAEB-A
LIRS ASE R

BIMZERMIA
WIFFERREHIENEE 2 ST A
UZIMTETR) MUEERME
EATE HESRATHED
S8E TR REER
BEMs-ZELAZA SF{EFﬁﬁ
EFEERBABBHERIEE
i AR ARSI AR 4R

Bz EMIA
E-ENZEERHABIRILIF
DR miEBEREE A
RILERSAZ =M LHMER
RIFETRAZBH FFLHRE
B KRIFLHARE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZET

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(b) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

The Group's finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (“CFO”)
and external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

(c) Fair value measurements using 5igniﬁcant

unobservable inputs (level 3)
Specific valuation techniques used to value level
3 financial instruments include techniques such as
discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value
model. There are no changes in valuation techniques
during the year (2019: same).

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

3

MBEREERE @

3.3 AFEME (@
(b) EELFEREZIGERN

(©)

REBYV B EE— B HRE
RERMEELE BEE=ZRATE
ZEE - R{EERRED  ZEEEED
MFsHass (B F54055)) B > WA H
ERFERS MBI (ERD

EREMRRERERME  EEED
SHREEEEWERNEEEHETR
BUfh et 22 MEHRURHF IR
RERARR - HERMBRERER
fir et RARBREREREEERNR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_Z —vﬂE—I— B=1+—HLHFE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEKREE @
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEME @
(c) Fair value measurements using significant ) BHEATAJEEGAZBZEZ LT
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) E518 (F=4R) #)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRENBRE_Z_ZF+ A
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December =S+ HUEFEF=REmMI A #
2020: g

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

BRTEFAER

EHEE
- unlisted
convertible - unlisted
preference investment
shares fund Total
-3t —JLH
ARRELR KREES B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET
Balance at 1 January 2020 22 = R = b4
] 166,113 122,093 288,206
Fair value gains/(losses) on RiRERERESZ
revaluation recognised in the EATENE/ (58
consolidated income statement 252,411 (6,545) 245,866
Exchange realignment B0 A% - 7,932 7,932
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIEZEF
+ZB=+—Rz#&H 418,524 123,480 542,004
Unrealised gains/(losses) recognised in 1N R & BRI B B erfEIE 2 5r
the consolidated income statement W E T EREZARER R/
attributable to balances held at the (&538)
end of the reporting period 252,411 (6,545) 245,866
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBRKEER@®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AT EM @&
(c) Fair value measurements using significant (c) 1BHEATOJERGNA EE 2 1\ F
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) BErE (F=4) (B
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TREJNBE_ZE-—NFTA
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December =E+—HLIFEFE=fESMIACE
2019: g !

Financial asset

at fair value
Financial assets at through other
fair value through comprehensive
profit or loss income
BATE
SPAHMEE
BATES ARRZ a2
TREE SHEE
- unlisted
convertible - unlisted - unlisted
preference investment equity
shares fund security Total
—JFL —JFEH —JFL
AR B TR REES RAES At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TAT

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZ2-AE—B—RA2
(Gl 141,872 129,869 895 272,636

Fair value losses on revaluation REM2ERGESZ

recognised in other ERTERE

comprehensive income - - (892) (892)
Fair value gains/(losses) on RiaREERESZ

revaluation recognised in the BEATENE (1)

consolidated income statement 24,241 (2,026) - 22,215
Distribution i - (3,202) - (3,202)
Exchange realignment R - (2,548) 3) 2,551)

Balance at 31 December 2019 RIE—-HE
+ZB=+—Bz%&% 166,113 122,093 = 288,206

Unrealised gains/(losses) recognised 12 %Eiﬁﬂﬂihﬁmi%}%{ﬂz
in the consolidated income FEWGRZERIRE
statement attributable to balances Bz (518)
held at the end of the reporting
period 24,241 (2,026) - 22,215
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss —
unlisted investment fund

The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted investment fund as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 are:

As at 31 December

Valuation

techniques Unobservable inputs 2020 2019

Net asset value NA N/A NA
(Note i)

Note:

(i) The Group has determined that the audited net
asset value approximates fair value of the unlisted
investment fund after applying a portfolio discount
10% (2019: 10%).

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss —
unlisted convertible preference shares

The Group adopted the discounted cash flow
analysis for the purpose of valuation of the
financial asset at FVPL - unlisted convertible
preference shares as at 31 December 2020.

For the valuation as at 31 December 2020, the
compound annual growth rate adopted in the
discounted cash flow analysis was referenced to
an industry report prepared by an independent
research firm as mentioned in the prospectus of
the issuer of the unlisted convertible preference
shares dated 8 February 2021, adjusted for the
issuer’s market position and customer profiles.

The other key assumptions include discount rate
of 13.8% (2019: 16.0%) and terminal growth
rate of 0% (2019: 0%). If the discount rate shifted
upward by 1%, the impact on the consolidated
income statement would be HK$27,157,000
(2019: HK$6,744,000) lower. The higher the
discount rate, the lower the fair value.

3 HHBEAKEE®

3.3 AFEMEE (@
€ ZHEBATTHEGAZBEZ AT
E518 (F=4R) #)

(i)

(ii)

BAFES ABmNEHE
E—FEHKREES
RIBZZERT-AFE+Z
A=+—H'FLHRERESZ
HERBZEEFTTHEERRRN
S c

i+=A=+-8
IR
EAE  BARE  C3SE C3ns
EESE TR FE TR
652)
fst :

() FTEERT TRBLEMESITE
10% (ZZ2—NF 1 10%) B &8
REEFERFELHREES A
FEMEE

BAFEEAERZEHE
E—IF L ARRE Lk
KEBR _Z_ZF+_H
=t+—BEAFESABHZE
RMBEE—IFEmARBRERRZ
HEFMEIRIRE RED T

M_BETETRA=+—H8
HE ETHRREREDINE
RMNESFIERXT2EIFL
TR ERRNETABRD
“ET—F"F/\HNERER
PRI R B L B SR E B PR AR A1
EREG WRLHET AT G
BFRRRETHE

HiFZRHFEIFEIRE13.8%

(ZZ2—NE 1 16.0%) RIS
FBE0% (CTE—NE 1 0%) i
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—Z
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.4 Financial instruments by category

“EETCA=t—ALEE

3.4 #BEHNE9ZzEMIA

HERAKREIER @

As at 31 December

m+=ZH=+—H
2020 2019
>3- 3 “B—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Financial assets at FVPL BATFEFABGZEHEE 543,040 289,918
Financial assets at amortised cost BBERA I EZ SREE
Other financial assets at B AT E
amortised cost HitheREE 103,234 101,709
Amounts due from investments FEW R EARZKREZ
accounted for using the equity ;IE
method 19,957 19,970
Loan receivables &R 1,043,079 385,128
Trade and bills receivables PEUBR S R FE W 248 273,894 212,174
Bank deposits RITE 6,181 147
Restricted bank balance SR BRI TG AR 880,552 671,535
Cash and cash equivalents REMIREEEY 3,747,468 3,712,567
Total &t 6,617,405 5,393,148
Financial liabilities at amortised cost G IH AT E 2 SRIBEE
Written put option liabilities BUHULHAEAE 831,207 683,908
Lease liabilities HEaE 53,478 59,310
Trade and bills payables FEAT BR AR FE AT R 4R 526,804 439,287
Payables for payment processing SNRBERIBBAFRER
solutions business FEATRRIE 828,619 599,389
Other payables and accruals HLAth FE A TR I8 e FE 51 R IE 954,066 903,508
Amounts due to investments FEUEREARZEEZ
accounted for using the equity IE
method 43,936 21,226
Borrowing fa™ - 5,577
Total ast 3,238,110 2,712,205
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of loan receivables
Impairment loss on loan receivables represent
management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the
loan portfolio at the reporting date under ECL models.
Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition and apply a three-stage impairment model
to calculate their ECL. The Group is required to exercise
judgement in making assumptions and estimates when
calculating loan impairment loss, including any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from loans portfolio and
historical loss experience on the basis of the relevant
observable data that reflects current economic conditions.

The measurement of the ECL involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the selection of appropriate models and
determination of relevant key measurement parameters,
criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default was incurred,
economic indicators for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and weightings,
management consideration due to significant uncertain
factors not covered in the models and the estimated future
cash flows in stage 3.

4 FRSEGHEEt Rk
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at

(c)

fair value through profit or loss

The fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at FVPL
that are not traded in an active market are determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at each of
the balance sheet date. The Group has used discounted
cash flow analysis and net asset value model for the
unlisted financial instruments at FVPL that are not traded in
active market (Note 3.3).

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, 5

NET

Revenue, other income and other gains, net recognised during

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HEZZ

HZA

=]

W5tk b ke

“EEt_A=t—ALEE

 EAUR A R E fthli a3 28

FERRERR Z WA~ Efth i A R Eofth i et 7 2R

the year are as follows: mr:
For the year ended
31 December
HE+Z“RA=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
ket “ZT-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Turnover I—EE:L| .
Provision of payment processing solutions 22932 5 BRIBARIR 5 2
(Note a) (Kizta) ‘ 3,266,207 4,672,640
Sales of information security chips HEEELZRTRRERAZE
and solutions 298,753 290,010
Provision of platform operation solutions 12 &EE MR 168,635 194,831
Provision of financial solutions REERBRSZE 271,487 302,223
Sales of electronic power meters HEBEFTEEMMBRAR
and solutions 138,289 116,277
4,143,371 5,575,981
Other income HAUgA
Interest income F B WA 70,975 53,572
Subsidy income (Note b) RAUA (HYaED) 77,378 58,843
Rental income FREUWA 3,207 3,312
Others Hith 2,199 1,115
153,759 116,842
Other gains, net H{th iy 25 75 2R
Fair values gains/(losses) BATES ABGZ SMEEL
on financial assets at FVPL AEEWE (BB
— Unlisted convertible preference shares ~— —3JF /i A& B/ % 252,411 24,241
— Unlisted investment fund —3FJ:FE?§:§%§E (6,545) (2,026)
— Listed trading securities —LtTHEERS (676) (292)
Dividend income from RERAFESHABEZ
a financial asset at FVPL ERBEZRKREWA 110 117
245,300 22,040
Note a:  Turnover of provision of payment processing solutions included Mieta: REXNARFEERRFEEXEEC
interest revenue derived from micro-lending and factoring business BNEERRREBEBZMBABWA
of HK$159,127,000 (2019: HK$165,774,000). 159,127,0007 7T (ZZ—H.4F 1 165,774,000
HIT) °
Note b: Subsidy income recognised was related to value-added tax refund Kisth: B REsE Y RE A Bt 5 IR 7S B RO IR (E AR

BARR BT L o B8 & R 2% B E R
BB BT R BN B A o WX Z AR AL I
AN EEM R AR R A AE R

from local tax bureau and grant from government in relation to
sales and research and development of self-developed software
products in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled condition and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those subsidy income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION 6 DEER

166

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business of the Group
from a product perspective.

The Group is organised into five main operating segments in
these internal reports:

(@) Payment processing solutions — principally engaged in
provision of payment processing services, merchants
recruiting, micro-lending and factoring business, credit
assessment services and related products and solutions;

(b) Information security chips and solutions — principally
engaged in the provision of information system
consultancy services, the sales of mag-strip card security
decoder chips and related products and solutions;

(c) Platform operation solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of telecommunication and mobile payment
platform operation services and operation value-added
services;

(d) Financial solutions — principally engaged in the provision
of information system consultancy, integration and
operation services and sales of information technology
products to financial institutions and banks; and

(e) Electronic power meters and solutions — principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
power meters, data collection terminals and related
products and solutions.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted earnings/
(losses) before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”) excluding write off of property, plant
and equipment, fair values gains on financial assets at FVPL and
employees’ incentive programmes of subsidiaries.

EEERBEEFEERUFHRERE Z RSP
REMEEEE D

EXENERAESEAERES-

FERZABRE DAL EZBEENRE

@ ZXNUARFEREBBADE-ETBUFRMT
N3R5 ERIERT B AEE /NEER AR
BEFR - FEETERBURBREE R KR
RIE

b EEZELRKRBRAZ-TERERMH
B R AR LU 8 E MR R N E AR
SR MU BRI E dn RS 28

© FTREBMRAIE-TIBUSFEHSEAK
BEZ T REERBAEEERERS ;

() ZMERAR-—TIENFOZREBERIE
TiREBEMAMEN EREEZ RS K
HEEMMKER &

€ BEFEEMMRBERIE-TIBUFLEE
K E BRI BE M  BIBWERIRK&IE
RAEm AR5 o

EFTHCREH S TRIE rEE BRI
AEEA (B518) (TEBITDAY) (FEIEMEEY)
E - BERRE RATESABaZEHEE
Z AT EWERNB AR 2 EEEE ) 151F
MR E DR R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE
6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEEF @
An analysis of the Group's revenue and results for the year by FEBFANZWAREEISEDEDIIT
operating segment is as follows:
Information Electronic
Payment security Platform power
processing chips and operation Financial ~ meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions solutions Group
%At =8 ) Bt
RPRE HEDRR  FREE & Emk
BARR ﬁﬁi‘?‘i% BARR BARE  BARE  £EE:
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEr TR THET TiET THET TiET
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZTZTH
+ZA=+-H
ILEE
Segment turnover DIEEEE 3,266,207 298,753 176,873 271,487 138,289 4,151,609
Inter-segment turnover DEREEE - = (8,238) = = (8,238)
Turnover from external customers ~ REIMNBEA 2 EH£5E 3,266,207 298,753 168,635 271,487 138,289 4,143,371
Segmental EBITDA (excluding write  734BEBITDA (R EIEMEEY)
off of property, plant and £ BERRE BRATE
equipment, fair values gains SABZZEREEZ AT
on financial assets at FVPL and ElEk—ERBASZE
employees’ incentive programme S5EEstE)
of a subsidiary) 822,248 8,695 3,864 (33,494) 5,595 806,908
Depreciation nE (231,007) (4,818) (4,983) (5,039) (2,858) (248,705)
Amortisation i = (1,803) (36) = (86) (1,925)
Write off of property, WM BB R
plant and equipment (26,156) = = = = (26,156)
Fair values gains on BATESI Bz eREE
financial assets at FVPL ZATFEWR = = 245,866 = = 245,866
Employees’ incentive programme of ~ — I BAE 2 (B S 5EN 52
a subsidiary (40,191) = = = = (40,191)
Segmental operating PEEERETN/ (BB
profit/(loss) 524,894 2,074 244,711 (38,533) 2,651 735,797
Unallocated other income RAREMBA 6,798
Unallocated corporate expenses ANEEERX (89,545)
Finance costs &R (63,722)
Share of results of investments AR EARZ
accounted for using the equity REZ#E
method 301,512
Loss on deemed acquisition and RIFWEEREE—1E
dilution of interest of an investment ~ MUEZAABRZREZ
accounted for using the equity RmEEERE
method, net (1,044)
Profit before income tax FRFTSIRALER 889,796
Income tax expense FRGIRES (110,655)
Profit for the year FRET 779,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SDEEN @
An analysis of the Group's revenue and results for the year by K%@EWZH&U\&% B E DD T
operating segment is as follows: (Continued) )
Information Electronic
Payment security Platform power
processing chips and operation Financial ~ meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions solutions Group
xfY =8 BHEE
XEEE TEERER - FaEE &/ Emk

ES @E?Ew BARNR  BARE  BARR  KEGH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT THT THR TET THAT

Year ended 31 December 2019 BEZZT—NE

+ZB=+-H

LLEE
Segment turnover NEEEE 4,672,640 290,010 196,302 302,223 116,277 5,577,452
Inter-segment turnover NEREREE - - (1,471) - - (1,471)
Turnover from external customers ~ REIMNBRA 2 EE£HE 4,672,640 290,010 194,831 302,223 116277 5,575,981

Segmental EBITDA (excluding write  Z34BEBITDA (R ELiEHEH4)

off of property, plant and 2 BRR#RE BATE

equipment, fair values gains SABZZERMBEEZ AT

on financial assets at FVPL and BERER—BRBARZE

employees’ incentive programme S5EEstE)

of a subsidiary) 1,160,533 29,639 (11,672) (6,081) (12,232) 1,160,187
Depreciation neE (369,366) (2,434) (5,377) (3,525) (2,893) (383,595)
Amortisation i - - (36) - (76) (112)
Write off of property, WEYE BB RS

plant and equipment (94,701) s = = = (94,701)
Fair values gains on BATESI A Bz 2REE

financial assets at FVPL AT ENR = = 22,215 = = 22,215
Employees’ incentive programme of a —fiiffi B/A 5] 2 B S 22BN 51 2l

subsidiary - (30,303) - - - (30,303)
Segmental operating NELE R/ (B

profit/(loss) 696,466 (3,098) 5,130 (9,606) (15,201) 673,691
Unallocated other income ROEEMUA 8,624
Unallocated corporate expenses ROEEERZ (104,142)
Finance costs BEME (10,245)
Share of results of investments AR EARZ

accounted for using the equity REZXE

method 208,695
Profit before income tax BRFSIRALER 776,623
Income tax expense iSRS (93,656)
Profit for the year FREF 682,967

168



BHEH (FE) AIRAF —ETTEEFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o W 5 R BT i

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SRR (@
Unallocated corporate expenses represent costs that are used ROEEEMAIERINAE D EZRE > 75
for all segments, including depreciation of property, plant BIEYIE BB R 5 HTEE1,420,0008 7T (T F
and equipment of HK$1,420,000 (2019: HK$1,328,000), —LEF 1 1,328,000/7T) ~ BEYEHTE205,000
depreciation of investment properties of HK$205,000 (2019: BT (CE—H4F 0 197,00087m) REREEE
HK$197,000) and depreciation of right-of-use assets of 65,203,000 7T (ZZ— 5 ! 6,585,000
HK$5,203,000 (2019: HK$6,585,000), respectively. 7o) °
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and TR CEREF R =+—HZOEEERS
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December BEREE_ZEF+_A=+—HLEFEF
2020 are as follows: MBBEZARENT !
Information Electronic
Payment security Platform power
processing  chipsand  operation Financial ~ meters and Total
solutions luti luti luti luti Unallocated  Elimination Group
*ft ==} BitstE
RERE RE2VRR  FRER i Emk
BARR BARR  BRARE  BARE  BARR KR HE  EEAH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET FET TET TET TET FET TET
As at 31 December 2020 RIZZSE
+-A=+-H
Segment assets PEEE 5034498 339517 905,870 385722 276463 3700458  (925429) 9,717,099
Segment liabilities HEBE (2,872502)  (185,098)  (322506) (438,423 (13879  (42616) 925429  (3,349,595)
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-TCZH
+ZB=+-BLEE
Additions to non-current assets FRBEEZRE (FTEERLME
(excluding deferred income tax assets,  IREE  MEAARZEE
investments accounted for using BATESARMEARGZ
the equity method, financial asset SHEE REBEAATEZH
at FVOCI, other financial assets at heRMEE BRER BAT
amortised cost, loan receivables, B ABEZEREERRITE
financial assets at FVPL and bank )
deposits) 21404 38,983 5818 14,082 1,136 169 - 27159
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZET

6

GLE A e

“EETCA=t—ALEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEEH @
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019 and R_E-—NEF+_B=1+—HZHHEEEHRS
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December BRBEZZ-NF+_A=+—HLFEF
2019 are as follows: MENEEZARENT !
Information Electronic
Payment security Platform power
processing  chipsand  operation Financial ~ meters and Total
solutions ~ solutions solutions solutions solutions  Unallocated  Elimination Group
%ff &8 Bt e
RERE ZEURR  TREE i Emk
BARE BARE  BARE  BRARE  BAPE FAR B £@as
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TiEn TR TiEn TEn TiEn TEL TR
As at 31 December 2019 RZF-NE
+ZA=+-H
Segment assets NEEE 4,233,447 334,768 620,759 325,571 213,800 3,431,799  (1,011,076) 8,149,068
Segment liabilities NEaR (2,600,467)  (201,880)  (307,764)  (335,316) (153,417)  (282,788) 1,011,076  (2,870,556)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BHEZZ-hEF
+ZBA=+-BLEE
Additions to non-current assets FRBEEZRE (TEERLME
(excluding deferred income tax assets, B E  ETAARZ KR
investments accounted for using BATEAEMRERGZZE
the equity method, financial asset MEE RBERATEZEM
at FVOCI, other financial assets at SHEE ERERRELATE
amortised cost, loan receivables and st ABEZ SBIEE)
financial assets at FVPL) 141,396 1,863 5,634 7,327 069 9,482 - 166,371
Unallocated assets mainly include an investment accounted KOEEEFEOQEURGAARZIESE

for using the equity method of HK$2,393,435,000 (2019:
HK$2,103,541,000) and cash and cash equivalents of
HK$625,243,000 (2019: HK$514,267,000).

During the year, additions to non-current assets mainly
comprise additions to property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (2019: same).

Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on
the operations of the segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the Board
of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

2,393,435,00058 77 (ZZE— N4 | 2,103,541,000
Bt URIRE RIS EEY)625,243,0008 7T
(CTZB—H4 : 514,267,00087T) °

FRIFRBEEZABETIEZOAREHEYE K
ERhgE CRREEREBIEEZRE CF
—NE R °

MEFEREZENRBRREVHRE R
ZHAFE RFEERABRROBZERD
[

DEMZHER—REEERE T DEFE
R AN S R 2 AR RS SR
—B2 R R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_Z _vflf‘f' B=1+—HLHFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally domiciled in Mainland China and
Hong Kong (2019: same). The Group’s turnover by geographical
locations, which is determined by the locations in which the
turnover are generated from, is as follows:

DEEN @®

FERXZFMERTEAEREE (CE—A
F AR c AEEME BN 2 B (R E
EEEEHEETD S0

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_"_A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
it “BNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHEx

Mainland China P e A PzE 4,046,263 5,490,078
Hong Kong 58 97,108 85,903
4,143,371 5,575,981

The Group's non-current assets (excluding other financial assets
at amortised cost, loan receivables, deferred income tax assets,
investments accounted for using the equity method, financial
asset at FVOCI, financial assets at FVPL and bank deposits) and
current assets by geographical locations, which is determined
by the geographical locations in which the asset is located, is as
follows:

FEEZMER D 2 IFRBEE (FEIER#H
PN s 8 2 H SRS & « FEIE R IBIEFTS
MEE UWEmEANRZIRE - BATEFAR
fthEElmr EMEE - BATEFABRZ
TRMEERRTENR KABEE REFEE
PRIEMEETE) 85T

As at 31 December

w+=-—B=+—H
2020 2019
ZEIEHF ZE-AEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TFAT
Non-current assets ERSEE
Mainland China R[] A B 476,110 467,570
Hong Kong & 5,313 8,830
481,423 476,400
Current assets REBEE
Mainland China Fh B A B 4,823,568 3,846,630
Hong Kong 58 1,442,222 1,425,453
Others Hith 2,561 2,609
6,268,351 5,274,692
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZET

7

EXPENSES BY NATURE

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

7 UMEESZRAX

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses, STARHER A HERI  THRERNEEHR
administrative expenses and credit impairment loss are BEREZEZORT !

analysed as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

#E+_"_A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
—EBIEF —B-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THTT
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BB BN &

— audit and audit related services — B B 1% BB B AR 75 4,238 4,292
— non-audit services —IEZEBRTS 4,387 2,023

Commission paid to merchant migEm R EZMNEE

recruitment agents 2,081,720 3,022,429
Depreciation of property, plant and W BB R BT E (Wfat15)

equipment (Note 15) 222,762 362,116
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEITE (Witie)

(Note 16) 32,566 29,392
Depreciation of investment properties CEYEINE (WaE14)

(Note 14) 205 197
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) & E#EY (015517) 1,925 112
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERMAX (FEERBASZ

employees’ incentive programmes BERENE BEEENE)

of subsidiaries, including directors’ (Hta29)

emoluments) (Note 9) 715,392 759,877
Costs of inventories sold (including EREFEENS (BIEFERB)

provision for inventories) (Note 23) (Htz£23) 313,645 298,288
Operating lease rentals in respect of T REFEERERS

land and buildings 5,721 15,494
Research and development costs R A (BEE THA)

(including staff cost) 291,805 283,822
Credit impairment loss EERERE

— trade and bills receivables (Note 24) — R BRI (B5¢24) 150 4,676
— loan receivables (Note 20) —BWRERR (#z220) 67,026 44,124
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEME -BERREZEE/

plant and equipment (Note 35(b)) (Wzm) (BfEE35(b)) 86 (50)
Write off of property, plant and WS~ BB R sk (HYat15)

equipment (Note 15) 26,156 94,701
(Reversal of provision)/provision for 78 BERRE) BE Is223)

inventories (Note 23) (2,740) 5,539
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8 NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZHF+_F=

8

The net foreign exchange loss recognised in administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to

HK$6,908,000 (2019: HK$2,681,000).

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS)

I=g:4] i%#lﬁ% B

—HIEFE
SMERSIRFEE

BE_Z_ZFE+_A=Z+—HIEFEER®
TTBZ%JEHE@me%[Eﬁ?ﬁ@%ﬁ%6/908,000%
T (ZZE—H4F  2,681,00057T) ©

EEEFRY (BEEEMD)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=1+—HLFE

2020 2019
ZEIZHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Wages and salaries TERE 631,975 632,933
Pension costs and social security costs RIRE AT G RER A 83,417 126,944
715,392 759,877

Employees’ incentive programmes of WBASZ(EERENETE
subsidiaries (Note 28) (Hiz#28) 40,191 30,303

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 included two

(2019: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 39. The emoluments payable to the
remaining three (2019: one) individuals during the year are as

follows:

TREREHALT
FERBE_F_TF+_RB=+—HILFE
IS EeHATEERE CE-—NAFE IR E
FoREZMEBEME3IDITRR M  RNFE
BNERT =% CE—NF  —%) ALZME
S e

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2020 2019
BT T—hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind s “ R R B = 9,042 1,815
Pension cost — defined contribution plan B {ksE 24— EEBHRETE 249 136
9,291 1,951

Employees’ incentive programmes of WEA Bz e E5RENETE
subsidiaries 40,191 13,642
49,482 1’58598,
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZEZ

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9

—®FE+C A=+ HILFE

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
The emoluments fall within the following bands:

HK$12,000,001
HK$13,000,001
HK$15,500,001
HK$23,500,001

- HK$12,500,000
- HK$13,500,000
— HK$16,000,000
— HK$24,000,000

Enk 2}

12,000,0017875—12,500,0007 7T
13,000,0017875—13,500,0007 7T
15,500,00178 75— 16,000,00078 7T
23,500,0017875—24,000,0007% 75

EERFMAX (BEEENE) @

= AL (&)
M= TR

Number of individuals
A#
For the year ended
31 December
HE+-A=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
—ECEF Z—hF

10 FINANCE COSTS

10 FEERZs

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Finance costs RRE R A
— Borrowing — &= 51 127
— Lease liabilities —HEAR 2,670 2,704
— Written put option liabilities —BHAAEARE 61,001 7,414
63,722 10,245




11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_Z _vflf‘f' RB=

ok DRI

—HIEFE

11 FriSHEX

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
“E-THF —ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current tax IREFRIE
— Hong Kong profits tax —BANER = -
— Overseas taxation —FINRIE 110,727 93,354
Deferred tax IEIEFR I (72) 302
Income tax expense PRISIRFI 110,655 93,656

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to corporate income tax
(“CIT") in accordance with the PRC CIT Law. According to
the PRC CIT Law and the relevant regulations, the CIT tax rate
applicable is 25% unless preferential rates are applicable in the
cities where the subsidiaries are located.

If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”), the applicable CIT tax rate is
15%. If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as Software
and Integrated Circuit Enterprise (“SICE”), the applicable CIT
tax rate is 0% for the first two years of being qualified and
12.5% for the next three years. If a subsidiary is subject to CIT
and qualified as Key Integrated Circuit Design Enterprises and
Software Enterprises (“KIC”), the applicable CIT tax rate is 0%
for the first five years commencing from the first profit-making
year, and 10% for the subsequent years. If a subsidiary is
subject to CIT and qualified as Key Software Enterprise (“KSE”),
the applicable CIT tax rate is 10%. If a subsidiary is subject
to CIT and engaged in Encouraged Industries in the Western
Region (“EIWR”), the applicable CIT tax rate is 15%.

EBMERUEA G ERREFZIRZE16.5%
(ZZE—NF 16.5%) 518 o /BINEHEFFRIFAIL
FRMEHERR G BAEREERETER
BT

FEINE A B AR T PR TS IRERM T
EPRSIR (MREFFIR) - REBEDEEEFSR
ERBRER BRIFEBREBARNEAR
FRERT > DRIEEPMSIRBRAMRER25%

H—RENB AR BBMEEMEREEERR
BEWEMtE (SRt  BEBE
EFTEMMES15% 8 — BB A B BN
PEMEBREEBERNATE REMBREE
(M REMRERTE) ARG ERNER
FEATEMERMEA% BREZERES
12.5%° i — B M B A B BN HEPMER &
EERNAERENSEEREERR R
(MEREMERTE)) MBS ERTIFER
BN E A FEBRACEMSNMRESR% HEF
EMEZ10%  H— BB A B BEMEERR
BREEERRASMERE (SR ED
¥)) > APEREPMERMER10% o fid—REH
[B R BB TSR R E I & S
faEE (et EEEaEZ)) > AR
BIRMER15%°
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal

subsidiaries

Subsidiaries

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business
Solutions Information Technology
Limited (“ABS”) (Note i)

Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology

Limited (“Hangzhou Electronic
Technology”) (Note ii)

BT BRAF (“VBill OPCO”)

(Note iii)
IRBEMERMAZEBRAT
(“Beijing Bank and Enterprise”)

(Note iv)

BT OtR) ERMERRBERAT

(“VBill Finance”) (Note v)

IERBEEEERKLBRAT (“Beijing

Cloud Chain”) (Note vi)
EEEMBTHNEERAT
(“Chongging Xinlian”) (Note vir)
Megahunt Technologies Inc.
(“Megahunt”) (Note viii)
Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited
(“HN Mobile Pay”) (Note ix)

Notes:
(i)  ABS was renewed as HNTE in 2018.
(ii)

(i)

VBill OPCO was renewed as HNTE in 2017.

B AT

11 FriEHRAX @

FTEMBARZBRATEMBRIRE

Applicable corporate income
tax rate
BERATEMIRKRE
For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

IREGEEEERMARAT

(TBEEE)) (W)

MNBEEEFRMBRAT
(THUNEBFHeAMT) (Wfazii)

BINXNBERLE (HETH)

(K &£iii)

IRRERMERMAZERRAT

(MEmEREY) (Hetiv)

(TBE T =RY)) (Hatv)
IERBEEEMN Y FRAG
(HEmEE)) Hatvi)
BEEMPETHYBRAD
(TEEER) (Watvii)
JERIEERI RIDBIRAE
(FKERIBEE)) (B a#viii)

BTy b)) &S B IRFARAE

HEsREREERMARAR

(G =@ Watix)

2020 2019
TEIEHE “E—hEF
15% 15%

15% 15%

25% 15%
12.5% 10%
15% 15%

15% 15%

15% 15%

10% 12.5%

25% 15%

mizz -

(i)

Hangzhou Electronic Technology was renewed as HNTE in 2018. (i)

(iii)

(iv) Beijing Bank and Enterprise was qualified as KSE in 2019 and qualified (iv)
as SICE in 2020.

(v)  VBill Finance was qualified as HNTE in 2018. (v)

(vi) Beijing Cloud Chain was qualified as HNTE in 2019. (vi)

(vii) Chongging Xinlian was engaged in EIWR in 2019 and 2020. (vii)

(viii) Megahunt was qualified as SICE in 2015 and qualified as KIC in 2020. (viii)

(ix) HN Mobile Pay was renewed as HNTE in 2017. (ix)

BHEER T — \FERT ARl EE-.

MMBFEATN —F— \EE RSB

BINR T —tFBh RN tE-

BRBER T -NEAERABERRFEER

BONERR _S-N\EEGERRD SR T

o

IRERENR —F-NFEERABSH M EE-

BEEEMN _T-NER_S_ZENERIHE
SENEEE-

HKBENR SR EEERR AT RERBE
TERN_Z_ZFCERMAETHERBRE
¥o

HEEBRMR St EEN RSt
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZEZ

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in the
respective jurisdictions as follows:

ok DRI

ERARAR i)l o

11 FRiSMRAX @&

REBBRRANEF 2 MIBBRE AR ERAE
ARRE BRI 2 ME ORIt E 18R
REE ZREOT ¢

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_"_A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
it “BNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Profit before income tax PREAS AT A 889,796 776,623
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ?ﬁtﬁ’\%flﬁ].éﬁﬁi/ bl
applicable to profit in the BREMRKRFAEZIRE
respective countries 155,493 87,975
Tax effects of: MBLE
Income not subject to taxation BEFRIRBA (144,295) (50,087)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  FEERIRTI = A AI MR 2 FE 84,085 32,998
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FABERER ZIRIERE
tax losses 6,311) (1,177)
Tax losses for which no deferred income W #iEIEFTIS IR EREE 2
tax was recognised RIAE 18 21,683 23,947
Income tax expense FrSIRRISZ 110,655 93,656

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 11.3%). The change
is caused by a change in the profitability mix of the Group's
subsidiaries in the respective countries.

12 DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

HE_ZEEF+_B=+—HILEE Mk
FBERRER17.5% (CE—NE 1 11.3%) °
SHREAER B AN EEER 2R
MBE A& HIREB P

12 g2

BE_ZEZF+_A=+T—HLEEE X2
EI%EET@IE:/)&EHHXU CENE W
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZET

GLE A e

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

13 EiREF

(a) B
SIREARBA IR QB HEE ARG
BRUEANBBITEBERMNEF S E

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_"_A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
—EBIEF E—NEF
Profit attributable to the owners of RAEER NELER (FB7T)
the Company (HK$'000) 656,685 569,111
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ BT E B INET9E (T
shares in issue (thousands shares) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Basic earnings per share attributable to ~ "AB AR AEEESRERET]
the owners of the Company (BB
(HK$ per share) 0.236 0.205

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
net profit and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
six categories (2019: six categories) of potentially dilutive
shares: share options issued by an associated company
— PAX Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), share
options and convertible preference shares issued by an
associated company — Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(“Cloopen”), share options issued by a subsidiary -
VBill OPCO and written put option liabilities issued by
subsidiaries — VBill Limited (“VBill (Cayman)”) and Mega
Hunt Microelectronics Limited (“Megahunt HK”) (2019:
share options issued by PAX Global, share options and
convertible preference shares issued by Cloopen, share
options issued by VBill OPCO and Megahunt and a written
put option liability issued by VBill (Cayman)).

(b) #H
SRR EBATEETRERG
2 R TIB AR R B TSN R
TiHEE o

BE_ZS_ZHE+_A=+—HLFE:
FEBAERE CZ2—NE: R0 BEE
HENE KRG  —HBREAE-—BER
KREARAR (B8R E1T2BE
1 ~ —E1HE /A 5] —Cloopen Group Holding
Limited (M Cloopen ) 2517 2 B G 1 K AT A
RERK s —ENB AR —RBEITHEITZ
BRERNBAS—BITNERERAR
(TVBill (Cayman)J) &IKFAMEFAHRA
8 (WERER) BT EHREREaE
(ZE2E-NF B=RKBITZHERE-
Cloopen#E 1T 7 R RS #E Kz PT ARG 1B 55 % ~
BE1T IS R IK IS Z 21T 2 B IR HE R VBl
(Cayman) T2z BEHZVHAREEE) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE— v—vﬂz—'— RB=
13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the exercise of
the outstanding share options in PAX Global would have
a dilutive effect. The exercise of the share options in PAX
Global would be dilutive if the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company will decrease. A calculation is
done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual fair value of the associated company’s shares)
based on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to outstanding share options of PAX Global. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options of PAX Global.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise
of the share options of PAX Global as they would have an
anti-dilutive impact to the basic earnings per share.

For share options and convertible preference shares issued
by Cloopen, as at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of the interest in Cloopen was zero (2019: same). As at
31 December 2020, the Group’s share of loss exceeded
its interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, the exercise
of the abovementioned share options and convertible
preference shares would not have any impact on the
diluted earnings per share (2019: same).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the exercise of
the outstanding share options in VBill OPCO (2019: same)
would have a dilutive effect. The exercise of the share
options in VBill OPCO (2019: same) would be dilutive if
the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
will decrease. A calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual fair value of the
subsidiaries” shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options
of VBill OPCO (2019: same). The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the
share options of VBill OPCO (2019: same).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of
the share options of Megahunt as they would have an anti-
dilutive impact to the basic earnings per share.

ok DRI

—HIEFE

13 EREHN @

(b) #E (®

HE_Z_EF+_A=+—HIEE:
TEEBRRZATHEERECEERE
SERE AN RIHEA AR(GATRR R
ATEEERRCBRESEEHEY
BT EATEWEZRMNEE (28
ERERD 2 FHFEATEETE THiRE
BERIKZ RITEEREFmMMN DB ES
MEEE  EXMEEZRMHE BT
RRASRK BREETEZEHTR
BB ELE& -

BHEZZ—hF+ZA=1+—HLEE"
FESREERINBERASIRIKZER
BRETE FRAESSHERELRR
MEEREETE-

FCloopenZE 1T 2 FEIG#E K I ARG 1B ST R

ms " R_B2_ZF+_A=+—8'RN
CloopenZ #miREEAZ (CZ2—h&F !
MERE) -RZBEZZF+ZA=+—H"%&
EEFELEBBEER CloopenZ g 2 1
0 HUAT 5B b A B G e e PT ARG 1B SR R
reHeREERENTRATE (CF
—HE AR ©

BE_Z_THF+_RA=+—HIEEE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ CE-AF R ZKI1T6E
BREFERAREXE -HEALBDHER
AFEIEAEFE L BITTEBETT I CE—Hh
FER) ZBREFSEABERE-EE
AEATERBZROBE FERQ
R Z2FHFEATEREE HIREET
1 (C2—NEF : 18E) 2 RITEBREFR
MZzRBREREESE - EXFAFEZ
ROBETREBRETN CE—AE 18
B) 2 BRREE TR EETROMBIFL
e

BE_ZT-NAFtR=T—HILEE"
StEESREEENFERIGNEEZEZBK
ERETE REAEREHSRELRE
MEERBEEZE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZET

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

13 S

B @®

(b) #F (5%)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the calculation of

diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise
of the written put option liabilities of VBill (Cayman) and
Megahunt HK (2019: VBill (Cayman)) as they would have
an anti-dilutive impact to the basic earnings per share

(2019: same).

S —ZEFE+"A=+—HLEE"
d‘%ﬁﬂiﬁ SERFFFRRVBIll (Cayman)Bz
JKERER (CE—NF VBl (Cayman)) 2 E

ROLEREERETE REAEKE
HEREABNELREETE (_ﬁ—ﬂ
&FAERD ©

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
k- g 23 —hEF
Profit attributable to the owners of KABEB AL ET
the Company (HK$'000) (F#E7m) 656,685 569,111
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BRESRIKETZFIE
dilutive share options issued by PAX B ARAT R E R R T
Global (HK$'000) (F#7m)
— Decrease in share of profit of the — AL BE A B ER R
associated company (3,073) -
— Reduce in gain on dilution of the —EEHE Rz R
associated company (59,218) -
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BRERBEITNETZFRE
dilutive share options issued by VABill B ARAT R E R A
OPCO (HK$'000) BT (TR
— Decrease in profit attributable to the — KRN EHEB AEG
owners of the Company AR (22,635) (41,810)
Adjusted profit attributable to the owners FMUEESREERF 2 A
of the Company used to determine NEHER ALK EE R
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000) (F#7T) 571,759 527,301
Weighted average number of ordinary FREERN 2 Z@RMmET
shares for diluted earnings per share HE (TR
(thousands shares) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Diluted earnings per share attributable to  &NA B #EA ABOERIEEH
the owners of the Company A (B #T)
(HK$ per share) 0.206 0.190
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE
14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 REYE
Buildings
¥
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2019 "= hE—HR—H
Cost D% 3,960
Accumulated depreciation i (2,385)
Net book amount RERE 1,575
Fair value (Note) RE (H75E) 10,343
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_ZE—NF+-BA=+—HIEFE
Opening net book value FVREFE 1,575
Depreciation = (197)
Closing net book value FRIREFE 1,378
At 31 December 2019 RIE—-hE+ZHA=+—H
Cost D% 3,960
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (2,582)
Net book amount RERE 1,378
Fair value (Note) NEE W5 10,878
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z-ZTHF+_HA=1+—HLEFE
Opening net book value FYEREZRE 1,378
Transfer from property, plant and BREYE BB
equipment (Note 15) ezt (Hfat15) 46
Depreciation e (205)
Closing net book value FRIREFE 1,219
At 31 December 2020 WZEZEHF+-HA=+—H
Cost DN 4,091
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (2,872)
Net book amount R E 1,219
Fair value (Note) NS =R(=3) 11,850
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14 KEYE @®

182

Note:

Fair value measurements using significant other observable inputs (level 2)

The investment properties located at Level 15 to 17, Yindu Building, No.
67 Fu Cheng Road, Haidian District, Beijing City, PRC bR /& K&
BRLER675RIREBAE15-1718) . The fair value as at 31 December 2020
was assessed by the independent and professionally qualified valuer, Asset
Appraisal Limited.

The valuation was determined using the direct comparison approach.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input
into this valuation approach is price per square foot.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2019: same).

All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to administrative
expenses (2019: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated income
statement:

Gz ON

Rental income

sz :

UEMBEATRZAARBEAATEAE (B
&)

BEVEMPRPEIERHERE SR Ke7RIREAE
15-171 8 R - E_FBEFE+_H=+—H2ZAFEHBIT
SELERGEMPHEEETERNERARTE

SETRAERILBUARETE - ARt E P LB £ 2 85
EERENIERE CIYERR 2 ERIEHFE I
HEREZREABABRESTARER

RIBZZF+-RA=+—H s5EHEAMBRHEE
RIRBEMAEREFRZANERE CE—NEF )

FNFEINERXESATTHER C2—N%F 18F) °

T EBRENGRE KT RARESD

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

Direct operating expenses arising from investment ARG A Z REYEMEEZ B

property that generated rental income RER

2020 2019
—ECEF —E2-hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHExT
3,207 3,312

(330) (619)

There were no direct operating expenses arising from
investment property that did not generate rental income during
the year (2019: same).

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its
investment properties under operating leases ranged from 1 to 2
years (2019: same).

FRAHERSWAZKRENETEEETE
MEFERER< CE—NF R -

AEERBESHEHALEREYEZBARAN
F1EF CE—NE H8RE) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_Z _vflf‘f' B=1+—HLHFE
14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14 EWE (@
The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating KREVFEIZKEREHTHER 88 S'Zﬁ?ﬁ%"
leases with rentals payable monthly. There are no other variable A fE HAMEUA T IEBE ) R P SR E IRk o

lease payments that depend on an index or rate.

At 31 December 2019 and 2020, the future aggregate RIBE-NEFERZZZEF+__A=+—H"
minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating IRBEA AR EEE 2 KRR EERE SR
leases are as follows: BRI

As at 31 December

nr+-A=+—H
2020 2019
“EF°¥ —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not later than 1 year A iBiE1E 857 4,672
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years #8818 BiB55E - 20
857 4,692
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GLE A e

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

“RE+A=T—HLEE

15 Y% -BE Bk 1E

Office
Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE WAE
12¥ MEEE RARERE BERRHE HE &%
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000
FET FET FERT FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2019 RZE—h&E—B—H
Cost [DZ:S 38,867 26,042 145,916 1,260,382 31,998 1,503,205
Accumulated depreciation Retin® (20,449) (25,204) (120,574) (587,806) (27,155) (781,188)
Accumulated impairment loss KetREBE - - = (6,824) = (6,824)
Net book amount IREFE 18,418 838 25,342 665,752 4,843 715,193
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hF+=B=1+—H
HEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 18,418 838 25,342 665,752 4,843 715,193
Additions HE = 497 44,170 88,114 2,493 135,274
Disposals (Note 35(b)) HE Wrat35b) - - (66) (41) - (107)
Written off i3] - = = (94,701) = (94,701)
Depreciation e (1,684) (922) (21,224) (336,350) (1,936) (362,116)
Exchange realignment ERAE (338) (10) (911) (7,745) (83) (9,087)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 16,396 403 47,311 315,029 5317 384,456
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+ZA=+—H
Cost (D% 38,102 26,108 185,496 542,184 32,645 824,535
Accumulated depreciation REiE (21,706) (25,705) (138,185) (220,495) (27,328) (433,419)
Accumulated impairment loss RitRERE - - - (6,660) = (6,660)
Net book amount REFE 16,396 403 47,311 315,029 5,317 384,456
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-ZF+-A=1+—H
HEE
Opening net book amount FREZE 16,396 403 47,311 315,029 5,317 384,456
Additions RE = S 14,435 213,998 1,170 229,603
Transfer to investment properties BREERENE
(Note 14) (Wizt14) (46) = = - - (46)
Disposals (Note 35(b)) HE (HaE350) - - (323) (139) = (462)
Written off biiE22] - = = (26,156) s (26,156)
Depreciation e (1,663) (214) (24,540) (194,404) (1,941) (222,762)
Exchange realignment ERAE 994 14 539 21,094 44 22,685
Closing net book amount FHRIREZE 15,681 203 37,422 329,422 4,590 387,318
At 31 December 2020 ZEIEE+ZA=+—H
Cost ﬁiztx 40,488 27,531 206,246 640,498 35,562 950,325
Accumulated depreciation REiE (24,807) (27,328) (168,824) (304,068) (30,972) (555,999)
Accumulated impairment loss KetRERE - - - (7,008) - (7,008)
Net book amount REFE 15,681 203 37,422 329,422 4,590 387,318
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense included in cost of sales, selling
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

o W 5 R BT i

—EoEEt_A=t+—HIEEE
15 Y% -REBERE @

HEMA HEERRTHRERTEINNE
BRDRINT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2020 2019

—EEH —hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Cost of sales THE R A 195,590 337,700
Selling expenses HEEM 192 280
Administrative expenses THRER 26,980 24,136
222,762 362,116

As at 31 December 2020, the net carrying value of electronic
funds transfer point-of-sale terminals in relation to the payment
processing solutions business approximately HK$313,782,000
(2019: HK$312,627,000). The carrying amount of the
electronic funds transfer point-of-sale terminals is written
down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, management had carried
out an assessment over the recoverable amounts of these
electronic funds transfer point-of-sale terminals based on their
respective level of utilisation. As a result, certain under-utilised
electronic funds transfer point-of-sale terminals amounting to
HK$26,156,000 (2019: HK$94,701,000) were written-off and
recognised in cost of sales.

As at 31 December 2020, banking facilities of approximately
HK$25,944,000 (2019: HK$17,847,000) were secured by
buildings with a net book value of HK$5,760,000 (2019:
HK$6,385,000).

RIZZEF+A=+—H BIURFE
BRRR S BREFHA AN E T2 (IS B AR IR
BRER(E49313,782,0008 7w (CB—H4E :
312,627,000 7T) ~MEEREESNE M
AW el %8 BB 72 (JiH & B4R In I RV AR
EMEEET KOS BE - BE_ S _SF+_
B=Z+—HLEE EEEBEREZEEFX
1784 & B IR I = B 0F Bk F R E e ol %
BTG AL EFMAEEBNETF T
Y EBLARIRI406,156,00058 T (CB—N4E
94,701,000787T) #HHEH - 0 A 85 & RS HEER ©

A CEZTFEF+ A=+ —HRITREY
25,944,000 7T (ZF— L4 © 17,847,000/
7o) LUREFES,760,00058 7T (CE—HE !
6,385,000 70) Z 1&F(EIE# -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

16 LEASES 16 HE
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (@ RESEEREREINEEE
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following GEEEERRBETUTEHNAEYER
amounts relating to leases in respect of office premises and THEEBRNEEE
factory:
As at 31 December
nr+-A=+—H
2020 2019
>3- 3 —E=—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Office premises —WMREYE 72,425 79,646
— Factory — T 9,230 8,855
81,655 88,501
Lease liabilities HEasE
— Non-current —IEmE 28,143 31,494
— Current —nE 25,335 27,816
53,478 59,310
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year REBEEEZF+_A=1+—HLFE
ended 31 December 2020 were HK$30,017,000 (2019: RS EREZ30,017,0008T(CZ
HK$30,793,000). —LEE 1 30,793,000787T) ©
As at 31 December 2020, banking facilities of A TECEF+"A=+—H RITHE
approximately HK$25,944,000 (2019: HK$17,847,000) #925,944,00078 7T (ZZ—.4 17,847,000
were secured by a right-of-use asset with net carrying value 77T) LUREPME2,830,0008 7T (ZZ—h
of HK$2,830,000 (2019: HK$2,726,000). F 1 2,726,000 7T) Z EREEEFRIT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

16 LEASES (Continued) 16 TE (@
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b) REFBKREREDHNEEE
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following RARERBTUTNERATYER TR
amounts relating to leases in respect of office premises and HEBRMNTEE :
factory:

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
it et 22 “EB—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FH7T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use ~ FREEENEER (WsE7)
assets (Note 7) 32,566 29,392
Interest expense (included in FEFZ Gt AREAE)
finance costs) 2,670 2,704
Expenses relating to leases of BT E 2 HE AR
short-term leases 5,721 15,494
Depreciation expense included in cost of sales, SFAHE AN THE R KRHERAZ AT
administrative expenses and selling expenses are analysed EEROMUT:
as follows:
For the year ended
31 December
BE+"A=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
k-t 223 “E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TH7T
Cost of sales THE A 3,016 3,307
Administrative expenses THER 25,320 26,085
Selling expenses HEEM 4,230 -
32,566 29,392
The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31 RBEEZF+_A=1+—HLFE
December 2020 is HK$42,008,000 (2019: HK$30,646,000). B E 2 5 A ER 342,008,000 7T
(TE—NF 1 30,646,00087T) ©
(c) The Group’s leasing activities (c) =EEMMAEEE
The Group leases various office premises. Rental contracts ZK%I%E&%@?HV\*%% %H‘EA?’J?@
are typically made for 1 to 8 years (2019: same). The lease BENF1ZBE CE—NF : R -BHEH
agreements do not impose any covenants. %%TEMDEH;@%’JO
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17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17 B.EE

Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
listand ~ development  In progress Computer
Goodwill  Brand name contracts costs  technology software Total
E i)
ERLER BERELRZ
BE  REeE B% BERERE  WERRSG  BEGE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000
TR TR TiEn FET TERT FET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZE2-NE-F-H
Cost PR 107,546 4,554 4,759 23,335 6,085 30,982 177,261
Accumulated amortisation Rt = (4,554) (4,759) (23,075) (6,085) (30,873) (69,346)
Accumulated impairment loss FitAESE (106,031) = = = = = (106,031)
Net book amount REEE 1,515 - - 260 - 109 1,884
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE_T-AE+ZA=+-HL
FE
Opening net ook amount FRESE 1,515 - - 260 - 109 1,884
Additions hE - - - 304 - - 304
Amortisation charge - deh - - - (76) - (36) (112)
Exchange realignment ERBE - = = 9) = 2 (11)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,515 - - 479 - 71 2,065
At 31 December 2019 RZEB-AE+-A=+-H
Cost PR 105,094 4,461 4,663 23,160 5,962 30,978 174,318
Accumulated amortisation Rt - (4,461) (4,663) (22,681) (5,962) (30,907) (68,674)
Accumulated impairment loss RebRESSE (103,579) = = = = = (103,579)
Net book amount FEEE 1,515 - - 479 - 71 2,065
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZF+°A=+-A
ILEE
Opening net book amount ENRESE 1,515 = = 479 = 7 2,065
Additions RE - = = 11,972 = = 11,972
Impairment loss HERE (1,515) - - - - - (1,515)
Amortisation charge BT - - - (1,889) = (36) (1,925)
Exchange realignment ERER - - - 631 = 3 634
Closing net book amount FREEFE S = S 11,193 S 38 11,231
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF+-A=+-H
Cost PR 113,159 4,766 4,980 37,422 6,369 30,990 197,686
Accumulated amortisation Riti S (4,766) (4,980) (26,229) (6,369) (30,952) (73,296)
Accumulated impairment loss S AERR (113,159) - - - - - (113,159)
Net book amount REZE s = s 11,193 S 38 11,231
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17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17 BCEE @

Amortisation expense included in cost of sales and STAHE AR THEBNITER DT !
administrative expenses are analysed as follow:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2020 2019

g2 —LF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Cost of sales HHE R A 104 36
Administrative expenses THER 1,821 76
1,925 112

18 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18 BAFEAHMEZEKEZSHE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME =

FEBERATEFAHMEERGEZ EMEE

IBRRFEB B BIRIINE LMk AES B

AEB RS DR A EEtETEE C

B—NF AER) o LB E  BAEESR A

DIERR AT EF AR MEEREZRATA
Bk

The Group's financial asset at FVOCI represents unlisted equity
security outside Hong Kong which is not held for trading, and
which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition
in this category (2019: same). This is a strategic investment and
the Group considers the classification as equity instruments at
FVOCI to be more relevant.

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—RAILEE

2020 2019

52 “B-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THT

Balance at 1 January —B—BZ &8k - 895
Fair value losses on revaluation Efﬁf@%ﬁu& 5 i SOV B g HE I

recognised in other comprehensive Rz B AT EBE
income related to equity investment - (892)
Exchange realignment BE 2 5 E - 3)

Balance at 31 December

R+ZB=+—RZ&&H

The carrying amount of the financial asset at FVOCI is
denominated in RMB. On disposal of these equity investments,
any related balance within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to

retained earnings.

BATESARMEERGEZ SMEEZRE

BELUARE
FES AR R E WS
HEMDBRERBET

sHE - HEZSRERER @A
16 8 I RO (R (I AB R AS &R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—Z

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR
PROFIT OR LOSS

PoBE+TAS+—ALEE

VALUE THROUGH 19 BATEtAERZEREE

The Group's financial assets at FVPL represent investment in REBRATES A B 2 EMBEERIEL

unlisted investment fund, unlisted convertible preference shares TREES FFLHIMREERK ETES

and listed trading securities (2019: same). These financial assets BHEZKE (CE—NF 18R - ZFEHE

are mandatory measured at FVPL and with following details. EThRE AT ES ABastBRARMFEN
To

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—RAiLEE

2020 2019
-t 2 “B-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TFAET
Balance at 1 January R—B—HZ &% 289,918 273,745
Net fair value gains on revaluation RéraWmREB 2 EGHATE
recognised in the consolidated Wi B ER
income statement 245,190 21,923
Distribution oEC - (3,202)
Exchange realignment BB D R 7,932 (2,548)
Balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—H2Z4&8 543,040 289,918
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—H
2020 2019
T “B—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TFAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Unlisted investment fund outside EBRINZIELHREESE
Hong Kong (Note (a)) (Htst@)) 123,480 122,093
Unlisted convertible preference shares EBRIBINZIE LRI
outside Hong Kong (Note (b)) BIRg (7132 mb)) 418,524 166,113
542,004 288,206
Current assets TRENE E
Listed trading securities in Hong Kong BEELTEFRS W)
(Note (c)) 1,036 1,712
543,040 289,918
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19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

(©

Unlisted investment fund outside Hong Kong
The carrying amount of the unlisted investment fund is denominated in
RMB.

Unlisted convertible preference shares outside Hong Kong

On 10 June 2016 and 28 February 2018, the Group subscribed
7,443,326 Convertible Series C Preferred Shares (the “Convertible
Series C Preferred Shares”) and 2,434,015 Convertible Series D
Preferred Shares (the “Convertible Series D Preferred Shares”) of
Cloopen, respectively. The considerations for the Convertible Series C
Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares subscribed
by the Group were approximately HK$78,000,000 (equivalent to
US$10,000,000) and HK$39,000,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000),
respectively.

The Group, as the holders of the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares
and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares have:

(i)  options to request Cloopen to redeem the Convertible Series
C Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares
at the prices equal to the greater of the issue prices with an
8% compound interest per annum return plus any accrued but
unpaid dividends or the fair values at the dates of redemptions
after the earliest of 28 August 2022 or the occurrences of other
conditions as provided for under the definitive subscription
agreements; and

(i) options to convert the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares and
Convertible Series D Preferred Shares into ordinary shares of
Cloopen at the conversion prices based on certain conditions
on the dates of conversions as provided for under the definitive
subscription agreements.

The Convertible Series C Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D
Preferred Shares, together with the abovementioned options, were
classified as financial assets at FVPL and recognised at fair values. The
fair values of the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares and Convertible
Series D Preferred Shares were valued by an independent valuer at the
date of initial inception and on 31 December 2020.

The carrying amounts of the unlisted convertible preference shares are
denominated in US$.

Listed trading securities in Hong Kong

The fair value of the listed trading securities is based on their
current bid prices in an active market and their carrying amount is
denominated in HK$.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recorded in ‘other gains,

net” in the consolidated income statement.

19 HATEFAE

(a)

(b)

(©)

o W B A B ek

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

mZEREE (@

Bt :

EBRIZIEETREES

FEFRERSZREABADUAREE-

EFARIRIZIE LR TR E SR
RIZE—REAA+THBEZZE—N\EFEZBEZ+AN
B &% E 9 5888 Cloopen 7,443,326 2CE 51 ]
B (TCRTIRTAREBIT) &2,434,0158D%
FETHARE TR (TDRFATHARE SR o ANEEFT
RECAT AT IE SR DA S AR B IR 2 A
B9 B149%78,000,0007% 7T (HBE17210,000,000557T)
239,000,000787T (#6E14£5,000,000%7T) ©

REE (FRCRY AR EBALRKRDRATEIAKRE
ERFENA:

(i) BERERCloopent ZZ_"FNAZ+N\
Bl 4 REBEREFTETHEZ HAE4 XL
BRERLE) BEBENR T RSEZBRE
EICZ&F A IR IB SRR DA T BT AR 1B SRR
E8%E & EFERIRINE AR HERMTRE
ZETERNERIHEZ ATE &

(i) EEERREDIEREF BB ERIRE
%?ﬂ%#%ﬁcii—i}}ﬁﬂa%Cﬁ@UT}QHXE%HX&D
Z5 AR BRI AR CloopenZ BB/

CRI| R B ST DR S el A B S G (R E it
EEREDOEARATES ABRZEMEE T
A FERES o CRII AT HAIRB IR RDART oI
BRERZ ATFE BB EEMRERARBH K
TECEF+ " RA=+—RETHE.

FE L PIRREBISR Z AREET K TIE

ERLHEERS
LI EEESNATENREENERTHZIRT
BAEBSHE ARREENETIE.

BRATEFABREZEMEEZ ATEEH GG
mRATE MRS 8 5ER
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20 LOAN RECEIVABLES 20 FEUWERR
Loan receivables are amounts due from customers in the BRI NEERRRIEEBEBBRETR
ordinary course of the micro-lending and factoring business, FEWE R BYRIE A RARIA R IR R T E
unsecured and primarily denominated in RMB. AREEFIE
(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (@ FERERZIRE D
The aging analysis of loan receivables based on the RBEIEAA R B 2 B ETRERES DTN T

payment due date is as follows:

As at 31 December

®W+ZB=+—H
2020 2019
>3- 3 “B—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Current BPEA 1,038,283 369,971
1 to 3 months past due BE—E==EA 10,658 24,659
Over 3 months past due mEA=EA L L 39,078 33,738
Loan receivables, gross FEINE R 4E%E 1,088,019 428,368
Less: Provision for impairment of W BB TR ER S
loan receivables (44,940) (43,240)
1,043,079 385,128
Non-current JEBPER 54 =
Current BPEA 1,043,025 385,128
1,043,079 385,128




BHEH (FE) AIRAF —ETTEEFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I=g:4] f%#lﬁ% B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE
20 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20 EURERR @
(@) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued) (@ FBWERZIREDH (&)
The analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount ARAEW S AR AR E(E R AER R E U
and the corresponding provision for impairment of loan BERESEESZORIT

receivables in relation to loan receivables are as follows:

As at 31 December 2020
RZE"2H+”°"A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
—FEEr FETREER FE=MEBER #a5
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THExT FTET TFTER

Loan receivables, gross FEWE AR EE 1,038,181 10,760 39,078 1,088,019
Less: Provision for impairment of & | FEWERURE R E
loan receivables (2,607) (3,255) (39,078)  (44,940)
Loan receivables, net R EZUFEE 1,035,574 7,505 - 1,043,079
As at 31 December 2019
N _E-NEF+ZRA=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—RBE FIREE B=ER wast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT FHT
Loan receivables, gross FEWER4EE 368,409 26,221 33,738 428,368
Less: Provision for impairment of i : %H&gw\ﬁﬁ@ﬁ
loan receivables (2,217) (7,285) (33,738) (43,240)
Loan receivables, net FEWERFER 366,192 18,936 - 385,128
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20 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

—®FE+C A=+ HILFE

(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)

20 FEIRE T @

@ BWREMZIREST (&)

Movements for gross carrying amount of loan receivables: FEU ETREREARZEE BT ¢
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
—FEER FTRE F=RER M5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FERT FERT FER
As at 1 January 2019 R_ZE—hF—HA—H 468,532 94,198 6,372 569,102
Addition/transfer RE S EE 1,610,888 (48,230) 88,882 1,651,540
Repayment BN (1,703,053) (18,966) (28,080) (1,750,099)
Written off ] - - (32,836)  (32,836)
Exchange realignment & R sREE (7,958) (781) (600) (9,339
As at 31 December 2019 RIB—N&F
+=ZA=+—H 368,409 26,221 33,738 428,368
As at 1 January 2020 wZETEF—HF—H 368,409 26,221 33,738 428,368
Addition/transfer RE S EE 6,517,591 (2,396) 94,434 6,609,629
Repayment BER (5,909,037)  (13,885) (23,360) (5,946,282)
Written off s - - (68,203)  (68,203)
Exchange realignment B R sREE 61,218 820 2,469 64,507
As at 31 December 2020 RIB_2HF
+=ZB=+—AH 1,038,181 10,760 39,078 1,088,019
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20 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)

20 FEIRE TR @

W B R BT s

ERARAR i)l o

@ BWREMZIRE S (&)

Movements for provision for impairment of loan R ETREREEZENT
receivables are as follows:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B—PEEE B F=REE 4Est
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-hF—B—H 827 26,422 5,558 32,807
Addition/transfer B 1,431 (18,108) 60,801 44,124
Written off b/ 67! - - (32,836) (32,836)
Exchange realignment & R sREE (41) (1,029) 215 (855)
As at 31 December 2019 RIE—N&E
+=ZA=+—H 2,217 7,285 33,738 43,240
As at 1 January 2020 RW_ETEF—F—H 2,217 7,285 33,738 43,240
Addition/transfer NG 225 4,273) 71,074 67,026
Written off b 67! = - (68,203)  (68,203)
Exchange realignment &R sREE 165 243 2,469 2,877
As at 31 December 2020 RIE_EF
+=ZA=+—H 2,607 3,255 39,078 44,940
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20 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, based
on management’s assessment, the Group recorded
credit impairment loss of HK$67,026,000 (2019:
HK$44,124,000) in the consolidated income
statement. Loan receivables of HK$68,203,000 (2019:
HK$32,836,000), which are still subject to enforcement
activity, were determined as uncollectible and were written
off against loan receivables during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The loan receivables are not collateralised.
Effective interest rates on loan receivables

The effective interest rates on loan receivables are normally
as follows:

“EETCA=t—ALEE

20 FEWERR @

(@)

(b)

FEWERZIREE 2T (B)

REE_E-EHE+-_HB=+—HIHF
B REEEBNME AEERGE NG
FP IR EERERE67,026,0008 7T (T
T— 5 [ 44,124,000 7T) © HBEITH
REEMEW E R0 468,203,0008 7T (ZF
—LEF 1 32,836,000/87T) » #HEE A AU
B WREEE_EF+"H=+—H
IEF BRI E R o

PRI ETRR AL R4 52
EWERZ BIRFIER

FEWER 2 BIRF RN

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
—EEHE —E-hEF

Loans to borrowers REZAHIRZHEZEFH
— Before 20 August 2020 —RNTEEFENBZ+H 5% to 36% p.a. 5% to 36% p.a.
ZHI FHx FH=R
5%Z%E36% 5%%E36%
— After 20 August 2020 —RIEZEENBZ+H 5% to 4 times of =
>1% the 1-year LPR
5%E—FH =
EmER
FRpy4fE
Note: In accordance with the notice issued by Supreme People’s Kt : RiETHEES ARERSGHEN 5B -8

Court of the PRC, effective from 20 August 2020, the effective
interest rate of the loans to borrowers in the micro-lending
industry cannot exceed 4 times of the 1-year loan prime rate
(“LPR”) published by the National Interbank Funding Center of
the People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC”).

“EZENBZ+ B NEBERITERER
FiREZ ERNE R EREBETREAR
R1T (PEARIRIT) 2ERTERENE
R —E R ERE R R (SRER
FIE]) B9afg o



21 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2019 and 2020:

Name

iR

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions Information
Technology Limited

IRRBEEEREERMARAT

Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay
IT Limited*
HEEBERERREERAR:

Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology
Limited
RNEEEFRIBRAD

Megahunt Technologies Inc.

RREEHRRAERAD

BNBRAR

BERTN AR \EENERAR

BHEH (FE) AIRAF

—TTEFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

Place of incorporation
and type of legal entity

MR
EERRE

The PRC, limited
liability company*

> BRAF

The PRC, limited liability
company

FE BRAT

The PRC, limited
liability company
T BRAT

The PRC, limited
liability company”

hE BRAF

The PRC, limited
liability company
T BRAT

The PRC, limited
liability company
> BRAR

21 MfIBATE

N TE-NERT

TEMBRAEZRENT

Particulars
of issued
share capital/
Principal activities and registered
place of operation capital
BRTRE/
TREBFRELMI EREAREE
Provision of financial solutions, HK$100,000,000
services and related products in PRC
ERERGERBALTE 100,000,00077¢
RERARER
Provision of platform operation solutions RMB100,000,000
in PRC (2019: RMB42,435,000)
EHERGTEEERARE AE#100,000,0007C
C2-NE:
AR #42,435,0007T)
Manufacturing and sales of electronic power RMB53,400,000
meters and solutions in PRC
EHELERHEBEIEERR AR 53,400,007
BARE
Sales of information security chips and RMB59,800,000

solutions in PRC (2019: HK$15,000,000)

TEHEHESERETRRBARSR AR 59,800,0007
C2-NE:

15,000,000370)

Provision of payment processing RMB199,900,000

solutions in PRC

EHEREZARERERADE AR 1199,900,0007
Provision of micro loan solutions in PRC RMB500,000,000
ERERNEERBALR AR 500,000,0007

T=F4+=A=+—8-
Proportion
of ordinary

Proportion shares held

of ordinary by non-
shares held by controlling
the Group interests
(%) (%)

T&E R
WEZ wEZ
BERLA BERLA
(%) (%)

100% S

100% S

100% S

65.73% 34.27%
(2019: 76.92%) (2019: 23.08%)
(Note 34) (Note 34)
CE-nE: EE-nE:
76.92%) 23.08%)
(Hfiz34) (Hfe234)
68.83% 31.17%
68.83% 31.17%
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

#

(a)

Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises.
Registered as equity joint venture.

HN Mobile Pay is the subsidiary of MFERIESRMERAF
(“Hunan Yunrong”). The Company does not have legal ownership in
equity of Hunan Yunrong. Nevertheless, under certain contractual
agreements enacted among the registered owners of Hunan Yunrong,
the Company and the Company’s other subsidiary, the Company
controls Hunan Yunrong by way of controlling more than one half of
the voting rights of it, governing its financial and operating policies and
appointing or removing the majority of the members of its controlling
authorities, and casting the majority of votes at meetings of such
authorities. In addition, such contractual agreements also transfer the
risks and rewards of Hunan Yunrong to the Company. As a result, they
are presented as the consolidating subsidiaries of the Company.

VBill OPCO and MERBITNAK/ NEEMRBRAFare the
subsidiaries of EEEITREEHAIRAF (“Chongging JIM”). The
Company does not have legal ownership in equity of Chongging JIM.
Nevertheless, under certain contractual agreements enacted among the
registered owners of Chongging JIM, the Company and the Company’s
other subsidiary, the Company controls Chongging JIM by way of
controlling more than one half of the voting rights of it, governing
its financial and operating policies and appointing or removing the
majority of the members of its controlling authorities, and casting
the majority of votes at meetings of such authorities. In addition,
such contractual agreements also transfer the risks and rewards of
Chongging JIM to the Company. As a result, they are presented as the
consolidating subsidiaries of the Company.

Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2020
is HK$825,438,000 (2019: HK$591,464,000), of which
HK$754,581,000 (2019: HK$514,569,000) is attributed to
VBill (Cayman) and its subsidiaries (“VBill Group”), which
is considered to be material to the Group.

Significant restrictions of subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$2,796,769,000 (2019:
HK$2,662,856,000) of VBill Group are held in the PRC
and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other
than through normal dividends.

21 MIBATE @

(@)

B EmEERE-

BiAaARE-

=12

BN AR ERE R RMERAR (T
L/ 2B AR ARE MR R EmiEm
EEHAE AT RENEEREMEE A AR
BIEANBEM B AR L2 ETalmE
RABEBES B ERA R T EHBE R
KEERF EREBRMEBZ AIBARLE U
ZEREBEE LRASHE  femiEfiPEmEmR o
5N BRASAHRR TR ER 2 B bR kB3R
BIARRE AL BEWIERABD ZEREWBA
o

BTN REEBTNEKNEERERABAREE
BITBREBARAR (EBETT) ZWBAT &
AR EEREBGTRDEAERBE -RM 1R
BEBGTIMER A RAABEARATHMINE
ABFFEJILZETENWNZR FARBBENER
BITEYRER FRHEMBREERR - EREE
BHEBZ KBAME  URNZERERER LR
REHUR WMIEFEEEIT LI BRSNS
TR EEETTZ BB KREIRER T A QT - FIh 1§
ERINER AR Z IR EWB AR -

BEARIEIERER

B BE+ "B =+—B IR
HAREE /4825,438,0008 T (ZE—NE !
591,464,000787t) » HE#754,581,00078 7T
(ZZE—4 : 514,569,00078 7T) LAVBIll
(Cayman) R EIE = (TBEITHEREL) B
B BRI S A ERBEA

HBEEAIEREm B2
=R

BTN EBZR:EMRREEEEY
2,796,769,0008 T (ZE—HF:
2,662,856,000787T) JHTE R EHFA I 2 RS
EHINEEHIER o IEE EHIMEEHIE
RREZEREEAR (LIFEBEER
B) ZRHle
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued)

Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with

material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for

the VBill Group.

Summarised balance sheet:

BHEH (FE) AIRAF

21 fIBAR @

@ EXRIFZR#ED (B

—TTEFR

B EA TR E D Z /8 LB 2R

BEMBE

DT #5IBEITIER B E R E

BEARRME:

As at 31 December

®W+=-BA=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 391,516 403,117
Non-current liabilities JERENEE (748,708) (707,900)
Non-current net liabilities FrnEmafoF®RE (357,192) ____ (304,783) _
Current assets MEEE 4,684,357 3,881,921
Current liabilities mEaE (2,370,239) (2,129,620)
Current net assets MENEEFE 2,314,118 1,752,301
Net assets BEEFE 1,956,926 1,447,518
Accumulated non-controlling interests R &tIEIEIR L 754,581 514,569
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued)
Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised income statement:

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

21 MIBATE @

@ EXRIFEZR#ED (B
HEBBAIFZR Em = W/ A B2/
BEHEE (8)

W REE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RAILEE

2020 2019
—E-EE B AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHATT
Revenue WA 3,278,807 4,710,973
Profit before income tax BRFTIS AR AT 4] 461,529 689,219
Profit for the year FR A 352,499 589,667
Other comprehensive income/(loss), Hih2mEW A (E518)
net of tax (AR IE) 115,096 (29,456)
Total comprehensive income for the year, A2 EUNEHAEZE FOBRTRIH)
net of tax 467,595 560,211
Total comprehensive income attributable  FF#2 & 1 25 FE (5 2 T IR 25 4B 28
to non-controlling interests 169,976 111,310

Summarised cash flows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2020 2019
ZEIEHF ZE-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Cash generated from KERBFIRIRE
operating activities 70,611 1,352,933
Cash used in investing activities KRETHMERE (297,305) (929,977)
Cash (used in)/generated from MEEE FRA) /FrSRE
financing activities (23,778) 681,962
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERRSLEWZ GRL)
cash equivalents HEINFEE (250,472) 1,104,918

The information above is before inter-company

eliminations.

NEERBERENRBEHHEE 2Bk
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 22 MUIEZSEZARZIRE

EQUITY METHOD

The balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as RireEESBERERNZ
follows:

As at 31 December

R+Z-B=+—H
2020 2019
k- a3 2 —NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Associated companies: /N
~ PAX Global (Note (a)) -8 Eaiaii (Hrata) 2,393,435 2,103,541
- Good Chain (Chonggqing) Technology —iFiE (BB RRBRAR
Co., Ltd. (“Good Chain”) (Tgr i) 4,108 3,196
— Beijing Suiyun Technology Co., Ltd —IERBEERKXERAF
(“Beijing Suiyun”) (MERBEED) 3,391 =
— Shenzhen Guofu Yunlian Technology Co., B E BRI ARAE
Ltd (“Shenzhen Guofu”) (MRYIEE) 3,568 =
— Beijing Fangyun Technology Co., Ltd —IERFERKERAF
(“Beijing Fangyun”) (MERABE) 311 =
2,404,813 2,106,737

KRB RS 2 G EETERN T ¢

The amount of share of results recognised in the consolidated
income statement is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—RAiL&EE

2020 2019
k- et 23 —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT

Associated companies: BEATE
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —BEBRX (@) 302,091 208,848
— Good Chain —yfiE 656 (153)
— Beijing Suiyun —IRBE 173) -
- Shenzhen Guofu — YR E (6) =
— Beijing Fangyun —ItRAE (1,056) -
301,512 208,695
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZET

22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

(@)

Set out below is an associated company of the Group as
at 31 December 2019 and 2020, which, in the opinion
of the directors, is material to the Group — PAX Global.
PAX Global has share capital consisting solely of ordinary
shares, which are held directly by the Group; its principal
places of business are in the PRC, Hong Kong, the United

States of America and lItaly.

22 DIEREARRZIRE @

REERKZKE

TXEIR ZE-NFRZF_TF+
A=+—HEFXRHEEEMEBEKX
ZAEEBEAT-BERK - AEIRX
BERTEERERFAENEBRENZ
IRz HEEEEMB D PEFHE X5
BEEREREARF] o

Place of
incorporation and Particular of issued Nature of Effective ~ Measurement
Name kind of legal entity share capital relationship interest held method
ML E FiEZ
E2Y EERBEE BRTREHR MELE el g FERE
PAX Global (Note i) Bermuda, limited 1,092,837,000 (2019: 1,100,194,000) Associate 33.31% Equity
liability company ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (2019: 33.09%)
BERIK (##) BRE ARAT 1,092,837,0008 CF—NEF B 33.31% 55
1,100,194,0008) EF-NEF!
SRERI BT BER 33.09%)

On 20 December 2010, as a result of the Group’s spinoff
of PAX Global to be separately listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, PAX Global became an associated
company of the Group. On the date when control
ceased, the Group’s retained interest in PAX Global
was fair valued, and this give rise to the recognition of
goodwill being the difference between the fair value of the
investment in PAX Global and its share of net identifiable
assets value of PAX Global. As at 31 December 2020,
difference between the carrying value of the investment in
PAX Global and its share of net assets value of PAX Global
mainly included goodwill of HK$530,420,000 (2019:
HK$530,420,000) and adjustments to eliminate unrealised
profits and losses on transactions between the Group and

PAX Global.

— 25+ A+ H HAREEE
DIFRBREARIABI LT EER
o BEREMAREBRZHE RS 10
FIFZEFEER A&EEREERIKFES
ZHEBEUATESE BHEIAFE (B
REBRRKREZ AT EHRAEGE IR
AP EEFEERR N _ETF
+ A=+ —H REERKZKERT
EHREEGEERNEEFECEZRBTE
BHEEZ530,420,0008 7T (CE—HE .
530,420,000787T) » WETHELUIKIE A
SEHEPEIRIKER ZNREIR & R
8o

\_7

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_"_A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
—ETHF ZE-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TFAT
At 1 January —H—H 2,103,541 1,927,772
Share of profit F§1£um%I 302,091 208,848
Share of other comprehensive FEEEMEE WG (E518)
income/(loss) 59,951 (16,756)
Share of other reserves FEAL E At 13,025 12,797
Loss on deemed acquisition and RIEW B R B S i 2 B 18 5%
dilution of interest, net (Note ii) (H13%ii) (1,453) -
Dividend received/receivable Bl EWRRE (83,720) (29,120)
At 31 December w+—B=+—1 2,393,435 2,103,541
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HEZZ

22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued)

Impairment test for interest in PAX Global

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the investment
calculated based on the current bid price of PAX Global at
the balance sheet date is higher than its carrying value.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the investment
calculated based on the current bid price of PAX Global
at the balance sheet date is less than its carrying value. An
impairment test is performed to determine the recoverable
amount of the investment. The recoverable amount, which
was assessed by an independent valuer on a value-in-use
basis calculated by a discounted cash flow model, exceeds
the carrying value as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s interest in PAX
Global was 33.31% (2019: 33.09%,).

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to
provide funding relating to the Group’s interest in PAX
Global.

Note i:  PAX Global is principally engaged in the development and
sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sales (“E-payment
Terminals”) products, provision of maintenance and
installation services (collectively, the “E-payment Terminals
solution business”).
Note ii:  During the year, PAX Global repurchased a total of
20,283,000 ordinary shares (2019: nil) on the Stock
Exchange. Such repurchased shares were subsequently
cancelled during the year. Certain employees of PAX
Global exercised their share options granted pursuant to a
share option scheme set up on 2 May 2019. A net loss on
deemed acquisition and dilution of interest in an associated
company of HK$1,044,000 (2019: nil) was recognised in
the consolidated income statement, including release of
reserve debited to the consolidated income statement of
HK$409,000 (2019: nil). The Group's interest in PAX Global
increased from 33.09% to 33.31% accordingly.

o W B A B ek

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

22 DIEREARRZIRE @

(@ NEERIKZEE B
RE SR Z B 2 i E R
ATETERE+_/B=F+—H KREZA
TEEEEEBRRAPEERIKZERE
AEBtE s HIREE
ATE-NE+_AZF+—H BREZA
TEREESGEROPEERIKZERE

ANESE DR HEEREE - ETREARS
FEERBEZABRBIEE - R_F—NF

+TZR=+—H BBuULEMEERE
EEEFGEIRBERBESREHEEHE
Z P Bl R ERREE -

AZEIEFT /A= —H AEER
EEEERIXZFg 7%33 310/0 (— _j_LﬂE .
33.09%) ©

HERAERAN SR ZEERMES

DA ESSREV S
Mo EEBREEREBURHETTRN

%%QEMH (r 5 F S AR B UK
IR (RFE B F A&

iﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%}%J)

Hiagii:.  RAREER E;i%ﬁﬂﬁ”\ﬁﬁ%@m,\
20,283,00008 Z3B (CE—HE 1 8])
‘?ﬂ%lﬁlﬁxf‘ﬁéﬁAZKEanﬁﬁ E]
BERIKETRENTERE-_Z—NEFR
B H&RIZBRE BB 2 R
T REN B R — B A B R 2
5127 EE1,044,0008 7T (ZE—N4F | )
RARE W R AR BIERMRE EB?EZ;
E U R 2 #409,0008 7T (T E—

£ ) °ﬁt’$$§)3é§2=-:;£§19%2%ﬁ‘§
FH33.09%38 %E33.31%°
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 22 MUIEZSEZAREZIRE ®
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(@) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (@ MREBREKZEE ®
Extracted financial information set out below are the TXFEZzHHRERRES MR EAR
summarised consolidated financial information of PAX ZABRIKGEMEERBIE

Global which is accounted for using the equity method.

As at 31 December

®W+—-—B=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF “E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current REN
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBEHEY 3,802,741 3,230,005
Other current assets HEMREhEE 3,152,375 2,966,698
Total currentassets mEEESeE 6,955,116 6,196,703
Trade and bills payables FEAT BRR S P (T TR 4 (1,371,267) (1,382,487)
Other payables and accruals HAnE TR IE R et & A (485,459) (299,057)
Other current liabilities Himshas (97,593) (194,110)
Total current liabilities MENE([E4EEE (1,954,319) (1,875,654)
Non-current JEREN
Assets BHE 681,943 522,520
Liabilities =L (109,168) (104,217)
Net assets BEEFE 5,573,572 4,739,352
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE g_gi‘f' B=1+—HLHFE

22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 22 MUHEZFZARZIEE @
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (@ NEERIKZEE @

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2020 2019

BT E —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Revenue WA 5,650,619 4,925,733

Profit for the year FRimt) 903,850 624,864

Other comprehensive income/(loss), HihamEmuE, (B18)

net of tax (HABRFRIA) 175,532 (48,790)
Total comprehensive income FAEEWmBER (OFRNIE)

for the year, net of tax 1,079,382 576,074
Dividends received/receivable Bl R EZBE R AR Z KRR

from the associated company 83,720 29,120
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Fortheyearended 31 December 2020 HZE—Z"ZF+"A=+—HILFE

22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 22 LUHEZZZARZIEE @
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) FCloopenZi&E

(b) Investment in Cloopen

Set out below is an associated company of the Group as at
31 December 2020 — Cloopen. As at 31 December 2020,
the carrying value of Cloopen is zero (2019: zero) which
is not considered as material to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Cloopen has share capital
consisting of class A ordinary share, class B ordinary share,
series A convertible preferred shares, series B convertible
preferred shares, series C convertible preferred shares,
series D convertible preferred shares, series E convertible
preferred shares and series F convertible preferred shares.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s effective interest in
the ordinary shares of Cloopen, calculated based on all
issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Cloopen which
are held by the Group, is 46.79% (2019: 50.51%).

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to
provide funding relating to the Group's interest in Cloopen.

The interest in Cloopen was initially measured at fair
value. The carrying amount was increased or decreased
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
movements in other comprehensive income or loss of
the interest in Cloopen to the extent the carrying amount
of the interest in Cloopen reduced to nil due to losses,
after the initial recognition. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group's share of loss of Cloopen exceeded its interest
in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, there are no overall
financial impact on the consolidated income statement
from the investment for the year. As at 31 December 2020,
the unrecognised share of loss of the interest in Cloopen is
HK$2,723,740,000 (2019: HK$582,356,000).

TXEIN_EZEFE+_A=1+—HXK
EEZBE/RT]—Cloopenc R ZE &4
+ZB=+—H"CloopenZ fREERZ (=
Z-NE ) BAEEZGEMBRE
RBEKCloopentEE 2 RAHAFRE ®
I BIEE B ART AR ELK BR
FRTHA RGBSR CR TP B D
RI AR B ~ ER T AT R B I K
FRIIPTHARRB SRS o

N _EEBF+_R=+—H BAER
FifFCloopenZ 8 B 2517 R 51T 7RI ME @ A%
8 KEERCloopenZ @ 2 BIE T
7346.79% (ZZF—NEF 1 5051%) ©

B A LR CloopenZ IR HE S
WIARE B R A

R CloopenZ #mH) TR ATFEFTE T
Y RFESRE > it CloopenZ # @ Z BRI
ERBERES KRAEERKEEAEER
FE1EF Cloopenz #m 2 B U Hfth &
EU SRS e MG MR L o 1R
ETEF+ A=+ —B > K~EEEWN
Cloopenz 5188 EH EACloopenElLHxZ
%E’Elﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\fﬁlﬂ?i%“ﬂ?éuﬁ
BRERMBEREE RS2 245+ ﬁ
=+—B > KFEBE(EH Cloopen #w 2.
B518742,723,740,00058 7T (ZBE—NLF .
582,356,000557T) ©
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&r f%#lﬁ% FiFRE:
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE
INVENTORIES 23 78
As at 31 December
m+Z-A=+—H
2020 2019
ZECTE —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Raw materials il 21,177 8,889
Work in progress THm 73,176 82,787
Finished goods BUAY 27,092 3,975
121,445 95,651

The cost of inventories recognised in cost of sales amounted
to HK$313,645,000 (2019: HK$298,288,000), which included
reversal of provision for inventories of HK$2,740,000 (2019:

provision for inventories of HK$5,539,000).

The gross amount of inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$40,820,000 (2019:
HK$40,933,000) as at 31 December 2020. Full provision has

been made with regard to these balances.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

24

R EH & AR 2 7 5 R 4N3E313,645,00078 7T
(CTEB—5F 1 298,288,00087T) > BIEEFEE
#$[0]2,740,00087T (CE—NF FEEEB
5,539,00057T) ©

RIZB_EF+_A=+—8 RSB E
5BE 7 7 S 48%EX /440,820,000 (ZF

—7LEE 40,933,000 7T) » W E R E S ER1ES
2EEE

FEURARTR S PR R 152

As at 31 December

nm+=-—B=+—H
2020 2019
—EBEfF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current portion BNEAER 53
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEWBR TR (BaE(a) 236,974 210,103
Bills receivables (Note (b)) ERRE (Wa2b)) 51,291 16,922
Less: provision for impairment of receivables 3 : FEU TR IB R (E B
(Note (c)) (Biztc)) (14,371) (14,851)
273,894 212,174
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

24 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24 FEWERRRFEIREE (&
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The REEEEATERE BRI IR
carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables are ZEREMET U T EB5E !

denominated in the following currencies:

As at 31 December

®W+-—B=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEHE “E—hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK$ BT 10,561 16,217
RMB AR 258,284 193,866
us$ E7T 2,670 363
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) SRPHE (MRPFES]) 2,379 1,728
273,894 212,174

(a) Trade receivables (@) FEURERRX

The Group's credit terms to trade debtors normally range
from 0 to 180 days. The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

FTERGTEZEBAZEER—RAIE
18087 F - TEL AR AMIEH Z FEWER
FREREATAAT

As at 31 December

nr+—A=+—H
2020 2019
k- a3 2 —BNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THATT
Current to 90 days BIHAZ90H 194,298 166,857
91 to 180 days 91E180H 7,955 11,831
181 to 365 days 181%365H 11,185 4,910
Over 365 days 365 E 23,536 26,505
236,974 210,103

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables included
retention money receivables of HK$11,174,000 (2019:
HK$11,079,000), which represents approximately 10%
to 20% (2019: 10% to 20%) of the relevant contract
sum granted to certain customers in the PRC that have a
retention period of normally one year. As at 31 December
2020, the retention money receivables aged over 365 days
primarily based on invoice date amounted to HK$1,341,000
(2019: HK$7,723,000).

RIBE-EFE+_"_A=+—H  EWREER
AIEERREST1,174,0008T (CE—H
£ 1 11,079,00087T) > HRFETHEARE
FREEHORIENI0%E20% (ZE—H
F 1 10%E20%) > ZERIBZ RERRR—
A/ —F R_2EF+"_F=+—8H"

B E AT EIRE A365HMU L2
FEURE £ 21,341,000/ 7T (CE—NF .
7,723,00077T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE— v—vﬂz—'— B=1+—HLHFE
24 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24 FEMARTR B FEMLRIR (@
(b) Bills receivables (b) FEUEIE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with ZAEFIET IR RO IRER 2 IRIT AR
maturity dates within six months. The maturity profile of R - AEERKEEZFIEERINT

the bills receivables of the Group is as follows:

As at 31 December

nr+-A=+—H
2020 2019
k- a2 —T-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Falling within 90 days 908 51,291 3,425
Falling within 91 to 180 days 91ZF180H - 13,497
51,291 16,922
(c) Impairment and risk exposure (0 FERERE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach AEBRAEBUBREENFISREES
to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss ETEHEAEEEE AT ERUIRAE
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the ECL, B2HRiEERE AT EEBEERS
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared B BURRERBEREEERBRE =D
credit risk characteristics. Future cash flows for each #H - FAEFEUCRIER R R IZ 2R ETHIRE
group receivables are estimated on the basis of historical [E s B R i st WAFL AR URRE
loss experience, adjusted to reflect the effects of current AR AT A B R R R
conditions as well as forward looking information.
Movement on the provision for impairment of trade FEMERTUR EREEENT

receivables are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+"_A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019

k. ok 33 “E-NEF
At 1 January w—B—H 14,851 10,463
Credit impairment loss EERERE 150 4,676
Write off isH (1,560) -
Exchange realignment bE 2 sR 930 (288)
At 31 December K+=ZRB=+—H 14,371 14,851
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date RiREHEFEE 2 R KIEE AR Lt
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned BRRBHIEZ REE AEBETEFES
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. AR R R R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

25 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 25 ##timAstE HihEmEE

COST
As at 31 December
nK+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Current portion mENES
Deposits and other receivables & R HMAEURIE 52,502 53,541
Dividend receivable from an investment FE AR E AR Z IRER S
accounted for using the equity method 36,400 -
Amounts due from shareholders FEUR— RSB JBB 2 B AR 3R 2 7R IR
of a subsidiary - 45,254
88,902 98,795
Non-current portion FERBNER >
Deposits Be 14,332 2,914
103,234 101,709
As at 31 December 2019, included in the amounts due from RIZE—AE+ZA=+—8 > BRAQTE
shareholders of a subsidiary were HK$18,216,000 due from EIF18,216,000B T R ERAABT —ZEEE
directors of the Company and HK$1,917,000 due from a key 1B A BFRIE1,917,00078 7051 A FEUR—RE M E A
management personnel of the Company. BIRERAIA
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The IREEEAEATERE JEREADIRIRE
discounting impact of non-current portion is insignificant. The BUWAER - IRHENASTECHMESREE
carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortised cost are ZEREMETS AT EBIE !

denominated in following currencies:

As at 31 December

K+ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—BCZHF “EB-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
HK$ BT 38,209 6,723
RMB AR 65,025 94,596
Us$ =TT - 390
103,234 101,709
As at 31 December 2020, the impact of ECL is immaterial to N TETEF+A=+—RH RIEEHE
the Group (2019: same). W BHAEBIFEN (CE—NF R -
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&r f%fﬂﬁ% B ek
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE g_gﬁ‘f' B=1+—HLHFE

26 HittREnEE

As at 31 December

®+—-B=+—H
2020 2019
—ECERF “E—hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Prepayments AR 29,273 21,155
Value added tax receivables FEURIZER 50,733 45,851
80,006 67,006

27 BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE 27 $R1T7FR  SIREIBITEBRURERES

AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RIREEEY
As at 31 December
w+=ZBA=+—H
2020 2019
TECEE “E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Non-current assets EREEE
Bank deposits (Note i) RITIFRR (B 52i) 6,105 =
Current assets MENEE
Bank deposits (Note i) IRITERR (W a2ii) 76 147
Restricted bank balance (Note iii) S IRGIERITAS &R (B aiii) 880,552 671,535
Cash and cash equivalents (Note iv) RERIBEHEY) Wativ) 3,747,468 3,712,567
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

27 BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Notes:

()  The balance represented bank deposits of the Group with original
maturities over one year which are placed as guaranteed deposits for a
project and are denominated in RMB.

(i) The balance represented bank deposits of the Group with original
maturities between three to twelve months which are time deposits or
placed as guaranteed deposits for bills payables and are denominated
in RMB.

(i) In accordance with the notice issued by the Payment and Settlement
Department of the PBOC, effective from 14 January 2019, all customer
reserve accounts held by the third-party payment institutions were
to be cancelled and the customer reserves were to be deposited in
a dedicated deposit account maintained centrally by a designated
agency. The customer reserve account is denominated in RMB.
Transfers of funds under this bank account are governed under certain
measures implemented by the PBOC and hence these customer
reserves are restricted in nature.

(iv) Included in cash and cash equivalents were HK$1,025,000 (2019:
HK$3,218,000) bank deposits with original maturities within three
months which are placed as guaranteed deposits for tenders.

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$3,248,108,000 (2019: HK$2,981,572,000) are kept in
the bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

27 SR1TTFR RIRHRITAARURRE
RREEFEY @

sz -

() HEESFEAEER—EREMEFEFARERSZRE
TR ZERTERRARSHBE R —FU L T
ARMEEHE

) AR ERERA S E+ EANERERD
AN BT B (FA REBRE 2 RITHER B
ARHHES

(i) WEFERARBOTXNEEAEMHEN B=F
—NE—BTHOAE E=SARBRHENME
ERREZRARREE BEA#ETRERF
BREE BN ERERERAT TR HAERKRS
MARMESHE - ZIRITIRPPHNESERZTPEA
RIBTHEBNETHREEE  AitZFE A R#ES
B LZRFe

vy RERRSLEVOERREMEEEARERS
FREARR A =8B Az R1T1ER1,025,00078 7T (T
T—HEE : 3,218,00087T) °

REBES4753,248,108,0008 T (ZE—H

£ 12,981,572,000/870) EHA BRI TR
IRTRP  EHESAZINEEH -

RELFCEEYRUTEREIE

currencies:

As at 31 December

®W+=ZH=+—H
2020 2019
ZEIEHF ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET TFAT
HK$ BT 305,666 265,638
RMB AR 2,371,117 2,331,086
Us$ ETT 998,227 997,022
JPY H 69,720 116,247
MOP EPIHE 2,473 2,574
EUR BloT 265 -
3,747,468 3,712,567
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

28 SHARE CAPITAL 28 fgas
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each
BREE0.00258 T 2 B
No. of shares HK$'000
o FET
Authorised: EE -
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, N _E-NF—B—H-
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 “B—HF
+ZA=+—H-
B EF—-A—Ak
“ETBF+ZH=+—H 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRERE :
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, N _E—NF—BA—H-
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 “E-hEF
+-A=+—H"
“EIEF—HF—HEK
“ETEF+"A=+—H 2,776,833,835 6,942

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Share options of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees
in order to strive for future developments and expansion of the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Group’s full-time
employees, and Executive and non-Executive Directors. The Scheme
became effective on 29 April 2011 and unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
that date. No share option was granted under the Scheme.

Issuance of share option of a subsidiary

On 15 January 2018, the directors and shareholders of VBill OPCO
have passed a resolution to conditionally grant options to several
management (the “Grantees”) of VBill OPCO pursuant to the terms of
a share option scheme for VBill OPCO (the “2018 VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme”) a right to subscribe up to approximately 12% of the
enlarged registered and paid up capital of VBill OPCO at the exercise
price of RMB12.51 for every RMB1.00 in the registered and paid up
capital of VBill OPCO within a period of 3 years from the date of grant.

The share options are fully vested as at 31 December 2018. The
validity period of these share options shall be 3 years from the date of
grant.

sz

@ ZFATZHERE
RABEF—E_T——FRREE (ZEE)
STERG| BEERHE A 7 5 2 B8 » B ALEH
BRERMNEREF -Zt B2 ER2REQEE
EEZ 2HEESURATRIFMTES X2
“B——FNAZ+ABEN BRIFZEB ST
HEEST  BRIK Bz B T EHBMAE MR
R WERIRIE LT B R D E AR -

(b) BIT—HMBAT ZHERE
RIZ—-NE—B+HEB BITINEERRER
BRER LB THNSREERE (REA) B
HREBERE RIEETAERES B (TS N\F
BETT(TRERRRE ST B ) BT A AR E E
HAkEE = FHARI BB T I s MR R R A P EA
R ¥1.007TEBARK12.51 T TEE  SRBHET
(TEEAFMERRRARELI12%

RIB-N\F+ZA=+—B BREZBRE &
LRRENARABRE BREs=F-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

28 SHARE CAPITAL

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Issuance of share option of a subsidiary (Continued)

On 18 November 2020, the directors and shareholders of VBill OPCO
have passed a resolution to amend the 2018 VBill OPCO Share Option
Scheme from an exercise period of 3 years to 6 years (the “2020 VBill
OPCO Share Option Scheme”). As a result of the modification, the
incremental fair value granted is HK$40,191,000.

The incremental fair value granted is the difference between the fair
value of the modified equity instrument (2020 VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme) and that of the original equity instrument (2018 VBill
OPCO Share Option Scheme), both estimated as at the date of the
modification (18 November 2020).

The weighted average fair value of options under 2018 VBill OPCO
Share Option Scheme determined using the Binomial valuation model
was RMB13.62. The significant inputs into the model were the exercise
price as shown above, volatility of 57.40%, zero dividend yield,
exercise multiple of 2.8 times, post vesting exit rate of 0% and an
annual risk-free interest rate of 2.86%.

The weighted average fair value of options under 2020 VBill OPCO
Share Option Scheme determined using the Binomial valuation
model was RMB14.86. The significant inputs into the model were the
exercise price as shown above, volatility of 45.90%, zero dividend
yield, exercise multiple of 2.8 times, post vesting exit rate of 0% and an
annual risk-free interest rate of 3.09%.

28 fg#s

MisE 6@

(b)

BIT—EMBAS ZERRE (@
RIBEZZ2EF+—B+N\H BITANES KK
REBBRARR R IT— N\FETHERES
SMITERH=FS B Fo (TEIBFMRETE
FERCREETE)) - BMEST MBI E AT ER
40,191,000

RPN BATERKETRETA CE-ZF
VEITIIEE R B MR T A (T — \FHET
IR ES ) 2 ATEEZE MEQATEIRIME
1A CE2E22F+—A+/\B) BflsEtE.

FAZENGEREREEEN S — N\ EBEITIER
HEETEIE TERENETSATESARE3.62
Too ZIEBMB B A BIRS EFIRTEE IR
57.40% ~ B B0~ {T{EIZ #2815 BR BB M KZF0%
AN R PR A 2E2.86% ©

RAZENGERREETN S S ERBITER
T EIIE T ERENEFHAFERARK14.86
Too ZIRB M B B8 A BIRS L FIRITEE IR
45.90% B2 BE0~ TEE 2813 - BBERMAE%
A& EPRFEFZE3.09% ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE
29 RESERVES 29 f#iE
Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
RIVEE  EAER  HtHEE EREE  GRERY At
Wam) )
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET FTHET TR THET
At 1 January 2020 RZZZZF—-F—H 1,063,153 168,434 434,108 (41,043)  3,055454 4,680,106
Profit for the year FRER = = = = 656,685 656,685
Exchange differences arising on MEBINIE AR BRE
translation of the financial EEZERER
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - 134,591 - 134,591
Share of other comprehensive FEMEDENRZREZ
(loss)/income of investments Hit2m (5518 /s
accounted for using
the equity method S = (2,669) 63,486 = 60,817
Share of other reserves of FEMELUB R EARZREZ
an investment accounted for Hitrfts
using the equity method - - 13,025 - - 13,025
Release of reserve upon dilution of — ESEMNEGREARZHERE
interest in an investment accounted I RTEH 7
for using the equity method S = = (409) = (409)
Deemed disposals of shares of RALERBABRRG
subsidiaries (Note 34) (Wizt34) S = (39,050) 1,697 = (37,353)
Employees’ incentive programme —RNEAT 2 BERE
of a subsidiary (Note 28) BENEZLY - = 27,662 = = 27,662
At31 December 2020 RIZZ®E
+ZA=+-H 1,063,153 168,434 433,076 158,322 3,712,139 5,535,124
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HI-FE

29 {#fE@®

Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
RitaBE ERER  HMRE ERRE  REEA &t
Wazm) ()
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TER TAT TAT
AT January 2019 RZF-NEF-A—-H 1,063,153 168,434 647,029 6312 2486343 4,371,271
Profit for the year FRER - - - - 569,111 569,111
Exchange differences arising on MEBIMNIE AR BRE
translation of the financial EEZERER
statements of foreign subsidiaries s s = (35,224) = (35,224)
Share of other comprehensive loss RGBT EARZHEZ
of investments accounted for A2 A
using the equity method s s (862) (15,961) = (16,823)
Change in value of a financial BATES ARt2ERE
asset at fair value through other ZEMEEBELY
comprehensive income - - (892) - - (892)
Share of other reserves of FEMEDENRZREZ
an investment accounted for At
using the equity method - - 12,797 - - 12,797
Deemed disposal of shares of RALEMBABRG
subsidiaries s s (276,404) 3,830 = (272,574
Employees’ incentive programme of a  —fEII{EAE 2
subsidiary EE LB E - - 30,303 - = 30,303
Exercise of employees’ incentive T—REHEARZ
programme of a subsidiary EELREE = = 22,137 = - 22,137
At 31 December 2019 RZENE
+ZA=1+—-H 1,063,153 168,434 434,108 (41,043) 3,055,454 4,680,106
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

29 RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share premium account
of Hi Sun Holdings Limited (“HSHL") acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17 October 2001 as set out in
the circular to the shareholders of HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

Major items in other reserves are as follows:

- the difference between the net proceeds from issuance of
convertible preference shares of subsidiaries and the amount
transferred to non-controlling interests upon their conversion into
ordinary shares in prior years;

- the impacts from granting employees’ incentive programme of
subsidiaries;

—  change in values of the financial asset at FVOCI; and

- the initial recognition of the written put option liabilities and
recognition of gain on the deemed disposals of subsidiaries (Note
34).

PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net
profit to a reserve fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.
As at 31 December 2020, retained earnings comprise of statutory
reserve fund amounting to HK$139,783,000 (2019: HK$135,882,000).

29 f#E @

sz :

(i)

(i)

(iii)

FEEZ BERBFERBHBERARAE ((BHEE
) RRFEBRA-ZSTZ—FN\ANBZBERFF
O REN_TE-F+ATTHEGTZEREAR
(TEH) Rz B iFER BEBREERRMD &
EiR BARBRMILIGZ BETROMEZEZRHE-

HMFEENEBEEHIWT

— NETEEESRSTEREAETHEAR
FIRRESTIR Z PSR S R E IR R 1
HHEERL EER

- RUNBARZESRESINZE;

- BATERARMREREZ SHEERES
% LR

— FEIELLAREEREIAERGEASL
EWEARRIYE (F5E34)

FEABNBR AT Z10%DEE#ER BE
ZIEETEIN AT EMEARZ50% AT RBERLR
FERILEBT AR RS BIUENAR Z 3
&L EZEEERBEERR AT EMEELAZ
25%KF R IEZERE+TH=+—H REEBH
SHEEEFHESE139,783,00087T (CE—NE:
135,882,00057T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 30 FE(HERFIRFEMNERE - AR ZEIE

PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS PR BT 2 R TRIE ~ AR
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS TRIE B2 FEEHRIR
As at 31 December
r+-A=+—H
2020 2019
—BEfF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Current portion BNHAER 7
Trade payables (Note (a)) FEIBRR (B/ZE@)) 512,622 438,993
Bills payables (Note (b)) PRI 4% (atb) 14,182 294
526,804 439,287
Payables for payment processing solutions SNRBERIBMRFRER L
business (Note (c)) FEASRIR (M3t (c) 828,619 599,389
Other payables and accruals (Note (d)) H AN TRIE R FE 5T RUIE
(#fat(d)) 1,013,991 1,029,432
2,369,414 2,068,108
Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing FEN IR EN RE IR B EERARAT R
solutions business and other payables and accruals are EFB BRI EMRE A RIB R B RIEZ
denominated in the following currencies: Ur&EByE :
As at 31 December
R+-A=+—H
2020 2019
—EITHF “B-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
HK$ BTT 55,004 54,848
RMB AR 2,313,024 2,013,260
UsD E7T 1,386 -
2,369,414 2,068,108
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

Notes:
(@ Trade payables

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

30 EIIRMKREARE AR FRIE

FRR T REF Z BATRRIE ~ H &S
TRIE R FESTTRIA ()

(@ FEfTERFR
RIZIEERIZ—AF+A=+—H =
T AR 2 FETIRARES DTN -

As at 31 December

®m+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET
Current to 90 days BNEAZE90H 462,757 402,025
91 to 180 days 91E180H 30,489 1,859
181 to 365 days 181Z365H 9,898 24,544
Over 365 days 365HLL E 9,478 10,565
512,622 438,993

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.

(b) Bills payables
The balance represents bank acceptance notes:

EMEFR T ZEERNFOE180H 2

b) FENRE
BRERTSIRITAR RIRIE

As at 31 December

R+-—A=+—H
2020 2019
ZEITHE “EB-hF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Due within 90 days 908 M EIEA 4,878 294
Due within 91 to 180 days 91E180H A EIHA 9,304 -
14,182 294

(c) Payables for payment processing solutions business
Payables for payment processing solutions business mainly represent
payment received from the relevant banks and financial institutions on
behalf of the merchants. The amounts are generally due for settlement
within 30 days and is denominated in RMB.

(0 ZNRZEBHRFREHZEMNRIA
XNRGEEFRRDBEB AR ERENR
P UWEARR IR 1T R SRR B (IR - B RS8R —
ARI30E REREE IR A RIS IE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR

PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS

30 EIIRMKREARE AR FRIE

FRR T REF Z FRATRRIE ~ H &S

AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS TRIE R FEETTRRIA (&)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) et : (@)
(d) Other payables and accruals (d) EMFEIRIERFERIE
As at 31 December
W+=ZBA=+—H
2020 2019
ZEIEH —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations fEStE TRAKRRKEETE 302,642 287,402
Deposits B 50,373 62,250
Receipt in advance from customers (Note /) B WERE B 2 708 (HaE) 27,932 73,389
Advance from merchant recruitment agents KEBEEEREBENRR 415,261 370,337
Others Hith 217,783 236,054
Total = 1,013,991 1,029,432
Note: Msz -

(i)

A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognises the
related revenue. The Group recognised its contract liabilities
under other payables and accruals as receipt in advance from
customers in the consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2020 that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year amounted to HK$69,592,000 (2019:
HK$173,354,000).

The decrease in receipt in advance from customers was mainly
due to decrease in advances from merchants under the payment
processing solutions segment.

BHEENAEBEDERBRAR  REFX
ARBRERERZNNEESREEHRR
B - AEEN GO EERRRTEDEAM
FEARRIE R FE IR PSR EATREIR
HERZHRIEAe

REEZZEF+-_F=+—HLEHFE
BRANLFAENEHNEBEHFZBAS
69,592,000787t (ZZ—FL4F © 173,354,000/
70 ©

TAFWEE P 2R RD TERNRER AR
ZRIEBRS RO RATE R BRRURLD
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_Z _vflf‘f' B=1+—HLHFE
31 BORROWING 31 &k
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—H
2020 2019
ZECTE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
Current ENHA
Bank borrowing BITE™ = 5,577
As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowing would mature R ZE-NF+FZA=+—H RITERNZ

on 22 December 2020 and bears average interest of annually
4.57%. The interest-bearing borrowing is carried at amortised
cost.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowing was repayable
within 1 year.

The carrying amount of the short-term borrowing approximates
its fair value. The carrying amount of the Group’s borrowing as
at 31 December 2019 is denominated in the RMB.

As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowing is pledged by
buildings (Note 15) and right-of-use assets (Note 16) of the
Group.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during the year ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

ToEE+TA+HIN BTHENE
4.57E 5t o Bt B SRR HASASTUAR o

RIB-NE+ZRA=1+—H xEBZER
AR—EREE

EHERZREEREAFERE-R2F
—NAF+ZR=+—H AERERZIREE
TSUAREEEHE

A — F
\_7

—NE+ZB=+—H RITERHEE
EEBTF (15115 REREEE (H5E16) (FR
o

BE_T_TFERTE-AFE+RA=+—H
EE AEECETHEMBENYHZE -

221



222

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Gk o W B Rk sk

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 32 RIEFRTSHR
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FNIRIEFTSMEERSB ST ¢

during the year is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities REFRFIREE
2020 2019
ZEILE “B-hE
Accelerated Revaluation Accelerated Revaluation
tax  ofintangible  Right-of-use tx  ofintangible Right-of-use
depreciation assets assets Total  depreciation assets assets Total
RHE Fidi-{:3 ERE TR BREE RRE
HE B BE Eh g L BE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TR TEn TiEn TR
At T January ®—B—H 173 m 6,275 6,759 251 340 7,148 7,739
Credited to the consolidated FtARERER
income statement (54) @21 (3,635) (3,710) (78) 22) (741) (841)
Exchange realignment ERRE - 20 212 232 - ) (132) (139)
At 31 December R+=A=+-A 119 310 2,852 3,261 173 311 6275 6,759
Set-off deferred income tax assets JEIHEEFGREE (119) (241) (2,550) 2,910) (173) (226) (5,838) (6,237)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net #+— B =+—H B
at 31 December FERaEsE - 69 302 371 = 85 47 522
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

o W B A B ek

“EEt_A=t—ALEE

—E—

EFEFR1STR (@

Deferred income tax assets IRIEFRSIREE
2020 2019
kot 23 B-NF
Accelerated Revaluation Accelerated Revaluation
tax  of intangible tax of intangible
depreciation assets Total depreciation assets Total
MEHRIE BREE MERE EVEE
& Bft At & Eff &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiER TiEn TiEn FiEn TR TR
At 1 January P—B—H (5,957) (399) (6,356) (7,148) (482) (7,630)
Charged to the consolidated nisBERaKER
income statement 3,584 54 3,638 1,065 78 1,143
Exchange realignment ERBE (194) (15) (209) 126 5 131
At 31 December R+ZA=+-H (2,567) (360) (2,927) (5,957) (399) 6,356)
Set-off deferred income tax liabilities EHRIEFRREE 2,550 360 2,910 5,838 399 6,237
Deferred income tax assets, net at 31 December A+ = 8 =+—HAELFHEH
BEFE (17) - (17) (119) = (119)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses EIEFFSIR B E T REARRAIR BN B Pl SE A
carry forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax i8R RERNEF SR EE 2 REBE
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 RSB N T _EF+_A=+—H *&H

December 2020, the Group had unrecognised tax losses to
be carried forward against future taxable income amounted to
HK$466,209,000 (2019: HK$418,791,000). These tax losses
have no expiry date except that HK$196,278,000 will expire
from 2021 to 2025 (2019: HK$164,623,000 will expire from
2020 to 2024). The potential deferred income tax assets in
respect of these tax losses which have not been recognized
amounted to HK$84,436,000 (2019: HK$75,789,000).

As at 31 December 2020, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$219,130,000 (2019: HK$173,900,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RSB LK E B R ERRUA 2 KRR I8
$874466,209,00058 7T (ZE— .4 © 418,791,000

HBIT) oBR196,278,0008 TN —_ T - —F=F
- hAFEEER (CTE—F 1 164,623,000

%7573\_7 “EEF"TUESHBER I

EMBEIBLERE R A ZSERIEE
?aﬁﬁwz/ SR ISR B 484,436,00078 7T
(ZZT—H4E : 75,789,000 7T) ©

RIBEEF+_HA=+—0 BHREERT
A C R ER R RO EEY RS
A B AR REEE] » 4 A R RE A5 B & T P B b

NEIXRERF) 2 ELTEINAI219,130,00058
7o (CE—N4E 1 173,900,0007870) e S B 5 IR
REHIEIERRIE B o
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33 WRITTEN PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

“EETCA=t—ALEE

33 BHREEGRE

For the year ended 31 December

#E+_"_A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
—BEfF —T-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHT
At 1 January EA—H —H 683,908 -
Issuance of written put option FITEHFLERE 78,824 676,494
Unwinding of discount BEOlTE 61,001 7,414
Exchange realignment FERARE 7,474 =
Total =i 831,207 683,908
As at 31 December
m+-A=+—H
2020 2019
—EIEH F—NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Written put option liabilities B R
~VBill (Cayman) (Note a) —VBill (Cayman) (ff52a) 738,620 683,908
— Megahunt HK (Note b) —JKENEE HzEDb) 92,587 -
Total aat 831,207 683,908
Notes: mizE -
(@ In 2019, the Company, certain shareholders of VBill OPCO, @ RIZE—NEF > EKAF @Eﬁﬁ%?ﬁx% ’

including Shen Zheng (also acts as the director of VBill (Cayman)),
Li Huimin, Xue Guangyu and Ge Xiaoxia (collectively the “VBill
Management Shareholders”), ELECTRUM B.V. (the “VBill Investor”),
VBill (Cayman) and VBill OPCO entered into a subscription agreement
(the “VBIill Subscription”), pursuant to which, the VBill Investor had
agreed to acquire approximately 11.21% effective shareholding
in VBill OPCO through subscription of the issued shares of VBill
(Cayman) at a subscription price of RMB588,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$676,494,000).

As a part of the VBill Subscription, VBill (Cayman) would grant a
put option, which the VBill Investor could request VBill (Cayman)
to repurchase, redeem and/or cancel all the VBill (Cayman)’s shares
held by the VBill Investor at its discretion from 31 December 2023 to
31 December 2025 under certain conditions at an exercise price of
RMB588,000,000 (equivalent to HK$676,494,000) plus 8.0% interest
per annum. The VBill Subscription was completed on 12 November
2019.

BIERE (FMEEVBIll (Cayman)EE) “RE
B EAFRBES (iﬁﬁéfvslllﬂiﬁﬁx
&) “ELECTRUM B.V. (TVBIill#% &%) VBill
(Cayman) & BETTI 5T LR Mt (TVBIlIRIESR
IE]) »IEIL VBIlREEERESEBEINEEA
S 15588,000,0007T (2 E12676,494,000787T) 52
FEVBIll (Cayman)BE1TRA% » MU EEREI T
11 21% BRRRGHE

E#VBIllZREEEERN —E89 > VBIll (Cayman)
& A?ﬁﬁf@u{%ﬂﬂ& RIEBZ=F4+=
BA=+—RBE_ZE_FF+-A=+—8"
vs;ll&ﬁ%‘mtt KVBill (Cayman)E#F
15T UITERBARKS588,000,0007T FBE R
676,494,0007 7T) N8.0%M FF|EE)1FERL]
B[O R, S VBIlIR B &AM AVBIll
(Cayman)i&15 o VBIllZBEEEER —E—NF
+—B+ZH%=mM-
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33 WRITTEN PUT OPTION LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

The fair value of the written put option liability is based on the
present value of the exercise price of RMB588,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$676,494,000) plus 8.0% interest per annum, by applying a
discount rate of 8%, and on the assumption that the put option will be
redeemable on 31 December 2023. The written put option liability was
denominated in US$ and classified under non-current liabilities.

In 2019, the Company, Megahunt, Megahunt HK, the management
team members and certain investors entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Megahunt Subscription”). The management team
members include Li Li, Liu Zhan-li, Xu Changjun, Xu Wensheng,
Yang Lei, Hui Lok Yan and Song Jie. The investors include Wonder
Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd (a subsidiary of PAX Global), L
BRBRRCEMEREXREREESTL (BREE), S
B (FELREBERE) BERERL (BRAE) (collectively the
“Megahunt Investors”). Pursuant to the Megahunt Subscription, the
Megahunt Investors have conditionally agreed to subscribe for an
aggregate of approximately 14.55% of the enlarged registered capital
of Megahunt at a subscription price of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$87,441,000).

As a part of the Megahunt Subscription, Megahunt HK would grant a
put option, which the Megahunt Investors could request Megahunt HK
to repurchase all the Megahunt's shares held by the Megahunt Investor
at its discretion from 31 December 2023 to 31 December 2025 under
certain conditions at an exercise price of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$87,441,000) plus 8.0% interest per annum. The Megahunt
Subscription was completed on 30 March 2020 (Note 34).

On 30 March 2020, a written put option liability of approximately
HK$78,824,000 was recognised at its fair value in the consolidated
balance sheet, with a corresponding entry of the same amount
recognised within equity ‘other reserves’. Its fair value is based on the
present value of the exercise price of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$87,441,000) plus 8.0% interest per annum, by applying a discount
rate of 10.34%, and on the assumption that the put option will be
redeemable on 31 December 2023. The discount rate was assessed by
an independent valuer as at 30 March 2020. The written put option
liability was denominated in RMB and classified under non-current
liabilities.

o W B A B ek

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

33 BHVEERRE @

st (#8)
(@ (&
BBRASRNIRE > BHLAREENR

FEZTEENIREAR588,000,0007T (18
E10676,494,00078 7T) MN8.0%M FFIZFE 15
WRZD LN B =F+ A =+—
HA Ll - EXRLREERETIIERD
EAERHEE

RIZ—hE  AATJKMIEEZEJKAEFB
EEEBEBRNERETREEITURBHZ
(TkREEEE) - EEBEBRRERESE
BB RBRERE BRYXE - BE CTHEER
RN -REEBRBEEGTERE (R BRA
B (BEBRRIWBAR) « LERRERSEM
EREXERELEESHL (BEREE) ROH
B EEREERE) REREFRL (EREE)
(#HREA AR EE)) - RBIIKARESE
KL EECAERHEREREIMNEEZSH
N1455%NBIBAAMELR REEAARE
80,000,0007T (1EE7287,441,0007% 7T) ©

EABIARBEEEN D KAEBBEE
H— 1D sRE A anﬂ}xﬁ%ﬁ?fﬁtgx%uﬂ
SEREETERTUTEREARS0,000,000
7t (FEE 187,441,000 7T) MN8.0%HI EFZFHE

BN _=F+_A=+—RE_T_AfF
+ A=+ —HBLOKAREEFENMRAEK
MIEERMD - KAREEEN _S_TE=A
=+ H5%m (isE34) °

RIEZZEF=ZR=+H BEHDHPE:E

B4978,824,000 8B T EATFEREEEE
a@%m&%t#% SR TE e
BRIERSENIEEEE - F#BIH%A10.34%
MR HATFTERTEENREARK
80,000,0007T (F8E 1287,441,0007% 7T) /118.0%
HNEMNEHE IREN_ZEZI=F+2A
=+ —HeA AR TT BB O] o AR IR K TL MG 3L
HEAR _Z_SE=ZRB=+HF E -ELR
HHREBEUARKEHERDEAFERSE
Eo
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZET

34 DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SHARES OF
SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(b)

(o)

Deemed disposal of Megahunt

Save as disclosed in Note 33, the Megahunt Subscription
was completed on 30 March 2020. Upon the completion
of the Megahunt Subscription, Megahunt remains as a
subsidiary of the Group. The Group was deemed to have
disposed of approximately 11.19% of Megahunt from
76.92% to approximately 65.73%.

Deemed disposal of CodeOne Data Limited

In 2020, VBill (Cayman), VBill Management Shareholders
and CodeOne Data Limited (“CodeOne”) (a subsidiary
of the Group) entered into a subscription agreement
(the “CodeOne Subscription”), pursuant to which, the
VBill Management Shareholders had agreed to acquire
approximately 17.72% effective shareholding in CodeOne
through subscription of the issued shares of CodeOne
at a subscription price of HK$1,772,000. The CodeOne
Subscription was completed on 30 March 2020. Upon
the completion of the CodeOne Subscription, CodeOne
remains as a subsidiary of the Group. The Group was
deemed to have disposed of approximately 17.72% of
CodeOne from 100% to approximately 82.28%.

Deemed disposal of Shenzhen Hi Sun FinTech
Global Limited

In 2020, ABS, certain management team members and
Shenzhen Hi Sun FinTech Global Limited (“Shenzhen
Hi Sun”) (a subsidiary of the Group) entered into
a subscription agreement (the “Shenzhen Hi Sun
Subscription”), pursuant to which, the management
team members had agreed to acquire approximately
30% effective shareholding in Shenzhen Hi Sun through
subscription of the issued shares of Shenzhen Hi Sun
at a subscription price of RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$6,543,000).

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

(@)

(b)

(o)

34 RIEHEME LB/

RIELEIKAIEE
PREEEIZFTIREEE N KRR EBE R
TECERF-R=+HREM PRI
FIEEMREBIKABEDATERN—
E B AR AEELRABEHEIKHIE
EAN 9% Em > #mB76.92% - E4
65.73%°

RIELHEMBRIERRLAE

RZZZZ4 > VBIll (Cayman)~ VBIllBIZ/E
B R B S EIE A R AT (FHZE%J) (REE
M—MEMEB AT s]i R EipE (MR
BEETE)) o IRt vmn*ﬂi)‘l&%EﬂsL
BIZEREE(E1,772,0008 050 BB A B 81T
B4 T UR BB IS 491 7.72% 0 E PR AR 1 ©
MERBEERN _ S _ZEF=A=1+H5%
B o RIS R BB EIESE AR BN A A
EEN—EHBAR AEEFRAHEH

EMBEA17.72% 5 > #E 5 H100%HE L
82.28%°
RIEHEFISHEEKREEER AR

A CECEE SREE - BETEERER
B ERRSBERREAERAR (OF
JIErE)) GEBEN—REWNEBAR) 5118
Bz (RSB REEE) (Bt &
EEEMRECREEBEIEEARE
6,000,0007C (FEEH26,543,00078 7T) 08%E
S5 BT KEMmBE RSB
30%HY B FRAHE ©
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34 DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SHARES OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Deemed disposal of Shenzhen Hi Sun FinTech
Global Limited (Continued)

The Shenzhen Hi Sun Subscription was completed on 10
April 2020. Upon the completion of the Shenzhen Hi Sun
Subscription, Shenzhen Hi Sun remains as a subsidiary of
the Group. The Group was deemed to have disposed of
30% of Shenzhen Hi Sun from 100% to 70%.

Deemed disposal of Hi Sun FinTech Global Limited
In 2020, Emerging Technology Limited (a subsidiary
of the Group) and Shenzhen Hi Sun entered into an
agreement (the “Hi Sun FinTech Agreement”), pursuant to
which, Shenzhen Hi Sun had agreed to purchase 100%
equity interest of Hi Sun FinTech Global Limited (“Hi
Sun FinTech”) from Emerging Technology Limited at nil
consideration.

The Hi Sun FinTech Agreement was completed on 7
October 2020. Upon the completion of the Hi Sun FinTech
Agreement, Hi Sun FinTech remains as a subsidiary of the
Group. The Group’s interest in Hi Sun FinTech decreased
from 100% to 70% accordingly.

ok DRI

ERARAR i)l o

34 RIEHEMEB LB/ @

(o)

(d)

RIEHEFIESHEERESERAR
(,%)

ST B%%IEE\:?_J-EI)%LEI
mm RIS bEREEIETME &
EEhAREEN—EHBAR ZK:EE@
WRABBHEFISE30%E 0w #Em A
100%;H ZE70% ©

RIEHESBRXRRERAR

M ZZ"FF > Emerging Technology Limited
FEBEZNBAE) BRI L%
(MEBERERHE) Bt RISBEREE

ML BAEmerging Technology Limited (%
SHREXBKARAR (EHEEHR) 22
BB o

SERNEHER _E-EE+BtHR
e R eBREpEERE SEEENE
NEBZHBAE - AEBPEBEIEEH
TS FEFEFR100%78 D 2 70% o
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34 DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SHARES OF

B BRI G

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Gain on deemed disposals of shares of subsidiaries is

calculated as follows:

“RE+A=T—HLEE

34 RIEHEMB LB/ @

RIFHEMB R B RN EIEUTEHE

For the
year ended
31 December
2020
BE_ZT_ZTF
+-BA=+—H
b RE
HK$'000
FHT
Megahunt Subscription ARIBEEE
Proceeds received from the Megahunt Subscription ~ JKFA SR IE B IBFTSRUE 87,441
Less: recognition of non-controlling interests A SRR (47,160)
Less: proportionate share of accumulated currency & : #Z LB D GBI Rt E IR E Z58
translation differences re-attributed to non- BEMEAFERE R
controlling interests (1,697)
Less: directly attributable transaction costs A BEREGRZ A (437)
Gain on deemed disposal of Megahunt recognised P EMEAERERNRIEHE
_inotherreserves MERE 38147
CodeOne Subscription MBS RE R IE
Proceeds received from the CodeOne Subscription {50 B EIBFT1SRUE 1,772
Less: recognition of non-controlling interests A SRR R (1,256)
Less: directly attributable transaction costs B BERIGR S A (150)
Gain on deemed disposal of CodeOne recognised — F>E M AERERAVIREH E MBI
ot ey e 06
Shenzhen Hi Sun Subscription ‘Hiﬂl_ﬁffﬁmﬂﬁglﬁ
Proceeds received from the Shenzhen Hi Sun IS5 0B EIRFT 1S ARIE
Subscription 6,543
Less: recognition of non-controlling interests A MR R o (6,203)
Gain on deemed disposal of Shenzhen Hi Sun REMEEREDHORIELE
Ecostcdlinjothereserye- BN Asls 340
Hi Sun FinTech Agreement Sl E sk
Recognition of non-controlling interests FESRIFIE Rt 921
Gain on deemed disposal of Hi Sun FinTech REMEEESNRIELE
_recognised inotherreserves shtsE S 2108
Gain on deemed disposals of shares of subsidiaries 3 {F & [} B A &) fR 1D UK = 39,774
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_Z _vflf‘f' B=1+—HLHFE

34 DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SHARES OF 34 HRIEHEMBABTIMNRG @
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Set out below is the summary of the impact on other reserves T E5)ERIRIEL S B AT RN K E R
in respect of the deemed disposals of shares of subsidiaries and IS AN EMREEELENTENME

the written put option liability:

Other
reserves
Hithfdk s
HK$'000
FHT
Gain on deemed disposals of shares of subsidiaries & F & M /B A B B (0 FIUR = 39,774
Initial recognition of the written put option liability B XRFERIKFIBZENE LR LAEEE
of Megahunt (78,824)
(39,050)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, net cash inflow PSR REaRT fIEHEFENIRESR
from deemed disposals of HK$95,169,000 represents AJFERI5,169,000/ 7015 B JK SR EE = 18 ~ 14h5
proceeds received from the Megahunt Subscription, R EIE RIS 5088 B IEWE R PTS RUE
CodeOne Subscription and Shenzhen Hi Sun Subscription 73 A1I87,441,0007 7T ~ 1,772,000/ 7T 526,543,000
of HK$87,441,000, HK$1,772,000 and HK$6,543,000 AT R R IE R MR B R IREEE
respectively, less the directly attributable transaction costs 15385 B 249 B1437,0007 75 K2 150,00078 7T ©

of Megahunt Subscription of HK$437,000 and CodeOne
Subscription of HK$150,000, respectively.
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 35 #42IRE

STATEMENT

MERMEE

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net

cash generated from operations

@ PFREASRANER REEFRSREFHE
2 Bi8E
For the year ended
31 December

HE+-A=t+—HILEE

2020 2019
ZEITHE “B-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax BREF1SINAIEAF] 889,796 776,623
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation of property, ME BB R ETE
plant and equipment 222,762 362,116
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESERE 32,566 29,392
Depreciation of investment properties & E Y27 ES 205 197
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 1,925 112
Impairment loss of intangible assets BCBEZRERE 1,515 =
Net fair values gains on financial BATEFABRZEMEE
assets at fair value N EWEFER
through profit or loss (245,190) (21,923)
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, EEME -HMERREZ
plant and equipment g8, () 86 (50)
Write off of property, plant and WY 2R BB e sk
equipment 26,156 94,701
(Reversal of provision)/provision for F8 (BEesb) BE
inventories (2,740) 5,539
Employees’ incentive programmes ME L Bz EEREEE
of subsidiaries 40,191 30,303
Share of results of investments FEEURR AR IRE %48
accounted for using the equity
method (301,512) (208,695)
Loss on deemed acquisition and MW R — TR DUE %
dilution of interest of an investment ARZKREZ QPR
accounted for using the equity 5183
method, net 1,044 =
Credit impairment loss EERERE 67,176 48,800
Interest income FBIRA (70,975) (53,572)
Finance costs REE R A 63,722 10,245
Operating profit before working BEEEHN 2 EEER
capital changes 726,727 1,073,788
Increase in bank deposits SRITERIEM (5,763) =
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =8 agm R (15,456) 58,876
Increase in trade and bills receivables & Ut BR T B FE UL =453 10 (45,790) (71,485)
(Increase)/decrease in loan receivables  FEUE R (g 0) /8 (663,347) 98,559
Decrease in other financial assets BEERATTECHEMESMEE
at amortised cost b 39,304 4,376
(Increase)/decrease in other assets Ht&E (gm ml (12,287) 4,695
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due WA R A AR Z I E 2 FE
from investments accounted for L (g0
using the equity method 1,297 (5,249)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due FES BRI EARZREY
to investment accounted for A OBl
using the equity method 12,870 (7,675)
Increase in trade and bills I IRFRENER IR 5 E
payables, payables for payment IBRRA T BRER 2 RARIELU K
processing solutions business and HA AT FRIB K FE 5+ IR AN
other payables and accruals 161,902 214,410
Cash generated from operations KRR E 199,457 1,370,295
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposals
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

(o)

ok DRI

“EFE+"A=t+—HLEFE

35 IFRERERERME @

b) REZRERTD WEWE -BERR
BFISMRIEEE !

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RAiLEE

2020 2019

—EBIEF E—NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Net book amount (Note 15) IREVRE (5E15) 462 107

(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, ~ HEME - BERHEHEZ

plant and equipment (E518) W (86) 50
Proceeds from disposals of property, — HEYZE KRB K&K EPIERIE

plant and equipment 376 157

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

This section sets out the movements in liabilities arising

(0 METBEEZEEHIR

TS 2N FEREZHELEZEE

from financing activities for each of the years presented. #5o
Borrowing  Lease liabilities Total
EE HEAE =L
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FET
As at 1 January 2019 R _E-NF—HB—H 10,247 57,677 67,924
Cash flows REnE (4,538) (27,942) (32,480)
Addition RE - 30,793 30,793
Exchange difference fER =% (132) (1,218) (1,350)
As at 31 December 2019 A ZE—NEF
+Z-A=+—H 5,577 59,310 64,887
As at 1 January 2020 S ITEIZF—A—H 5,577 59,310 64,887
Cash flows fﬁ%m; (5,623) (39,338) (44,961)
Addition ,,J\E - 30,017 30,017
Exchange difference RET 46 3,489 3,535
As at 31 December 2020 A\ZERIERF
-1-_)% =+—H = 53,478 53,478
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36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with
a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance
of a subsidiary of the Group in providing services for a
modernisation project with not more than HK$60,000,000
(2019: HK$60,000,000) and claims of infringement of third
party’s intellectual property right. As at 31 December 2020,
the Company does not recognise any liability in relation to
the Performance Guarantee Agreement as the Directors of
the Company consider the possibility of reimbursement is not
probable.

In 2020, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
with Megahunt, Mega Hunt HK and Tianjin Mega Hunt
Microelectronics Company Limited (“Tianjin Mega Hunt”)
(the “Guarantee Agreement”). Pursuant to the Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide Megahunt, Mega
Hunt HK and Tianjin Mega Hunt with a guarantee to repay
the due and unsettled debts of Megahunt, Mega Hunt HK and
Tianjin Mega Hunt payable to a supplier, should Megahunt,
Mega Hunt HK and Tianjin Mega Hunt or fail to honour their
obligations, with not more than HK$78,000,000 (equivalent
to US$10,000,000). As at 31 December 2020, the Company
does not recognise any liability in relation to the Guarantee
Agreement as the Directors of the Company consider the
possibility of reimbursement is not probable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2019 and 2020.

TEFEATA=t+—HILEFE

36 TAEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ZE—RF > ANBHE—R R AT EAE
minsE (BARRGRE) BEBAERGS
KABIBEMAER BB ARIEE RN
AENBERBRBZRBRFRIEE=ZHHH
EREZRER - [ZHE L REFZ1260,000,000
Bt (ZTE—NEF | 60,000,000787T) ZIHERH
ZEIEFEF+ZIR=1+—H HRARBESR
m?ﬂﬁmﬂj%f/azﬁ*'ltiﬁm > BUAS /A B) 3 S
RERBAOERBZRZIAER.

AT TR QB EIKIEE KB B
FKEIANBFEMBERAE (FREIKH) 571
ERpE (BFRBED  RIEERFRBZ AR5
BREIKAIEE IKAEB R R EILTRER
% 71478,000,00078 7t (#8E#210,000,000% 7T) #Y
R HIKFIEE KRB B R R BIKAL L
FRAERITESTEBILNIEE JKAEE
B R ZBIAEN T — BN IR EEE
Ko EE+"H=+—H" m#w&j
EERARERENAIEERS AR
EREIABERpETAaE.

BREXHBEN R_B—NER_Z2F
+TZR=+—H xEEIEEAERNAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z_ZHF+_A=+—HIFE

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37 ERRS
As at 31 December 2020, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in N _ECEF+_B=+—H NEBRZEH
British Virgin Islands) owns 22.22% of the Company’s shares. B3I ZRich Global Limited#BA&AF]

The remaining 77.78% of the shares are widely held.

(a) Transactions with related parties E))
Except for those disclosed below and other than those
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has no other significant transaction
with related parties during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: same).

22.22%BR 1% * BR N77.78%MRIMBARRANLR B

HRAERFZRS

BRI X EE iR e BHRREMER
DWEEINN RBE_ZE-_ZTF+_A
—t+—HBUEFE - AEENEERELE
TEAEMEARS (CE—NE  EE) o

Transactions with PAX Global, an HME NS RAERIK RS
associated company:
— Rental income (Note i) —HEWA H5Ei)
— Purchase of electronic payment —BEEBTNESR BW:ti)
products (Note ii)
— Sales of mag-stripe card security — S E IR RN Z ARSI R
decoder chips (Note iii) (B &tiii)
Transactions with Cloopen, an EAE & A B]CloopenZ 32 5

associated company:

—Technical and support services fee ~ —$ TR EARFEER (W5tiv)

(Note iv)

— Provision of platform operation — BT RELERS WWitv)

services (Note v)

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
“BIRR —EB-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT
1,493 1,431
38,595 47,498
76,607 52,138
28,857 39,283
7,190 2,385

Notes:

() Rental income from an associated company was charged at a
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.

(i) Purchase of electronic payment products was transacted pursuant
to the terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement
entered into by the Group and an associated company dated 31
December 2015. The Group and an associated company had on
5 December 2018 entered into new framework agreements with
revised terms and conditions governing the purchase of electronic
payment products effective from 1 January 2019.

(iii) Sales of mag-stripe card security decoder chips were transacted
pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the framework
agreement entered into by the Group and an associated
company on 31 December 2016. The terms and conditions of
the framework agreement have been renewed on 30 December
2019.

(ii)

(iii)

RE—HEBEATZBSRASBZE SR
WE 2 BB FAUE

BEEFNERDREFAEEE—ZHEA
BFfETI A R—AF+"A=1+—H2Z
RELRIB R P BR R R AR ETT R 57 o AL E R
—EMEARNER - N\F+TAERIT
HERPE > B A CETIRRURARMF LR
EREEFXNER B -E—NEF—A—
BN -

B AR RN AR R Th R B A S B S —f]
BEARR —F—R"ETA=+—H5IuZ
HEZR TR Z PR SRR ETTRZ - ZIERIB
BBERREEER_E—hE+ZA=+H
Bsle
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B BRI G

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZET

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(iv) Technical and support services fee were charged pursuant to the

terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement entered
into by the Group and an associated company on 9 May 2016.

Provision of platform operation services were transacted pursuant
to the terms and conditions set out in the contracts entered into
by the Group and an associated company on 28 September 2018
and 1 November 2018, respectively.

Balances with investments accounted for using the
equity method

“EETCA=t—ALEE

37 ERRZ @

(@ HRERZRS (&
bzt (@)

)

i

Bt R IERBEDRIEAEE A —RBE A
BN 2 "FARBNBT L ZHERIGBHEFTE
TR B AFAF PR

(iv)

RETAEERBLREAEBE—RHRHED
ARZE-NFABFTNBER=ZF-N\E
+—B—B2RET L 2 SHIFTEIRR R R A&
IG5

(b) MUEHEARZIREZEER

As at 31 December

w+=—B=+—H
2020 2019
“E-EHF “E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Amounts due from associated FEUR B E A B FRIE (Bati)
companies (Note i) 19,957 19,970
Amounts due to associated companies FE{J B ABIRIE (Hf52i)
(Note i) (43,936) (21,226)
Dividend receivable from PAX Global, FEWH & AT B BRIk B
an associated company (Note ii) (K1 &%ii) 36,400 =
Note i: As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, these balances are Kz R_E—hER_E_FF+_A

denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Note ii: On 18 December 2020, PAX Global has resolved to declare

and pay a special dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share to
shareholders. The amount was subsequently received after the
reporting period.

Key management compensation
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, key
management compensation is equivalent to the directors’
emolument as disclosed in Note 39.

=+—H &4 @?ﬂuk%ﬁﬁnﬂﬁ7
AHEIEE Tt B REERERER

Hitazii: m, ZEFE+ZA+N\H BERIX

BRZEARRT IR R E SR
EHEAR0.1078 T - ARMEH BRI R E
HRTRURER °

TEEEEZ Y
ME-S-_SER-_F-ALET A
S+—BLEE TREREZHENE
P RESOFT R 2 EE B o

(o)
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

38 ZAFZEERBERKMFEED
FARZEERER

As at 31 December

m+Z-A=+—H
2020 2019
=<3 3 “B-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties BEME 1,536 1,794
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19,714 20,474
Investments in subsidiaries KEMB AT 713,189 713,189
Investment accounted for using the FEREREARNKEE
equity method 259,770 259,770
Total non-current assets ERSEELE 994,209 995,227
Current assets REEE
Other current assets HhwRsh&EE 864 745
Other financial assets HBIHR A2
at amortised cost HthspEE 36,606 202
Financial asset at fair value through ~ ZAFEFTABTRZ
profit or loss TMEE 1,036 1,712
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR bt /8 A B 7018 392,027 502,857
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 530,065 419,338
Total current assets REBEEHEE 960,598 924,854
Total assets BEEHEE 1,954,807 1,920,081
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to AT HEE ABLELRK
owners of the Company B
Share capital (& 6,942 6,942
Reserves E1E Note (a)
HtaEa) 1,304,585 1,279,650
Total equity R 4REE 1,311,527 1,286,592
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities B A=Y
Other payables and accruals HANFE (I RIA R FE ST RIE 28,820 27,762
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET I B AR FIE 599,660 590,927
Current income tax liabilities BVERFRISMEE 14,800 14,800
Total current liabilities R AR 643,280 633,489
Total liabilities _ _____________ L 643,260 633,489 _
Total equity and liabilities Emka B4R 1,954,807 1,920,081
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 38 ARz EEGEBERRFEEES @
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) FRABZEERER (B
Note (a): Reserves movements of the Company Hist@): KRG 2 #EEE)
Share Contributed Other  Accumulated
premium Surplus reserves loss Total
(Note)
RRin i fE BHRER Hith REEE At
Wizt)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn TER TEx TEn TEn

At 1 January 2020 RZE_%%5—-A—H 1,290,857 46,417 26,900 (84,524) 1,279,650
Profit for the year FRiad] - = = 24,935 24,935
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZE+-A=1+—H 1,290,857 46,417 26,900 (59,589) 1,304,585
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-h&—-HA—-A 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 (53,452) 1,318,045
Loss for the year FREE - - (7,323) (31,072) (38,395)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-hE+ZA=+—-H 1,290,857 46,417 26,900 (84,524) 1,279,650
Note: Miat -
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the RRBZEHBGIEREBEEEFMBEZNBARDRGA
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the TEBBAABRIZRZ BB ITROEEZSHE - RIE
reorganisation over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in BRE-NN—FR8E ARREETER T EESR
exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company BRAP DR A E R R 2k o

may make distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus under
certain circumstances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’” and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

—E—

Y

A=

—HIEFE

39 ERZEF KD BEEQBFA

(5562255) 5

$£383% 28 IRBES

e ER) R (F622GE) hE\EH L
MARAERIEL )

@ BEERIT

B &

BREERTHRIZMESEHIINT :

HEZEZZ

Emoluments
paid o
receivable

in respect of
director’s other
services in

F+=A=+—BLEE:

Remuneration - connection with
paid or the management
Employer's receivable  of the affairs of
Estimated ~ contribution in respect of  the Company
Discretionary Housing  money value of ~to a retirement accepting office  or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme as director undertaking Total
HEFAMEE
FARFRME
RERRE ARBHZAM
Hitgkl  EXZBh AEEZEN  BEZENH
ne 2 RiETL BE2E (AHENEE BUHNER  SEGEHE ElHE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TFin TiEn TiEn TiEn Tin
Executive directors HTER
Cheung Yuk Fung REE 1,080 - 1,300 - - - 2,380
Kui Man Chun REE (1)

(Chief Executive Officer) - 2,520 6,200 - 18 - 8,738
Xu Wensheng 3 - 2,780 6,000 S 18 = 8,798
Li Wenjin EXE = 2,160 6,000 s 18 = 8,178
Xu Chang Jun #Hag - 2473 5,400 S 18 s 7,891
Independent non-executive BUATES

directors
Tam Chun Fai i 220 - 200 - - - 420
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 220 - 200 - - - 420
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard E5: 220 - 200 - - - 420
Total Bt 1,740 9,933 25,500 = 72 = 37,45
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HIFE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’” and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019:

39 EEZEFIRERD (REBATEG
(38622%F) 3831~ A8 KWEBEE

#

maf) Rl ($622GE) REH L

MRAERIELIKE) @

(@)

ESRITHARZHE (&
BE_Z—h&E+_-_A=+—HLEE:

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director’s other

services in

Remuneration  connection with
paidor - the management

Employer's receivable of the affairs of
Estimated contribution inrespectof the Company
Discretionary Housing  money value of  to a retirement accepting office o ts subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme as director undertaking Total
HESAHER
ARERENE
HERRE AREHZAM
HifiER)  BEZEK AEZZEN  RBZEAH
ne E HIgTEA BERE fAHENEE BUHNER  SELH: FElEE At
HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS 000
Thr TER TER TET TEn TER TER TET TEr
Executive Directors BiiES
Cheung Yuk Fung RIk 1,050 - 1,300 - - - - 2,350
Kui Man Chun REE (THER)

(Chief Executive Officer) = 2,460 6,200 = = 18 &= = 8,678
XuWensheng Bk - 2,741 6,000 - 4364 18 - - 13,123
Li Wenjin ENE = 2,070 6,000 5 = 18 5 5 8,088
Xu Chang Jun #EE - 2416 5,400 - 3,928 18 - - 11,762
Independent Non-Executive BUEATES

Directors
Tam Chun Fai FiRE 208 = 200 = = = = - 408
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2R 208 - 200 - - - - 408
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard FEE 208 - 200 - - - - - 408
Total it 1674 9,687 25,500 5 8292 7 5 5 45,25

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits (b) EHRAKREF
None of the directors received or will receive any FR BRESSKHE G UEERIR K
retirement benefits during the year (2019: Nil). 'R CE-—NF 8o

(c) Directors’ termination benefits (0 EERERGEN
None of the directors received or will receive any FR - B E RS G U E T fol Bl B
termination benefits during the year (2019: Nil). 'R CE-—NF 8o

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making (d MEREZEFERFRE=AZLGZKE

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2019: Nil).

REBEE_ZE 4+ "_A=+—HIEH
B> AR ERENESRE AT
B=AEARE CE—LE 8-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 E!Z:n:_v “EF+"ZRA=

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2019: Nil).

(f) Directors” material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2019: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 19 January 2021 (New York Time), Cloopen made a public
filing of its registration statement (the “Registration Statement”)
pursuant to the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) in connection with its proposed
listing and offering (the “Cloopen Transaction”) of its American
depositary shares (“ADSs”) on the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”). The trading in the ADSs on NYSE commenced on
9 February 2021 (New York time). The Convertible Series C
Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares
(“CPS”) held by the Group were converted into ordinary shares
of Cloopen.

Immediately upon completion of the offering of the ADSs
on 9 February 2021 and the conversion of the CPS into the
ordinary shares, the equity interest of the Company in Cloopen
was diluted and reduced to 17.42% and Cloopen ceased to
be an associate of the Group. The CPS which were previously
classified as financial assets at FVPL were derecognised and the
listed shares of Cloopen were accounted for at fair value with
reference to the trading price with the corresponding gain of
the recognition of the listed ordinary shares credited to profit
or loss. Upon completion of the offering of the ADSs on 9
February 2021, the Group's interest in Cloopen was classified
as a financial asset at FVOCI, with subsequent fair value
movement recognised in other comprehensive income.

On 8 March 2021, the interest of the Company in Cloopen was
further diluted and reduced to 17.10% after the full exercise of
the over-allotment option by the underwriters.
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate, is set as below:

Results

Profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Capital and reserves attributable to
the owners of the Company

e

NS ZE PN
R, (B518)

BERAR

FARERAERS
B R

2020

—E-EHF

HK$'000
FERT

656,685

9,717,099

(3,349,595)

5,542,066

BixEEELMBRRNZBERBREIZA

EEBEALEMBFEE QM

BEEHSRMENT

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=1t—HLEE

2019
—h&E
HK$'000
FHT

569,111

8,149,068

(2,870,556)

4,687,048

2018
—N\F
HK$'000
FHET

278,175

6,632,517

(2,061,242)

4,378,213

2017
—t &
HK$'000
THET

346,144

5,657,451

(1,493,900)

4,059,342

A = A
%T =) /\mﬁ n‘ﬁ =

2016

“B2—RE

HK$'000
FET

283,964

5,499,041

(1,913,374)

3,531,216
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